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HEARING ON H.R. 1801, TO REAUTHORIZE THE
JUVENILE JUSTICE AND DELINQUENCY PRE-
VENTION ACT

FRIDAY, DECEMBER 4, 1987

House oF REPRESENTATIVES,
SuecoMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES,
CoMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR,
Des Moines, IA.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 9:15 a.m., confer-
ence room, Department of Economic Development, 800 E. Grand
Avenue, Des Moines, IA, Hon. Dale E. Kildee presiding.

Members present. Representatives Kildee and Tauke.

Staff present. Susan Wilhelm, staff director; Jeff McFarland, leg-
islative counsel, and Carol Behrer, minority legislative associate.

Mr. Kn.oge. Thank you for your patience.

As a school teacher, not a politician, I usually start on time. In
real life, I was a school teacher. I am taking a long 23-year sabbati-
cal in politics now.

The Subcommittee on Human Resources meets this morning in
Des Moines, Iowa, for a hearing on the Reauthorization of the Ju-
venile Justice and Deiinquency Prevention Act.

We really appreciate this nice weather you arranged for us here.
We have not seei: the sun for a long time. It is nice to come to Iowa
and see that beautiful sun out there.

I have often stated that the role of government is to promote,
protect, defend, and enhance human dignity, and the Juvenile Jus-
tice and Delinquency Prevention Act certainly helps to serve this
purpose.

Since its original enactment in 1974, together with a title on
Runaway Youth, the Act has promoted significant advances in the
weﬂ we deal with at-risk youth.

1¢ reason we came to Iowa is that Iowa, of course, has a strong
record in assisting its families and youth. This was recently demon-
strated by the Iowa Legislature, with the passage of legislation pro-
hibiting the jailing of children.

I look forward now to seeing how this effort will affect and tie in
with the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act, and
while the JJDPA landmark legislation, it was written on Capitol
Hill and not on Mount Sinai, and that is why we travel around the
country to talk to people who are experts in the field tv see how we
can };plc;rhaps improve this bill, and we welcome all your comrnents
on this.
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I want to mention that the 'Feople of Iowa are, indeed, very fortu-
nate in having someone like Tom Tauke representing them in Con-
teem’ and being the ranking minority member on tnis subcommit-

Tom and I are of different political parties, but I am really
pleased that he is the ranking minority member on the subcommit-
tee. He is a first-class human being. Not only on this bill, but on all
the bills under our jurisdiction, Tom and I seek whenever possible,
which is usually the case, to take to the Floor a bill that we can
defend together on that Floor. We seek accommodation rather than
oonf:iontation, and it is because I think we recognize we are serving
people.

om shares with me that idea that government should promote,
protect, defend and enhance human dignity. When you start from
that principle, it is very easy to work together. If we had more
people like Tom in the Co: , we could make much more
progress in solving our nationa. problems.

So, I appreciate the fact thay he has asked us to come out here to
Iowa, 50 we can sgain learn from the experts in the fit 'd out here.

Tom, do you have an cﬁining statement?

Mr. Taukk. Yes, I do, Mr. Chairman.

First, I want to thank you for coming to Iowa. It was not easy

etting here because we almost missed our plane last night due to
te votes in the Congress, but we ‘id e it. I appreciate the
time you have taken to spend the day here in the heartland with
the great people of our state, to learn about how we are dealing
with the juvenile justice problems here in Iowa.
thank you also for your very kind comments. I hope that I can
travel to Michigan some time in the not too distant future and say
some very kind things about you, but I do want to say that it has
been a great pleasure for me to work with you on the subcommit-
tee. I have very much appreciated the opportunity to work with
you not only because of your excellent legislative skills and leader-
shi‘f, but also because it has allowed me to get to know you better,
and you are a very fine person and the kind of individual who, I
think, we all want to have in the national government.

He not only brings to the government a very sound mind, but he
also brings to government a very kind heart, and that is something
thatd il;lﬁspeci ly important in the areas in which our subcommit-
tee .

You indicated the bill that we are considering was not crafted on
Mount Sinai, but it was Congress who made the Jrolicy and now we
want today to hear from the implementors, and it reminds me a
little bit of the fable of the hippopotamus who wandered out
through the jungle. He was feeling a little romantic, as he wan-
dered through the jungle, and after a few hours, his eyes settled on
a very beautiful butterfly. As the story goes, the hippopotamus fell
in love with the butterfly and he realized he had a rroblem, 80 he
went to the wise old owl and he said, “Wise Old Owl, I have fallen
in love with a butterfly. Now, what do I do?” And the Wise Old
Owl said, “Well, there is only one thing you can do, you must
become a butterfly.” And the hippo felt satisfied momentarily and
wandered back into the jungle, and he thought about that for
awhile, and then he came back to the Wise Old Owl and said,
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“Wise Old Dwl, how do I turn myself into a butterﬂy?” And the
Wise Old Owl said, “Listen, I just make policy, I don’t implement
it.”

Well, we can make the policy, but we also need to make certain
that ui:hias well implemented and that is what we are trying tc find
out y.

Despite the fact that many people think Congress sits in its ivory
tower all the time making decisions, we do make a serious effort,
at least two of us do, to try to find out what is happening with the
policies that we enact, and we hope today to allow those who are
our witnesses to inform us of how the Ko icy is working and what
changes we should consider as we reauthorize this legislation.

I might just note a couple of things. First is that in organizing

i8 hearing this morning, we have had great coo tion from
many people, but I want to single out Gil Cerven'lv.i‘w 0 is a witness
on our first panel, here this morninmnd Ann Thompeon, the Ad-
ministrator of the Commission on Children, Youth and Families,
which is a division of the Jowa Department of Human Rights. We
thank you, Ann and Gil, for the great work that you did in making
itgm le for us to come here this morning.

lier this year, I was pleased to join i Kildee in intro-
ducjng H.R. 1801, the bill to reauthorize the Juvenile Justize and
Delinquency Prevention Act, the Runaway and Homele. s Youth
Act, and the Missing Children’s Assistance Act, for four additional

ears.

While the bill was introduced as a simole extension of current
law, as it works its way through the com1._ *ee process and the full
House and Senate, it will undoubtedly be ~mended considerably.
The valuable input we receive here today will help ensure that this
process results in improvements in these laws.

We face some serious questions in this year’s reauthorization of
the act. High on the list is the jail removal mandate in current
law. The Iowa Legislature, with the leadership of a couple of people
here, Beje Clark and Julia Gentloman, was successful this last ses-
sion du; t::nact:ing legislation to comply with the Federal jail removal
mandate.

I am looking forward to working with state offici.ls to ensure
that Iowa’s ehfibility for formula grant funds is determined as
soon as possible and that the funds are awarded in a timely
manner.

Other issues confronting the subcommittee related to this reau-
thorization include the allocation of funds among formula grants
and special emphasis grants, conditions of confinement, high rates
of minority incarceration, and the difficult problems of violent ju-
venile offenders and rising juvenile gang activity.

I look forward to working with Chairman Kildee and other mem-
bers of the subcommittee, which does include Congressman Grandy
from the 6th Congressional District nere in Iowa, who, unfortunate-
ly, could not be here today.

Chairman Kildee is one of the Congress’ leading propcnents of
programs servini children and youth, and his leadership and bi-
partisan hat:&proac to the I;»a]rooess are highly valued.

So, t you again, Dale, for coming here today and bringing
your excellent staff with you.
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Mr. KiLoge. Thank you very much, Tom.

Mr. TaukE. ! should also introduce Carol Behrer, who is the Mi-
nority Counsel on the Subcommittee, and who grew up as I did in
the eastern end of the state, in Maguoketa, Iowa. She serves as the
Minority Counsel to the Subcommittee on Human Resources,
which is holding this hearing.

Mr. KiLoex. And Susan Wilhelm, who is a Michiganian.

Mr. TAUKE. Is that what you cull them? Michiganian?

Mr. KiLoge. Well, we sometimes get called Michiganders.

And then Jeff McFarland is from Maryland, I believe, right?
Maryland.

Our first panel to help us implement this morning consists of Gil
Cerveny, Juvenile Justice Specialist for the Iowa Commission on
Children, Youth and Families; Betty Jean Clark, Iowa State Repre-
sentative. I spent ten years in the Mich.'gn House of Representa-
tives and a term in the Michigan Senate on the way to the
Congress, and Allison Fleming, Chair of the Iowa State Advisory
Group for Juvenile Justice, accompanied by Ron Stehl.

So, if you want to proceed in the order that I introduced you:
You may summarize your testimony. Your full written testimony
will be made part of the record.

STATEMENT OF GIL CERVENY, JUVENILE JUSTICE SPECIALIST,
IOWA COMMISSION ON CHILDREN, YOUTH AND FAMILIES, DES
MOINES, 1A

Mr. CervENy. I would like to thank the members of the subcom-
mittee for the opportunity to discuss Iowa’s experience with the Ju-
venile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act.

I have worked in the juvenile justice and child welfare system in
the state for seventeen years and served on the State Juvenile Jus-
tice Advisory Council for five of those years.

I am currently the Juvenile Justice Specialist for the Division on
Children, Youth and Families in the De) ent of Human Rights.

Iowa has icipated in the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency
Prevention Act since 1975. The twelve years since then does not
seem like a long time, but the evolution of services in those twelve
years has been remarkable. The influence in funding incentives in
the Act have been a very integral part of the system improvements
that have come about in that time.

While Iowa has a rich tradition of child welfare services, up until
the seventies, these were primarily substitute care or out-of-the-
home placement types of services. The—at that point in time, it
was not unusuel for youth to be placed out of the home or institu-
tionalized for a variety of problems, truancy, running away, and
gl;i};nags_ like promiscuous behavior or the old catch-all, incorrigible

vior.

Crisis services just simply had not developed to any great extent
at that time yet. Adult jails were commonly used for the processing
aad custody point for runaways, homeless youth and a variety of
problems. They were not used as a punitive measare but simply be-
cause resources did not yet exist.

The Act has provided a focus on family-centered and community-
based programs. The availability of funde for start-up has been a
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key factor in Iowa developing a coniinuum of youth services that
can be responsive to youth in crisis as well as helping to protect
public safety needs.

As antheexample, Iowa nc;vtg h&shﬁﬁ?ﬁn youth shelt;r care ptrf)-
grams, t majori which either started with or greatly
1mproved mstll;e?IJ fundst{'hese progzams rovide a network of first
contact settings, where youth can hopefully be reunited with their
family, where needs assessments can be done or at least prepara-
tion can be done for long-term placement.

Iowa also has four juvenile detention centers with a fifth that is
presently being developed up in Northeast Iowa. All of these pro-
grams began or have been approved with JJ funds.

With the categorical grant awards that were done this year,
when those programs are implemented, eighty-five out of our
niuety-nine programs will have access to in-home detention pro-
gramming, which has proven to be a very cost-effective and simply
effective alternative to use of jails. )

The funds over the years have been used for a variety of things
which I tried to illustrate in my written testimony, and has been
very valuable for that system improvement in Iowa, but the task is
no means oommted at this point. With the legislation that you
mentioned, prohibiting the placement of juveniles in adult jails, we
are about to come into compliance with the jail removal mandate,
but there is still much that needs to be doae in the state in devel-
oping the alternative resources, particularly considering the rural
nature of Iowa.

Particularly, transportation concerns and the immediate short-
term custody kinds of resources need to be addressed.

While Iowa should be found to be in compliance, we are con-
cerned with the present language in the Act to not fund states
which are out of compliance, since this could remove incentive for
those states to continue participation in the Act.

Perhaps alternatives, such as language requiring that the funds
be used exclusively for jail removal until compliance is reached or
something like this, could be considered.

We are also concerned that ending the six-hour and twenty-four
hour exceptions as a schedule for 1989 may not be a realistic goal,
particular ly again for rural areas, given what is needed for pro-
gram development.

Many egams have been made in the juvenile justice system, but
continued direction from the federal level is needed to further de-
velop the network of resources. The funds authorized by the Act
are critical in this effort as they represent one of the few resources

for program initiation.
’l’ﬂa.nk you.
[The prepared statement of Gil Cerveny follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF GIL CERVENY

I would like to thank the members of this subcommittee for the opportunity to
discuss Iowa’s experience with the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention
Act. My name is Gil Cerveny. I have worked in the juveni's justice and child wel-
fare system in Iowa for seventeen and served on the Juvenile Justice Advisory
Covncil for & . I am currently the Juvenile Justice Specialist for the Division
on Children, Youth and Families in the Department of Human Rights.
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The for emphasis on family-centered and community-
based programming. Additionally. tiwe Act has provided the availability of funds for
innovative program development. These factors have had a central role in the devel-

. i be responsive to youth in

have proven
They provide family reunification services, needs assess-
tion for long-term placement Iowa has four juvenile detention cen-
tly being developed) for the alleged juvenile offande: who is
tially a threat to the community. All of these progroms were started or im-
proved with j ile justice funds. funded this year through Juve-
nile Justice grants are implemented, eighty-five of the ninety-nine counties will
have in-home detention programming, which has proven to be an effective, and cost-
effective, jail alternative.

Iowa has utilived the Juvenile Justice funds to help develop twenty-four hour ju-
venile court intake, to improve chiid abuse identification and treatment and to de-
velop model day treatment, crisis intervention, and in-home services programs.
Funds have been consistently targeted for community-based delinquency prevention
programs. The Juvenile Justice Advisory Council stimulated and continues to par-
ticipele in the annual Summer School for Helping Professionals through
the University of lowa, which this year, provided intensive study for 350 profeesion-
als of various disciplines in juvenile justice related issues.

Iowa’s participation in the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act has
indeed played a role in overall system improvement, but the task is by no
means completed. With this years’ state legislation, prohibiting the placement of ju-
veniles in adult jails we are about to come into compliance with the jail removal
mandate, but there is still much to be done in the development of alternative re-
sources to provide for the needs of a predominantly rural state such as Iowa. While
alternative settings to jail are largely available on a regional besis, the lack of
transportation and immodiate short term custody resources needs to be addressed.

While Zowa should be in compliance with the jail removal mandate this year, we
are concerned withtlwpruantfnngungeintheActtonotﬁmdmmwhichmout
of compliance, which would remove any incentive to comply. Perhaps, there could
be language requiring non-compliant states to concentrate program funds on jail re-
moval until compliance is reached. We also are concerned that ending the six hour
and twenty-four exceptions may not be a realistic goal, particularly for rural areas.

While we now have a much bzutter understanding of the causes of delinquent be-
havior, true delinquency preverntion will take a concerted effort, inclusive of pm
matic ways of interrupting the intergenerational nature of family violeace and
stance abuge and of preventing segments of our youth population from feeling ex-
cluded from the mainstream of achool and community.

Mandy; gains have been made in the juvenile justice m but continued direction
from the federal level is needed to further deveiop the network of resources that
have been initiated. The funds authcvized by the Act are critical in this effort as
they represent one of the few resources for program initiation and encouragement.

Mr. Kipeg. Thank you. Ms. Fleming.

i3
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STATEMENT OF ALLISON FLEMING, CHAIR, STATE ADVISORY
GROUP FOR JUVENILE JUSTICE, DES MOINES, IA; ACCOMPA-
NIED BY RON STEHL, IOWA JUVENILE JUSTICE ADVISORY
COUNCIL, DES MOINES, IA

Ms, FuzmiNg. Mr. Chairman, Representative Tauke, I am pleased
to have the opportunity to talk with you all today about the Juve-
nile Justice Adl;ioaory uncil.

I am Allison Fleming, and I am Chairpeison of the Council, and
this is Ron 8tehl, who 18 Vice-Chair of the Council.

The Juvenile Justice Advisory Council was created in 1975 by
then-Governor Robert Ray, and this was also the year that Iowa
beg:in participation in the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Pre-
vention

The Council and its staff are responsible for monitoring compli-
ance with the mandates of the Act, and in 1980, Iowa came into
compliance with the requirement that does not allow the secure
holding or treatment of non-delinquent youth. At that time, we
also reached compliance with the eeparation of juveniles in adult
jails mandate, and then, with the changes we have had in the law,

just inning July 1, 1987, that is in the Iowa law, we should,
ope! m{; come into compliance with the removal of ju\eniles from
adult jails mandate.

One of the responsibilities of the Council is to assist in the devel-
opment of the year plan for the state, and the Council also
recommends to its staff how federal monies from the Act should be
npent for Iowa’s categorical grants program, and we use that to ad-
ﬁm the needs identified in our state plan.

We have used that money to reinforce the Council’s commitment
to remuoving juveniles irom adult jails, and in my written testimo-
tr_xoy, I have delineated some of the things that we have ueed that

r.
We also conduct training and technical assistance in such thi

as juvenile code education, jail removal, those sorts of things. We

also instituted and remain a primary participant in the Summer

School for Helping Professionals, a week-long school at the Univer-

mta:’t_' Iowa.

Council is composed of esgionals from the juvenile jus-
t;lce arena, yout:ltxs members an volunb;ers. I {;eeo;l I:trongly that all
these components are n as each mem| rings a perspec-
tive to the Council that is nmed. Because I am a volunteer, I feel
strongly that volunteers cannot be ignored in working for the im-
plementation of the goals of the Juvenile Justice Act.

Because we do, we, volunteers, do not represent a specific turf, so
to speak, we are a natural to help resolve conflict and to facilitate
compromise. However, I also do not feel the volunteer could be of
gay use if there were not the professionals working with them in
that area.

I feel that the marriage of the viewpoints that we have on the
Council ™ s served Iowa well with the current make-up.

Our A .visory Council does have several recommendations that I
would like to read to you. The first is that the Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Act should be reauthorized, that the current jail re-
moval exception should be permanently retained, that the Admin-
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istrator of the Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Preven-
tion should be required to publish an annual plan, that the Nation-
al Coalition of State Advisory Groups should be provided with the
resources neceesary to advise the President, Congress and the Ad-
ministrator, that the Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency
Prevention should be made a permanent part of the Department of
Justice, tnat no juvenile should be held in any institution, deten-
tion or correctional facility, in which conditions do not meet at
least one set of recognized national professional standards, that no
child because of his or her I status should be denied access to
educutional and mental health services or other such services and
p: funded by the Federal Government.

e feel that eighty-five percent of the :gpro&riated funds sheuld
be directed to formula grants. We think that Congress should hold

ional hearings on the issue of differential incarceration rates for
mﬁﬁe&. We are trying to get you to Michigan, Representative

e.

Congress should ensure that the needs of American Natives sub-
ject to the juvenile justice system are met.

As I said, we feel that the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Pre-
vention Act should be reauthorized. Without its assistance, Iowa,
and I expect many other states, would not be able to respond as
effectively to the needs of youth in society.

you.
[The prepared statement of Allison Fleming follows:]

Prer.:»rD STATEMENT or ALLISON FLEMING

Mr. Chairman and distinguished members of the subcommittee, I am pleased to
have the opportunity to comment on Iowa’s Juvenile Justice dvisory Council. I am
Allison Fleming, Chairperson of tl.e Council.

The Juvenile Justice Advisory Council was created in 1976 by then Governor
Robert Ray. This was also the year Iowa began participation in the federal Juvenile
Justice and Delinguency Prevention Act.

The Council and its staff are responsible for monitomt:g compliance with the man-
dates of this Act. In 1980 lowa came into compliance with the requirement that does
not allow the secure holding or ireatment of nen-delinqusnt youth. At that time
Iowa also reached compliance with the “separation of juveniles in adult jails” man-
date. Changes in Jowa's law effective July 1, 1987, should bring Iowa into compli-
ance this year with the removal of juveniles from adult jails mandate.

The Council assists in the development of the three year plan for the State. The
cpont Tor Town's Catogonioal Oumoty Dresean ooy icuies from the Act should be
spent for Iowa’s ri ran in problem areas jdenti-
h’; in the State plan. The mq)on’ty of the federal monies allocated the last several

years has reinforced the Council’s commitment to removing juveniles from adult
Jails. The Council has had fun participation in emergency shelter care, juvenile
detention, residential treatment, treatment, sexual abuse treatment, subatance
abuse treatment and family counseling programs. The Council has conducted train-
ing and technical assistance in juvenile code education, jail removal, delinquency
prevention and program development. The Council instituted and remains a pri-
mu"y Iparﬁcipant in the “Summer School for Helping Professionals” at the Universi-
ty of Iowa

The Council is composed of professionals from the juvenile justice arena, youth
members and volunteers. These components are necessary for a successful council
as each member brings a needed pe ive. 1 am a volunteer and feel that the role
of a volunteer cannot be stressed too highly. Since the volunteer does not represent
a particular “turf”, he/she is a natural to resolve conflict and facilitate compromise,
However, the volunteer would be useless without the professional viewpoint present.
This marriage of viewpoints has served Iowa well.

The Juvenile Justice Advisory Council has several recommendations that wou'd
continue to preserve the rights of juveniles while protecting the rights of sociecy:
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—The Juvenile Justice and Delingnency Act should be reauthorized.

—The current jail reixoval exce should be permanently retained.

—The administrator of OJJDP should be required to publish an annual plan.
~The National Coalition ofShte Advisory Groups should be pr./ided with the
resources necessar: _. advise the president, congress and the adr.:nistrator.

—The Office of Juvemle Justice and Delinquency Prevention siiciud be made a

rmanent part - f the ent of Justice.

—No juvenile should be held in any institution, detention or correctional facility
in which conditions do not meet at least one set of recognized national profes-
sional standards.

—No child, because of his/her legal status, should be denied access to educational
andmonulhealthurvieuorothermchnrvicuandmramsﬁmdsdbythe

—-85% of ‘hozwpmted funds should be directed to formula grants.
d hold regional hearings on the issue of differential incarceration
rates for rainorities.
-hould ensure that the need« of American natives, subject to the juve-

nile justice system, are met.
The Juvenile Justxee and Delmquency Prevention Act should be reauthorized.

Without its sssistance jowa, and I expect many other states, would not be able to
respond as etiectively to the needs of youth and society.

Mr. Kiwoee. Thank you. Mr. Stehl.

Mr. SteaL. Just want to offer what Mr. Cerveny and Allison
mentioned as our role in the Juvenile Justice Advisory Council in
tha State. I wish tc stress chree main points of the Federal act.

The act has set a direction for States to improve juvenile justice
services. A lot is going on across the nation, a lot is going on in
Iowa to improve those services. I think partially responsible for the
act to be passed in 1974.

Aleo, the act has encouraged innovative program development in
Iowa. You will hear that today from various testimonies of people
in our State who provide services to youth, the t}y;es of programs

that they have developed, partlally as a result of funding to formu-
l‘g::.nts to those agencies.

m our perspective, we stress that we feel that the Act

does need t» be reauthorized. It does encourage the development of

what we call innovative and creatwe program development in the
State. We think we are doing that in Iowa. We think with what we
have got going in Iowa, coupled with the Federal Act, we can im-
prove our services to troubled juveniles in our State.

you.
Mr. Kioeg, Thank you. Ms. Clark.

STATEMENT OF BETTY JEAN CLARK, STATE REPRESENTATIVE,
ROCKWELL, 1A

Ms. CLARk. Thank you.
I a:a here with m1xed feelings because I am not a technical type
of person, but I annot turn Tom Tauke down on an .
a little angy, hat he left us and went to the Federal ern-
ti.lllent, but I think the Federal Government is better for having him

ere.

Until now, what I knew about the Juvenile Justice and Delin-
quency Prevention Act was what elYeople like Ron from the Depart-
ment said when they came into all of our hearings in Human Re-
sour-es and Appropriations about the funding that came from here
and there and some place else, and thei: general position.
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We have known for years that we had to come to what action w

t1:ﬁoklabout juven{les in jail. I can rﬁtember whe? I ﬁmbo% 1;)
e legislature eleven years ago, we were {rying o .
People like Julia had alre.:dy led the way and we were i
abqttxt that then, and we ﬁnaﬁy have done something constructive
on it.

But now it is a little different. It is not just generalities. Now, I
have actually read that whole act, all 53 of the printed copy,
and I feel a little bit like a fellow in the old Alka-Seltzer ads, “I
can’t believe I read that whole thing”, and I have developed a
theory that the larger the body that creates the law, the more com-
plicated and wordy the law is going to be, and it is firm opinion
that probably everything that is really good in that Act could have
been said in half the words, but since I live in the glass house of
the Iowa islature, I canrot afford to throw stones because we
are very wordy.

But, you see, we only have a hundred of us, gm have 435 of you.
So, we are not quite as wordy as you folks are. But I do not want to
dwell on that.

I feel it has been a very important thmg for the Federal Govern-
ment to take leadership in these kinds of things and setting goals

for us to look at. Preventing— resenﬁn&l: c en‘ge to us.

I personally feel that Iowa had this kind of compassion and
this kind of thing and probably would not need to be prodded as
much as maybe other states, but then I am partial to Iowa. I think,
however, that the Federal Government be'm¥ able to assist people
in a state like ours that wanted to do some of these things and had
some people that looked further than their noses, I think it has
been particularly helpful to them and the funding assistance has
been important.

Being from a rural area, the matter of removing juveni! s from
jail is a difficult thing because each county has such a small
number of juveniles that it could not possibly be cost-effective to do
it on a county-by-county basis.

In my area of the State, 13 counties are—have banded together
to create one facility, and it was through this Act and the funding
from this that we were able to hire a researcher to make the needs
assessment to know how big a facility do you really need for this
group of oount}es and also to look 3tgmm' émthathen they got
another grant for programming an an t is going on.

And each one o? these things that starts with the hef;uc:g the
Federal Governmen: func.ing and guidance is able to be an exam-
ple to somebody else and say, well, maybe we should be doi.:;g this,
and ~ome of the other rural areas. It is always—the first of these

ings are always in the metropolitan areas because they are al-
ready organized and able to do it.

And, so, if you cut out the funding now after you have set things
in motli’or; v:ll:en 1;;;re hf:;re dl:;amd&l‘es of what ?iln b: dog;a and every-
thing but then the i isappears or the Act disappears, it
holds up the guidance for us, that—I think that would be uncon-
scionable to that out.

In the area of shelter care, we also have some of that in my
of the state, but, here again, it is in the most populous part of the
state, but I find that ninety-eight to ninety-nine percent of the ju-
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veniles that are in the shelter homes in Maso . City, which is the
largest town, are really raral kids. So, it does ‘each out, and I do
not think we want to pull the rug out from u iuer these programs
now that we have shown them how to go.

One of the big problems, of course, in rural areas is transporta-
tion. To get the people to the services or the services to the people
who need them, and I think if you really want to zero in on
making an impact in rural areas, that the—maybe you want to in-
crease the emphasis on transportation and providing leadership to
fund creative solutions to that problem, and then, once having
found that solution, leadership in helping it get in place.

I would like to see an expansion of the volunteer service. I agree
with Allison on this. However that—it is great to have volunteers
and you can do a whole lot with volunteers, but to say that you can
do it without somebody to have the skills to inspir. and educate
and guide volunteers, g':u are just not going to get very much done,
and the people that have the skills to do that are not available
without remuneration. They just are not because they are some
place else making money.

It takes money to set up and train and guide a volunieer pro-
gram. Here in Iowa, we have our court-appointed special advocates
Brogram, the CASA Program, that provides citizen guardians ad

item and this is a case in point where they have used volunteers,
but the program would not have gone anywhere if it had not of had
some support at the top with somebody to work with it.

More emphasis on rural assistance through the federal program
would help us at the state level in that kind of a program.

I think Congress is very wise in putting an et:ﬁhasis upon con-
tinued monitoring and evaluation because we need to know
whether our investments and money and effort are really bearing
fruit or whether there is a better way to do it, and, so, I would
hope that in continuing this program,which I am not saying please
do, I am assuming you will have the good sense to do it, and, so, it
will be to show us mayte the hows of good monitoring and evalua-
tion.

I think we do a pretty good job here in Iowa on that, however.
There is a lot of emphasis on that here, but we are only one state
ax_xdhgxere may be cthers that are not as enlightened as we are.

t also is very wise to set up a coordinating council on juvenile
justice and delinquency, but when I read this list, this long list of
groups that are in that, I began to wonder if maybe you should con-
sider, when you are redoing this, some reconstructive surgery be-
cause I cannot help but believe that some of those programs ought
to be combined for more efficient administration and not just have
to rely on a coordinating council of all of these myri of pro-

grams.

And I cannot help but believe that there has tc be some overlap-
ping in that. but I want to be very careful in suggesting that be-
cause we have been through combining things into block grants
and then whacking them into funding so that nothing in that block
ﬁ;ant could be as effective. I do not want you to go that route. We

ve not recovered from the knock-out blows we on that proc-
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ess, and, 8o, I mention this with a little fear and trembliag, but I
still think it would proLably be helpful to do.

It is to be hoped that Congress is going to realize that the econo-
my may be improving in some of the areas of this countW, but the
rural Midwest has not enjoyed this improvement yet. We do not
want o be left stranded out here. So, continuation of this Act and
adaequate funding for it is really imperative, and it is cost-effective.
It w:i) ;ave us bigger expenses in the future because any invest-
meat in helping juveniles, I know, for sure is a moral necessity,
and :¢ is alse a fiscal necessity, and, so, no matter what ideology
anybody, political ideology anyone has, it should be something that
we covld agree upon, that this is a good investment of our money.

[The prepared statement of Betty Jean Clark follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT oF BrTTY JEAN CLARK

Until now ali 1 have known about the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Preven-
tion Act of 1974 were generalities and the kinds of things happening in Iowa be-
cause of that act. )

Now it is different. I have actually reac that act and its subsequent additions and
amendments and 1 foel some akin to the man n the old Alka-Seltzer ads. I
can't believe I've read that whole thing! So I have developed a theory that the
larger vhe body creating the law, the more complicated and wordy that law will be.
It is my firm opinion, and not too humble, that everything of importance in that act
could Lave been said half as tq:lxwords

Be that as it may, I do not wish to dwell on it for living in the glase house of the
Iowa L?mhture 1 should not be throwing stones.

The Federal Government is to be congratulated for its leadership in the area of
juvenile justice, setting up a standard of goals high enough to present a challem
the states plusatiometa:imneeincharting the course to get to those goals and -

assistance along the way.

t me turn to some of the results in lowa. In rural areas removln* juveniles
from jails is not easy. There are so few in each county that a separate facility for
juventles cannot possibly be cost effective. One group of thirteen north lowa coun-
ties had banded er to create one facility. They were able to utilize funds
through this act to hire a researcher to make a needs assessment to determine the
apm:ﬁaee size for such a facility and to research the possible site locations.

done, they received another grant for programming and staffing. Their suc-
cess stands as aa example to other areas who now can move ah in similar
projects only if this Federal supguo‘rt is continued! If the Juvenile Justice and Delin-
qu_enf;yblPrevention Act and its funding were to be cut back now it would be uncon-
scionable.

In area of the state, which is a rurel area, there iz a youth home and shelter
which received funding through JJDPA. They serve f‘juveniles from a wide geo-
Eaphica: area. It is estimated that 98 or 99 percent of these juveniles are rural

ids. Again, this has shown other areas what they could do and given themseme
hope for solving some of thair problems. The rug must not be pulled out frogx under

e oventian big prbl ral rtation, either to get people to
i sblem in rural areas is transportation, ei people
the service or sempo: to trs people who need them. If Congrees wants to make a
trul&great im on the problems of rural emf'uvenilee. it will increase the emphasis
on the area «f transportation; providing leadership in funding creative solutions to
mmbll:m of courss, but also leadership in finding those creative solutions in

e place.

I personally would like to see an expansion of the emphasis on voluntary service.
It is all well and good to say that we could accomplish many th.inﬁby volunteer
service but someone must inspire, educate and guide volunteers. Those with the
skills to do all of this are not really available without remuneration. It takes money
to set up, train and e a volunteer program.

Our court appointed special advocates program, CA‘S'Q which provides citizen

«1 litem is a case in point. This program received initial funding from the

Juvenile jus.ice and deliquency ntion set up by this act. Cases and vol-
unteers ars both more plen in metropolitan areas 80 these are the areas
which have received the most of these funds at this point but perhaps more help
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needs to be offered to developing rural volunteers. More emphasis on rural assist-
ance through the Federal program would help us at the state {;vel.

Congress was wise in putting into this act an emphasis upon follow up and moni-
toring and evaluation 80 that there can be a better indication of where our invest-
ments in money and effort will bear the most fruit. In continuing this part of the
progrum it d be well to see that the “how’s” of good monitoring and evaulation
will be shared with the States so that they, in turn, can do a better job.

It was also wise that the act set up a coordinating council of juvenile justice and
delinquency prevention. That is an important step in the right direction. However,
as I read the lenghty list of the agencies which are part of this council, I cannot
help but wonder if serious reconstructive surgery should not be seriously contem-
plated. Perhaps there are some of these which should be combined for
more efficient administration. This could aid the public who become extreruely frus-
trated when in search of where to get help for a specific problem. Also in that many
programs there just has to be come overlapping.

One caution. Combining programs should not mean a decrease in funding! It
should be done only to improve administration—not to decrease funds for the pro-
grams, We've been down that road in combining block grants and then whacking
the appropriations. As States we haven’t recovered from the knock-out blows that
process gave us.

It is to be hoped that Congrees will realize that the econo be improving in
some areas of tﬁ: country but the rural midwest has not e myy:dmt{us impl:'ovement.
Please do not leave us stranded out here. Continuation of this act and adequate
funding for it is imperative and it is cost effective since it will save us bigger ex-
penses in the future. Investment in helping juveniles is a moral and fiscal necessity!

Mr. KiLpeg. Thank you very much for your testimony.

As you know, the law originally called for substantial compliance
by 1985. Because data collection lagged behind, the enforcement of
that would ordinarily fall probably about 1988. Full compliance
was required by 1988 and again for the same reason, it will prob-
ably be 1990 before they enforce that.

I would suspect that in light of what the Iowa Legislature “as
done recently, you are probably at least in subetantial compliance,
so there is no d%()f you losiniatshe money flowing directly to
the state. I would think that alone brought you into substantial
compliance, and I think as you carry that legislative act out and
implement it, you probably, hopefully, will be in full compliance by
the time they start enfo.cing the 1988 deadline, which will be
about 1990. So, I think you have got yourself on a good path there.

Let me ask you this question. We have mandated the deinstitu-
tionalization of status offenders which simply disallows their place-
ment in a secure facility. The intent of Congress in enacting the
legislation would was to encourage states not only not to institu-
tionalize these status offenders, but to develop some programs to
deal with them.

Could rou, maybe the four of you, just tell us how you have done
tha;? here in Iowa to deal with the status offenders in a positive
wa,

Mr. CervENY. Well, in terms of the emergir;:iy crisis-t pro-

ams, the shelter care network that I described, I think largely

owed out of the DSO mandate, and I am really kind of proud of
what we have here in Iowa when I look at surrounding states in
terms of those programs because they are truly community-based,
can function to reel in the families, you know, try to get services in
place to reunite as quickly as possible, and provide a stable type of
setting while other processing is going on as the kids need to go
elsewhere in the state and in the system.
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We have, what, 40 child-caring agencies in the State that provide
a range of group home residential treatment types of services. I do
not believe any of them are secure in nature, that they are able to
perform very excellent services in nonsecure settings, and they
serve both non-delinquent and delinquent youth.

Ms. CLARk. Well, probably the area that seems to disturb most
people and why we have had to fight almost—well, every other
year at least—to keep status offenders out of the system is the area
of runaways, and we are developing some runaway services, and I
wish those people who want. us to put them back the old way would
use all of that energy to help develop these services.

But I think that 18 coming, and I would hope that, federally, you
would not let—drop back on that emphasis of keeping the status
offenders out of the delinquency system because, if you do, we have
got lots of forces in the state that will really climb right on with
{ﬂo:tand we will set ourselves back a ways and I do not want to do

Mr. Kipee. As a former teacher, and as a parent of three teen-

rs, I hesitate to say this, but it is a fact; in some instances,
when a child runs away, that is an act of survival for that child. I
come from a traditional family and I am raising a traditional
family so that troubles rae, but it is a fact.

I had students who finally split out of a need for survival. For
that teason,thereseemsbobeaneedbotreatthatfamﬂdyasaunii:.
In some cases that family unit has been so damaged and is such an
ineffective and very often destructive unit that it must be dealt
with as a whole.

How do we approach that in Iowa?

Mr. CERVENY. A variety of services, notably over the last seven
or eight years, home-based family-centered services, has become
very prominent in the State as that means of intervening to try to
effect the family d. ics that have generated those behaviors
that have brought oung person to attention.

Mr. StenL. I would have to say in the past ten years, Iowa has
probably been on the forefront in developing what we in Iowa call
1amily-centered or family-preservation type of services. As Gil said,
t{::tr: is a continuum array of these types of services around the
state.

In the past several years, quite a bit of funding from our state
legislature has gone into these types of programs. This past session
of our general assembly, they initiated a progam for us to develo
called “the family preservation program’’, which is a more special-
ized version of our family oounsem types of programs that we
currently have in existence now.

They are statewide, most of these programs, more in the metro-
politan areas than there are in the rural areas. We do feel we have
a statewide array of those services, but much more needs to be de-
veloped in the rural area.

e think we are on our way to getting that. We think—and part
of the funding for those in-home family-centered tyms of services
has come from the Federal Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Pre-
vention Act formula ts over the several years.

Ms. CLARk. About the only thmqm t is being done rurally, from
a rural standpoint, along these lines is done through the farm
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crisis mediatioueople because they are discovering that what

these people need is not just financial help, but the destructive
families and there is a growing emphasis u&on looking at family
structures and what the crisis is doing to them in a rura’ _-ea,
and, 8o, they have moved into that a little more, and I think that is
probably the only area that we Lave really been able to touch the
truly rural people. And that is only the people that are in financial
trouble that we reach, and there are families in trouble for other
than financial reasons.

Mr. Kipex. Yes. I have read about wealthy families.

Ms. CLARK. Rural as well as metro.

Mr. Kupxz. Tom.

Mr. Tauxe. First, in your testimony, Gil, you talked about the
jail removal mandate and you indicated that present language in
the Act suggests that we do not fund states which are out of com-
pliance. You suggest that that is a bad approach, that instead we
need a different approach, an approach which suggests that we pro-
vide funds to those states that are out of compliance but direct the
way in which they spend the money.

Is that an accurate reflection of your view?

Mr. Czrveny. That was a concern I expressed, that now that
the—that time is here, s0 to speak, and there are a number of
states that are not yet compliant, that if the funding is terminated,
thle&' may just simply choose not to participate any longer.

ir. TAUEE. Is that a reflection of the view of the panel as a
who;e? Do the other members of the panel agree with that perspec-
tive

Ms. CLARK. Yes.

Ms. FLeMING. Yes.

Mr. Tauke. What kind of requirements should we impose on a
state then that is out of compliance? Do we require that the funds
be spent in a specific area or should there be some other require-
ment? What is the stick that we have to force states to oomtply

Mr. StenL. I would suggest that, OK, if the state is out of compli-
ance, participating in the act, funds that go to that state be target-
ed in the arees that they are out of compliance, whether it is jail
removal, the formula grant dollars go specifically for jail removal
activities.

Mr. Tauxks. The problem that we have is that you need to per-
suade leg':labors in the states on occasion to do something, and,
Beje, is that going to be a sufficient stick to persuade legislators to
take action?

Ms. CLARK. I do not know because, really, funds have been avail-
able to help them do these things from the beginning and they
have not done them yet.

So, I have been sitting here thinking what kind of a stick do you
really have. The only thing I know that really is effective is to
remove funds from something else, unless you do this, and I do not
know how ycu get that in your Act because you would have to have
some agreement there.

It is the same principle as you are going to get highway dollars if
you do not do the speed limit and this kind of thing, but I cannot
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think of any particular stick like that that you have got, but
maybe %ou will come up with something.

Mr. TAUkE. Well, if you have any brilliant ideas, pass them on.

On the funding area, generally, as you may know, the Adminis-
tration takes the position that Congress enacted this Act some
years ago in order to give the states a push and to begin movement
In this direction, but that now the program is maturing in most
states and that there is no need for a continuation of funding.

What happens in the State of Iows if we essentially drop funding
for juvenile justice? )

. CLARK. Well, I think the thing that troubles me the most is
that people—they talk about government moving slow, but the
public is slower than we are, and—which is probably why we are
slow, but the thing that concerns me is that the movements that
we have made are beginring to show that they work enough that
other areas within the state are ready to go ahead and move, and if
we pull back on it from the Federal Government, so that those
areas are not going to have the help that we have had in the areas
that did move out, it will just stop right where it is, and I do not
think we have completed the job.

I would hate to see that happen. What we have done has inspired
some people to do more and we would just squelch that inspiration
if we did that.

Mr. Tauke. Would there be back-sliding in Iowa if the Federal
Government funds were drogeped?

Ms. CLARK. There might be some. I think the programs that are
really solid probably would stay, but some of the others might not.

Mr. Tauxk. Any other thoughts on that?

Mr. SteHL. I agree with Beje I would add one thing. These dol-
lars, the federal formula grant dollars, thet Iowa receives are es-
sentially used for creative, innovative, sts.t-up types of programs.
We dct> not have any funds available in Iowa for start-up types of
activities.

We have a lot going for on-going service types of programs, and
this kind of proviﬁesmtie stick to everybody to develop some innova-
m creative things h.alt gi;:s p{lilvate agencielsl thet l;lexechamsl:':m.:o

up p that perhaps they may not have opportunity
to do t%at 5 they had to find the money on their own or else to
seek that out from the state.

Mr. TAuke. Two of you, Gil and Allison, indicated that you
thought it was unrealistic to eliminate the six and 24-hour excep-
tions in the current jail removal provisions of the Act.

Teill us why you til.ink that the six and twenty-four hour excep-
tions ought to be retained permanently.

Mr. CervENY. I do not know if I would necessarily say I feel that
they should be retained permanently.

r. TAUKE. Well, let us say retained——

Mr. Cerveny. Through the life of the next 4 years of the act per-
haps. Simply because full compliance means total jail removal, and
the status of implementing the garogram in the State, particularly
in the rural areas, is such that that is probably going to be hard to
accomplish.

The development services tends to evolve that you get the con-
crete brick and mortar kinds of things in first an! the other parts
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of that continuum, we kind (;‘f;lflibly talk about, kind of fall into

place flowing from that, and compliance for those areas of the
state that have only sporadic un(rredictable kind of usage patterns
is going to depend on eveloping things like further in-
home detention, more sophisticated kinds of that, attendant care.

Some things that we have nat fully identified in terms of helping
with the transportation and man power kinds of situations, right
now the projection is just that {ull compliance would be very hard
within the—

Mr. TAURR. Give me a concrete example. It does not have to be
real life, but a concrete example of what happens in a rural area
that - makes it difficult to comply. What problems does the local
sheriff or the local m‘ceman have in dealing with this kind of sit-
uation that makes this kind of exception n

Mr. CervENY. Again, in the rural areas, it would be—I do not
want to start by saying the exceptional situation, the thing that
hsppens maybe once a year, once every couple of years, but the se-
rious crime, the violent type of offense committed by a juvenile,
that at least in the short run would Ppose problems in either finding
a slot in a regional detention facility, which may be a couple of
hours away, or doing the actual physical transportation, at least
for a several-hour period of time, either because of manpower or
even weather situations. This is Iowa.

I see the problem mainly being in the very short-term kinds of
situations, not any extended kinds of things.

Mr. TAuke. Do any of the rest of you have any observations
about that?

Ms. CLarr Well, I just know of one situation in our area which
was mid-winter and the transportation just simply was not possi-
ble. What are i'sou going to do with that kid?

Mr. TAUKE. Is this only a problem with violent crimes or is this a
problem that arises when there is either no crime at all or maybe
something that is less than violent?

Ms. CLarg. Well, I think that some of—there are some people
that you can call on in an area that will keep a youngster on a
temporary basis if it got into that snowstorm situation, that you
can find something to do.

The violent one, nobody wants to take into their home and say,
eah, I will hang on to this kid for this length of time. So, the vio-
ent ones are really—

Mr. TAukE. Do we need to do something different for violent situ-
ations? Does there need to be something ir the Act that addresses
that issue specifically?

Ms. FLeMING. I know that in my short experience with the Advi-
sor¥l Council, one of the concerns that I have heard is what to do
with the violent offender, and—

Mr. Tauxe. And what—go ahead. What should be done? If you
were writing the Act, what would you do with the violent offender
who was sixteen years old?

. FLEMING. In the first place, I hope it would never happen,
but given that that does——

Mr. Tauke. Well, it does.

Ms. FLEMING [continuing). I'm speaking just for myself.

Mr. Tauks. Sure.
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Ms. FLeMiNG. I would like to see a facility for the violent child,
to handle not the normal ‘ype of problem, but some place that cur-
rent detention centers and all could take a child that has major
problems, that needs all kinds of security needs and just needs
massive attention.

Mr. Tauxe. Not to dwell on this, but let me just ask what hap-
mtoday.beeauselamnotsurelhaveaclearunderstandmgof

Suppose we have a rural area in Jowa, we have a violent crime
committed by a sixteen- Id. What happens?

Mr. CervENY. More likely, they would be held locally, any-
where from one to four hours, until a slot could be identified in one
of the regional detention centers and then

Mr. StenL. In a few instances, not many, in the year, the state
training school at Eldora would be used as a holding place, a deten-
tion-type of place, for those yo:gﬁﬁers, but when that happens,
that presents problems at that facility, too, because of over-crowd-

mf agree with what Allison mentioned. I think we do not have
many violent offenders, juvenile violent offenders, in Iowa, but
those that do cause us problems, and I think it causes problems be-
cause of the type of service. We need more service for that particu-
lar youngster, more array of services for that youngster, more ai-
ternatives for local law enforcement people to use than what prob-
by m?ﬁw&.zsina&.:& specialized f facility, I think it

en she t a iali type o ility, ink i
would be useful in Iowa for that particular type of child.

Ms. CLARK. Sometimes up in our area, we will put them in a psy-
chiatric ward, a secure psychiatric ward at the hospital, until they
can find something else.

Mr. Tauxz. Okay.

M.. Crark. That creates problems for them, too.

ivi~. TAUuRx. Yes, I am sure that it does.

Well, again, if you have any great ideas on that subject, I think
we are open to some suggestions.

We have had some concern about the youth membership on the
State Advisory Groups, and some states indicat2 they have difficul-
‘t)yf ﬁ;.m young people to serve and remain interested for a period

e

Have we had any difficulty in the state with the youth member-
shxl'\g:lots on the State Advisory Group?

. FLEMING. I cannot talk about the difficulty in the past, but,
currently, we do hav2 youth membership on our Council, and they
do represent a specific set of problems germane to thera. Many of
thewm are in school or they are just in different situations that 1t is
hard mt them to come, but we have been really lucky that we
have active participation from our youth members whenever
they are able to and their problems have been no less legitimate
than adult members of the Juvenile Justice Advisory Council.

I think what you have to do is you have to look at the juvenile
involved as you should with any member of your Council and find
out where their areas of interest are and then use them in that
area because if they are working on something that they are inter-
ested in and they care about, they are going to do the job.
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Mr. SteHL. A personal perception. I think it is critical to have
youth involvement on the Justice Committee. I think it gives a
viewpoint that is probably overlooked or assistance supposedldz to
help youth that many times we do not ask those youth or kids in
our system their opinions of things ﬁing on.

This is a good forum for that. I have been on the council for a
number of years, and I cannot recall, it has been a thoroughly en-
joyable experience working with the kids on that Council. The
come up with ideas. They do not just sit and remain ocg.luiet throug
the meetings. They are very active. They are very vocal and I think
we have used their opinions, hopefully, in attempting to craft plans
that have been developed over the years in Iowa.

Mr. Tauxe. The last question deals with national standards for
detention centers. I think in your testimony, Allison, you suggested
that we have some kind of national standard.

I have been gene: reluctant to have the Federal Government
sit up there and say these are the standards that ought to be met
because it is difficult to anticipate all of the circumstances.

Why do you think we need a set of national standards?
thl:{s. FLeMING. ] must have misspoken because what I said was

Mr. Tauxz. Or maybe I did—- )

Ms. FLemiNG [continuing]. Children should be held in a facility in
which conditions meet at least one set of nationally recognized
standards. We were not asking necessarily for a single standard.

Our concern here was just that children should not be held in
facilities that you and I would not want to be held in. So, we are
not calling this really for a single recognized set of standards be-
cause, as an executive committee, when we approved this, we could
not decide on what single recognized set of standards we wanted,
just that there needs to be a certain minimum acceptability of any
facility that a child is housed in.

Mr. Tauks. Does anybody have any suggestions on how we deal
with that issue?

Ms. CLARK. I think, federally, that if you could indicate that it is
vital for states to have—tc develop standards, maybe put that in as
one of the requirements——

Mr. TAuxe. Do not set the standards. Instead, say to the States,
you have the——

Ms. CLARK. You would dictate to the state that they have to have
a set of standards. That will get them on the ball.

Mr. Tauxe. Well, thank you very much. It has been very helpful.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Kipex. One final question. Has Iowa utilized the rural ex-
ception that was put into the law back in 1984 when you are out-
side a central metropolitan area and you might find it necessary to
hold someone longer in that adult jail, for, say, twenty-four hours
or gix hours? Is that exception being used in the state of Iowa?

Mr. CxrveNy. Technically, we were not eligible for the twenty-
four hour exception until House Bill 522 was because of the
re%{u!i_rement that there be a twenty-four hour hearing.

. Kipee. OK.
_Mr. CerveNY. Assumedly, we will. We have not gotten the offi-




20

Mr. KiLpge. You can apply for that exception.

Mr. CervENY. Yes. We did that.

Mr. Kipee. For meeting the criteria for the exception.

Mr. CervENy. That is correct.

Mr. Tauke. Following up, do you intend to apply?

Mr. Cerveny. We did apply several months ago.

Mr. KiLoee. Do your police officials in the rvral areas keep press-
ing you to do just that? Do they find that to be a problem in the
rural areas?

Mr. CerveNy. My experience has been, and I work.d in a rural
area for about ten years, that occasionally that is. Their more
pressing concern is those first few hours, while they have the first
contact with the person and are trying to figure out where to go
next, contacting juvenile court officials, judges, things like that.
That is more their area of concern and how to transport them
where they need to go.

Mr. KiLpEE. I want to thank the panel. You have been very help-
ful to us. We will take this information back to Washington. We
will be in the process of reauthorizing this coming year. We will
probably be calling upon you again.

If you have any further information for us, just feel free to com-
municate with us.

Thank you very much.

Our next panel will consist of some service providers. Mr. Earl
Kelly, Executive Director, Orchard Place, Des Moines, Iowa; Mr.
Bill McCarty, Executive Director, Youth Homes, Incorporated, Iowa
City, Iowa; Jim Swaim, Executive Director, United Action for
Youth, Iowa City, Iowa; and Gary Hammond, Assistant Executive
Director, Hillcrest Family Services, Dubuque, Iowa.

Mr. Kelly, I think we will be visiting your place this afternoon.

Mr. KeLLy. That is correct, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. KiLpee. Okay. You may begin your testimony, summarize if
you l:\;ish. Your entire written testimony will be made part of the
record.

STATEMENT OF EARL KELLY, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, ORCHARD
PLACE, DES MOINES, 1A

Mr. KeLry. Okay. I would like to thank the subcommittee for the
opportunity to provide this testimony today.

My name is Earl Kelly, and I am the Executive Director of Or-
chard Place, Des Moines Children’s Home, and Orchard Place is a
residential treatment facility which is a seventy-eight-bed unit that
actually goes back to June 1886.

It started as a orphanage in Des Moines, Iowa, and the program
essentially existed as an orphanage up until about 1963, and at
that time, a community need survey in Des Moines indicated that
some type of facility needed to be developed for children who were
having major emotional and behavioral problems.

So, our of Directors, numbering thirty, did a rather exten-
sive community survey and came up with the idea of a concept of a
residential center which was subsequently developed and has been
in place since that period of time.
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What occurred to us back in the early 1970s is that we were
seeing a number of youngsters referred, actually an increased
number of youngsters referred, who had very complex emotional
and social problems. However, we thought that some of these youth
could appropriately be served in an alternative residential setting.
In other words, a non-residential setting, and because of that, we
proposed to a number of community people the concept of davelop-
ing a day treatment center, which actually we talking
about the concept probably for about five years.

It was extremely difficult to develop the funding for this pro-
gram, and back then in about 1982, we took the concept to the Ju-
venile Justice Advisory Council and we, in fact, received a grant in
the amount of about $20,000 to develop an advanced, acoordmimbg
the Code, it is called, I believe, an advanced system for providi

services.

So, the PACE Program, an acronym that means Porter Avenue
Center for Education, was, in fact, developed at that time, serving
fifteen youth, who would otherwise be incarcerated in some type of
a secure type of facility.

If it was not for the funding that we received, quite frankly, we
would never have been able to develop PACE, and the reason for
that is because the child welfare field, farticularly the out-of-home
care field, is very seriously under-funded. So, all of our resources
were being used to support our program operations in the residen-
tial program which is an absolute key thing when you have a child
living out of home. You want t« have absolutely a quality program,
and we had to have this additional funding in order to develop the
PACE day treatment program.

So, that is, in effect, what has occurred. So, we have received
funding from the Juvenile Justice Advisory Council for several
years now that has enabled us to continue with this progrl;m.

In 1984, the program was expanded from fifteen to thirty youth,
and, so, the program has attracted considerable attention in the

Moines community by responding to these youth who other-
wise again would have been placed in some type of o:t-of-home fa-
cility in many cases.

So, the statistics in my testimony reflect that the—first of all,
the target population that we are serving is very much consistent
with the guidelines of the Act, and then there is also an evaluation
section that is provided in the testimony whica indicates that
about 61 or 62 percent of these youth following discharge have
been able to remain in their home, which we think is very signifi-
cant, and then, in ada.cion to that, we also found out through our
survey that the grogram has been abl» to—55 percent, 55.1 per-
cent, of the youth have not had any additional contact with the
criminal justice system, which we think is very significant.

In addition to that, we have about a ninety percent attendance
rate, about a twenty-six percent minority group that we are serv-
ing in the PACE l{'ogra.m at the present time, all of which we
think is extremely important. In fact, the PACE am has been
talked about recently as being one ible model to follow in
terms of helping to deinstitutionalize F!Edora.

There are a number of community people that have been meet-
ing and talking about the prospects of using this model in a way to
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work with some of the youth who otherwise would be placed in the
state training school.

I point out, however, that there is a bit of a part Jox. This yeur,
although the PACE Program is extremely effective, although we
are doing well with the program, we certainly want to improve—
there are areas in whick we need to improve, we continue to have
a major problem with funding, and this year, we had a shortfall
that required us to go out to the private corporate community and
ask for funds from various groups.

30, tor example, we solicited Aetna Foundation, Aetna Corpore-
tion. They provided some funds for this program. However, many
of the corporations are 11:1l;erested resitgc?mks an:ilntlnortar-type gf ro-
grams and are not terribly inte in providing program do
on an on-going basis because they simply do not want to make that
kind of commitment.

So, at the same time that we think PACE is on target and on
task with res to program, we continue to have a real problem
in terms of obtaining program dollars to keep the pro%mm intact.

So, at the same time it is being viewed as a possible option to
deinstitutionalize Eldora, we are also facing these funding cut-
backs. I can tell you that beciuse of the serious problem in terms
of funding out-of-home care for children, Orchard Place will not
have the dollars to underwrite the PACE am should we have
to do that. So, there are some real issues in there that seem to me
need to be addressed.

So, my recommendations are obviously (1) to continue the reau-
thorization of OJJDP. We think it is absolutely—I think it is abso-
lutely on target in terms of what it is doing. PACE would smﬁr
hg;re never happened unless these dollars would have been avail-
able.

And, then, secondly, we think that some consideration should be
given to continvaiion funding. I know, I understand the start-ap is
important, bu. we have a real problem in terms of attracting on-
going program dollars to support the type of program that we are
talking about with respect to the PACEyﬁogram.

[The prepared statement of Earl P. Kelly follows:]

REAUTHORIZATION OF THE JUVENILE JusTICE AND DELINQUENCY PRRVENTION ACT

My name is Earl P. Kelly, Executive Director, Orchard Place-Des Moines Chil-
drens Home, located in Des Moines, Iowa. My comments will be directed today
toward one of the programs operated by O.chard Place and the relationship of this
program, a Day Treatment Program, to the Juvenile Justice and Delinquen?;Pre-
vention Act. The Day Treatment Program is called PACE, an scronym that refers to
the Porter Avenue Center for Education (PACE). I will briefly describe Orchard
Place and then outline the develspment of PACE for you and its relationship to Ju-
venile Justice and conclude with rscommendutions.
past fow yoars has adied an ihoThe oot a R paooncy Yhich In the

years an ome program an e program in
torically, Orchard Place traces its rvots to June, 1886, when it was founded in this

community as a orp . In the early 1960’s the agency changed jts focus from
that of an o to that of a specialized facility mag:g seriously emotionally

came about because of a awareness in the
community that a facility neaded to be devel«;ped which could treat the groups of
children presenting themselves for treatment. Following a community n survey,
the program was retooled to serve the emotionally disturbed children of the commu-
nity. The model chosen to serve the children was a blend between a hospital model
and a schocl. Thus, the program that envolved is based upon clinical services, educa-
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the agency has one that was
a community-based residential facility which offered an alternative to large institu-

In the early seventies it became increasing dg:annttothomﬂ'thatwem

seeing more and more children referred for resi nrvieu.ntundwhxchnp-
mwmﬁnu toC~v in our community. Furthermore, our professional staff be-

A mmchildrennferndbutthatmehchﬂdm
had more complex probl. ms both individually and from a family perspecive. These
oburvaﬁonlm-hmwithourhrdmldmu-edwithmﬂ'utmdvely It
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mdehrmhedthatmezpdnmmhnwmm il developed
andmﬂedeunﬁllly.ewld ectively manage and treat some of the clients we were
not able tn serve in a residential setting. As early as the mid-seventies t1en we had
developer o davelopnm&w treatment program which would
serve the youth who would be placed out of home. The proposal
was to a fifteen tdaytmtmentpmgnmforyouthbotweentheagu
of fourteen and eighteen years l&e resented with a history of pre-delinquent and
delinquent behavior. The the residontial program, would focus on in-

dividualised treatment through a blend of clinica!, educational, and therapeutic ap-

ittolqythntthmmmmyhmemtothedmlopmentofthupro-
gram. It did no! fit the typical programs z state and county. Youth
wonnotlimgoutofhome,thulnotel‘ibmfor r care dollars, nor was the
PACE w compatible wit{: tti"rltenn for other funding streams. Proposals were
vmoungmupl o program was not regudedueonmmt
withthovarim gn , with the assistance of a number of
eommunity Orclmdl’laeawuableto negotiate conta cts with
tofHumnnServieesnndPolkCounty We were able to ob.ain in-
structional staff from the Des Moines Public Schools to ide the educational serv-
ices needed for the PACE program. However, even all the agreeement had
been worked out, we did not have sufficient funding to start PACE. It was at this
point in 1482 that Orchard Place made the PACE proposal to the lowa Juvenile Jus-
tice Advisory Council. Following their review, an award of $20,000 was made to
start the PACE program. This award was the factor in the development of the
PACE . Without the award, Orchard P would not have able to
with the Another development that occurred was the availabil-
ity of the form~r Kurtz Jr. High as a tialaiteforPACE Thuwumoatngi—
dentul ulit happened to be located the street from Orchard

’E

ed us to use some of our facllitiu for PA uth PACE o gg:d officially
ianmm'y, 1983, and almost immediately to capacity. use of the
numbers of referrals the was doubled in 1984 to accommodate thirty youth.

Pmenﬂythecapaclty P CEuntthmyyouth.Inaddmontotheﬁm:ward,
Orchard Place has praeented applications for amsistance to the Juvenile Justice
Council in 1985-86, and was awarded $33,510, $36,500 in 1986-87, and an award of
$20,000 for 1987-88. In addition, allocations have been received for

ment used at PACE. I would point out that Orchard Place would never ve
boen able to continue the PACE program without these grants from Juvenile Jus-

And euctly what has PACE been able to accomplish with the fundmg?
raise the question is the funding directed toward the éropmte
urgetgmp? emmwmeoftheﬁndmgsofthe th served at PACE. Since pro-
ﬁnm inception, one hun and sixtyseven youth have been served through the
ACE program. Of these th, 11% have been Children in Need of Assistance
(CINA), 36% hnve been adjudicated delmciment. 20% have received consent decrees
juvemleeourt,nndanothor 1% mferredtoPACEbytheoourt
on the basis of an informal adjustment. 75% of the youth have been in-
volvedwiththejuvenileeourt. remaining 26% wouldbaregnrdedu elin-
qu:lx::rfou oﬂantruantﬁ'omachool andu\‘r:rym bid‘ingtin;guntxleaug‘?:igy
au program is meeting target population of our comm
Second, how :aecﬂvo is the PACE program?
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from January, 1983, to June, 1986, Of this
survey results showed that 61% (N =23) of
ir families after discharge and did not require
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adaptation. This also ted some interesting findings rm.rdh? par-
enuofthoPACEmmmh.mwuﬁlfwﬁonwiththemat 'ACE was
noarly 70%. It also appeared that once students were involved with PACE their in-
terest and motivation to im in school incressed. Thus, it was also learned that
the attendance rate for PACE students was newrly 90%.

of youth being served at s"ACE and the evaluation completed to
date, it is readily t that PACE is an effective program system. 1t is clear as
well that without PACE servi 'eu'mminphoemanyofthoyouthwouldha\e
beonnferndtothomtammin%n system and such placement would have
been at considsrable cost to public funding bodies.
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was referred by his local achool and by the Juvenile Court approxi-
year ago. This young man lives in a rural area which has limited re-
sources for adolescents who are experiencing behavioral and emotional disorders.
The specific reasons for referral include: parental abandonment, community vandal-
ism, and i t disruptive behavior within the school setting. At the time of re-

ferral, Brad was living with a foster family that had taken him in as both his
ents had left the state and had transferred cunol? to this couple. Initially, m
was resistive as he mistrusted adults in general. He had no reason to believe that
thandultlutPACEwouldbelnydiﬂ‘orentthanthaonuhebndpreviously Tri-

enced. His history included: severe child abuse and neglect, marital discord,

abuse by the parents, and little nurt. *neodirectodtawudsthiqyoungmn.B
took on the facade of a macho young man and carried himself in that fashion for
some time. He had signi tblowupsof'ﬂarlndtantmminthoPACEpmgmm
e ot PAGE e od materia following servicss: individual therapy, family
e a recei services: indivi erapy,
therapy with the foster family, group therapy that addressed issues of chemical de-
pendency and servival skills. Brad received academic services and was able to
up some educational deficits. The peer group at PACE was especially impor-
tant for Brad as previously he had few friends. The friends that he did have tended
tobedelimi,uant, involved in the d n ofmﬁrty and aggressive toward
chance to positive relationshipe. Al-
though he had several regreasive episodes, Brad event learned to trust his ther-
apist, teachers, and the peer group. He demonstrated less impulsive r outbursts
and t_g'reatm' control of his behavior and feelings overall. Brad continued to live with
his foster family in his home community. He several igsues which remain criti-
cal for him. These include the neglect from his parents, the remaini community
service he has to complete for his delinquent acts prior to PACE, and the seduction
of previous friends that are involved in alcohol and drugs. To assist Brad with the
grl?-gn- he has made at PACE, the therapist has made weetl&home visits to see
im. After di Brad will be able to take advantage of after-care services co-
ordinated through PACE. .
Brad’s situation is parhc;‘l:élg bolic in that it demonstrates one of the central
h

£
1y

reasons for the funding of oung people may be diverted from state facilities
and remain within their home communities to receive treatment services and to
benefit from developing family ties. PACE offered individualized therapy services to
Brad and provided academic services. All of this impacted Brad through -.sisting
him in developing competence and confidence.

Brad’s struggle is not over. With any adolescent, one can expect a series of devel-
opmental crises which may trigger regressive behavior. Our expectations, however,
is that Frad will continue to receive needed therapeutic and academic services to
hel& him with his continued . Brad states directly that he is at gmte;ﬁawe
with himself now and is less likely to engage in further acts of delinquency. He has
asked to receive follow-up services from PACE. The foster family is in agreement
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ith this plan and the overall prognosis for this young man’s maintenance in the
unity is quite positive.
From the above discussion one can understand the relationship of Orchard Place
to the Juvenile Justice Agency. Through the Juvenile Justice Agency we have been
abletodevelop.hiﬁhlynweeuﬁdprogmmin .* » community to care for our youth
involved with the law. Because I have seen the impact of the Juvenile Justice
Aw through my association with PACE, an.] other observations "o:lrr?nm sup-
B,. bythem,lmgz:ndomthemuthoﬁnﬁonoftheh e Justice and
Ineonc'lnudlng these comments I would like to make several recoamendations for
on:

1. I recommend the re-authorization of the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Pre-
vention Act, noting the postive impact of Title If and Title Il of this Act

2. I recommended that withi e Act language is included enwmieontinu-
ation funding of programs. The context in which grants are a is such
that grants are toward “start up” initiatives and although multi-year fund-
ingumble,tpeempMmaybeplwedon“startup”attherinkofminimizing
support for

wish to ﬁncerefy thank the committee for the opportunity to present before you.
Mr. Kipe. Thank you. Garry.

STATEMENT OF GARRY HAMMOND, ASSISTANT EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR, HILLCREST FAMILY SERVICES, DUBUQUE, 1A

Mr. HaMmonp. 1, too, would like to thank the subcommittee for
the opportunity to be here today.

My name is Hammond. I am the Assistant Executive Di-
rector of Hillcrest Family Services in Dubuque. Hillcrest is a pri-
vate non-profit social service agency. We are affiliated with the
Methodist and Presbyterian Churches.

We have been providing services since approximately 1896. We
are a multiservice agency. One of our primary programs is resi-
dential treatment for emotionally-disturbed adolescent youth, and
also home-based services, where we go into the home and work
wiltuhr fa'll‘nilies in E:he home. G Could peak little bit?

. TAUKE. Excuse me, Garry. Could you s; up a little bit

Mr. HammonD. Sure. Okay.

Mr. TAUKE. These mikes are for the recorder. They do not carry
you that well.

Mr. Hammonp. Okay. One of Hillcrest’s most recent programs
has been the opening of an emergency co-ed ‘zouth shelter for
t}v:lll\ir: children, ages eleven through seventeen. We opened in May
o year.

Hillcrest received a t through the Iowa Criminal and Juve-
nile Justice Planning ncy and received approximately $35,000
in JJDP money. This money resulted in Hillcrest being able to
obtain an additional $40,000 from other sources. We were able to
mtﬁ the JJDP money as challenge money or seed money to obtain
other .

Without the OJJDP money, we simply would not have opened a
shelter. It is that simple.

In the two years Hillcrest worked on puttinito&ether a plan to
open a shelter, we did a good deal of research. We worked with
local juvenile court officials, officials from the Department of
Human Services, as well as private citizens.

Prior to Hillcrest opening its shelter in May of this year, chil-
dren in the Dubuque area and surrounding rural counties were
being sent all over Northeastern Iowa for emergency shelter serv-
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ices and many times, children were transported eighty-ninety miles
in order to be housed in an emergency shelter.

Some kids were simply not being served. Other children were
being inappropriately placed in foster homes that were not
equi] to deal with their needs. Other children were being
g inappropriately in jail. Now that we have a shelter in Du-

uque, these children are being served locally and there is no need
for shelter-appropriate youth to be placed in the local law enforce-
ment center.

When we began looking at the need for an emency uth ghel-
ter, we were told that approximately a hun youth per year
would need a shelter in the Dubuque area. We based our goals and
our t on serving a hundred youth per year. In our first six
months of operation, we have served a 111 youth. So, at this rate,
we are going to serve well over 200 youth in our first of oper-
ation. iously, Dubuque needed a shelter and the OJJDP money
was instrumental in that coming about.

Our shelter is a multi-service shelter. We try to serve a variety
of youth. We serve a good deal of runaway youth who are running
from abusive situations in their own home. We function many
times as a non-secured attention center and serve children who
have committed or have allegedly committed delinquent acts, and
there is not a detention center in Dubuque, so we many times take
those children who might be detention-appropriate.

We try to provide a variety of services to kids. We also do some
evaluation when requested and make recommendations. Youth
stay with us for as little as one day or as long as 30 days, up to 6
weeks. We have served kids as yot.m%‘aa:s six years old and as old as
seventeen. We have an on-grounds classroom for children who are
not from the school district, kids that are from the school district
attend public schools in the district. That helps maintain family

unity.

If you have a Dubuque child who is in the emergency shelter,
they can continue to go to their local school. That helps them
remain in the community and makes it much easier to have them
go back into their own homes.

Our staff are very busy with kids coming and going at all times.
All of our staff, from the program coordinator through the youth
care staff, have bachelor’s degrees in human services. Our youth
care staff, their average starting salary is under $11,000 a year be-
cause of funding limitations.

A secondary effect of the youth shelter in Dubuque and the
0JJDP mon% to provide some economic develom to Du-
buque. When Hillcrest begun the shelter project, our made a
decision to build a new facility because we could not find an ade-
quate facility in the community. This created a construction

roject. When the shelter opened, we hired 11 new staff. It created

1 full and part-time jobs in the community.

I would like to see—I would like to recommend that the Act be
reauthorized. In my working with kids for nearly twenty years, I
have seen frequently kids bei.nﬁ inappropriately label{ delin-
quent, and the term “delinquent” is used as a diagnosis that thay
are a lost cause, that nothing can happen to them, nothing good
can come of them.
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Kids who are adjudicated delinquent or considered delinquent
many times are looked at as perpetrators, as troublemakers. 1
thmz' we need to look at them as people who are many times vic-
tims, victims of child abuse, victims of sexual abuse, victims of pov-
erty, of inadequate school educational opportunities, kids who have
not had adequate opportunities, not just kids who need to be locked

up.

OJt.lIDP has helped change that orientation to a more positive ori-
entation.

I woula like to recommend an emphasis be placed on treatment
of delinquents, not just simply how to hang on to violent kids. Too
often, we see kids who are referred to us, who are referred way too
late in the game. I think a real emphasis needs to be placed on
good, strong initial diagnosis and evaluation of kids when they first
enter the system to accurately determine their needs.

Too often, we see kids who have to bounce through a series of
failures in the human service delivery system before they receive
an adequate level of service. Kids have to fail with office counsel-
ing when that is reaal}f not appropriate. They may need home-
based services. Kids fail in home-based services because they may
need residential treatment.

If we have a evaluation m, we can plug the gervice in
that is needed for that child, rather than have them experience a
sequence of failures. We see kids in our residential program that
have failed repeatedly at various levels of service interventicn. By
the time they come to us, they are defeated, depressed, and they
basically have given up on life.

It is very distressing to see a sixteen-year-old boy who basicall
hhia: l?fo hope for the future, has no idea what he is going to do witK

e.

An area that I think OJJDP can look at in terms of new empha-
sis is the educational system. Too often, we have seen the schools
be a hostile place for troubled youth, not kids just simply on pro-
grains but kids who are “acting out” in the community.

Schools view them as troublemakers and es beinfnvery time-con-
suming and they do not like to work with them. In the Dubuque
area, the school board lengthened the amount of time a troubled
child can be suspended from school. Troubled children should not
be suspended or expelled from school; they should be main-
streamed and kept in school wherever possible. If we are going to
turn these kids around, for many of them an adequate education is
the key and turning them into a taxpayer versus becoming a tax
burden to the community.

I would like to see JJDP work with Public Law 94-142, which is
Education of Handicapped Children. Many delinquent kids, if given
proper evaluation, would be determined to have educational handi-
cai: that would assist in their obtaining an adequate education.

summary, I would like to see you reauthorize JJDP. I think it
has had a positive impact on the state of Iowa, and particularly in
Dubuque. It is mone! well spent. I do not think the 1ssue is wheth-
er or not you should spend the money on this act, the question is

whether you want to spend it now or if you want to spend more
later. You can either put it into this Act or you can build more
prisons.
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Thank you.
[The prepared statement of Garry Hammond follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT or Garry A. HAMMOND

I would like to thank the Subcommittee on Human Resources for the opportunity
toulﬁfybefonyoumday.lgnamehGarryHammond,lamAnmnt ecutive
Director of Hillcrest Family Services in Dubuque, Iowa. Hillcrest is a private non-
profit, Methodist and rian church related multi-service, social service
agency. It is governed by a voluntary board of 27 trustees. Hillcrest Family Services
has been providing help to juveniles and youth in Dubuque since 1896. ntly,
Hillcrest provides the following to the Dubuque area: Adolescent Residen-
tial Treatment for emotio! and behaviorally disturbed youth in five facilities,
Family Planning, WIC, , and Home Based Services.

Hillcrest's residential programs in Dubuque are to providing services to
youth who are experiencing severe emotional and vioral difficulties. Many of
thess youtb have had encounters with law enforcement agencies, unsuccessful
school experiences and hlxhlyl‘ﬂﬁlﬁmcnonal family situations.

The most recent program Hillcrest began ofering is an Emergency Co-Ed Youth
Shelter for twelve youth ages 11-17. The Shelter opened in May of this year. The
Hillcrest Shelter received a grant of i talyﬁ.OOOfromthelowaCﬁminal
and Juvenile Justice Planning cy. This money was provided because of the Ju-
venile Justice and Delinquency tion Act. Simply stated, without the $35,000

the Hillcrest Shelter would not have been opened. The grant was used as
money which resulted in an additional $40,000 being raised from public and

spent approximately two years researching the need for a youth shelter
in Dubuque and building community support. M were held with officials
from the Juvenile Court as well as the Department of Human Services and private
citizens. Prior to the Youth Shelter being cpened, children in need of a youth shel-
ter were either being sent to out of town youth shelters that were an hour and a
half away or they would be underserved in foster homes or simply were not being
served. In some cases, youth may have been inatﬁmpriataly jailed because there
was not a shelter facility in the community. Now that there is a shelter in Dubuque
youth can be served locally and there is no need for shelter appropriate youth to be

placed in jail.

When Hillcrest was ing the need for an Emergency Youth Shelter in Du-
buque, we were told that we could expect to serve approximately 100 troubled youth
a year in ttﬁ::t}'hmtghf]heltu wl;e&and if we b;'u:ven Graat] pxl'oo%oulsthwe submxmlg
projected e ter woul utilized by ap; i youth per year.
our first six months of operation the Hillcrest south Shcl%ar has served approxi-
mately llltr;uth. At our current pace we will serve well over 200 youth per :
Olmouy Dubuque area needed a shelter and it is being heavily utilized. &m:
out *ha JJDP monies, the shelter would not be in operation today. .

Due to the wide variety of youth we serve the crest Youth Shelter is a multi-
service shelter. The shelter serves many runaway youth who are having severe con-
flict in their own home. We have served children who have been physically and/or

. We have provided non-secure detention services to youth who have
all y committed a delinquent act. The Shelter has privided uation services
when courts and referral workers were unsure of the need: of the youth.

We have had youth stay with us for as little as a day ana some youth have stayed
well over a month. mdg%r’hwithagumngingﬁ'omsixthmughmnteenm
epnsuntlyeominfan going. We have an on-grounds classroom for youth from out-
side of the school district. We have youth from the school district frequently going
to several different schools. Need!ess to say, the Shelter is a very busy place and a
verydemandingphcetowork.Alloftheﬁllltimeyouthcaremﬂ‘uwelluthe
pmfun coordinator have bachelor degrees in human services and many have prior
work experience in the field. The average starting salary for the direct care staff is
on..}‘vh$10,900 due to limitations.

e Juvenile Justice an D:l:guency Prevention Act was instrumental ip getting
the Hillcrest Shelter opened operational. The money we received thro the
JJDP Act is being put to good use to serve troubled youth in the uque
am'fholhelternndindirglzthomntmoneyhuhadamn effect in the
Dubuque area and that has been to provide in a small way economic development to
the community. The opening of the Hillcrest Shelter resulted in a construction
project and the bui of a new Shelter facility which created e:fx‘llfloyment omr-
tunities. When the Shelter opened, it also resulted in eleven new full and part time
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positions in the Dubuque area. So not only did the money through JJDP provide
needed services to troubled youth in the uque area it also created jobs.

I urge that the Juvenile Justice Deliquency tion Act be reauthorized. If re-
authorized, I would like to see a strong em is put on deliquency prevention serv-
ices and treatment of youth who are considered “delinquents”. In my nearly twenty
years of experience in working with troubled youth, I have all too frequently seen
the label of “delinquent” being inappropriately used to label a youth as a lost cause
who is nothing more than an un criminal who needs to be locked up. Delin-

uency is a legal adjudication, it is a clinical diagnosis. If society and the Federal
aovornment wishes to appropriately address the problem of Delinquency, then we
must understand who the “delinquents” are. Currently, Hillcrest is caring for up to
- 80 youth in our residential and shelter programs, most of these youth could be con-
sidered delinquent. When Hillcrest serves these youth we look at them not just as
delinquents or perpetrators of crimes but also as victims. Victims of chronic child
abuse, sexual abuse, alcoholic families, broken ramilies, kids who have been inad-
equately served in the schools, kids that have bounced around the system sometimes
for vyean never receiving an adequate level of service.
ith the reauthorization of the JJDP Act, I would like to recommend that an em-
phasis be placed upon the services to troubled youth who have committed delin-
quent acts. I believe through evaluation and needs assessment are imperative when
a youth is initially identified as having the potential for delinquency. Services
should be aimed at keeping the youth in their home, if possible. However, shelter
and residential treatment facilities also have much to offer youth experiencing
crisis. Too often youth are kept too long in their own homes or are offered services
that are inadequate to the needs of the youth. The concept of least restrictive care
has been prostituted many times to mean least expensive care. This has resulted in
youth who have experienced repeated failure with various gervice interventions
such as counseling, in-home services, which were inappropriate to the needs of the |
youth. 'When they are finally referred for residential services, we will see a youth |
who is severely depressed, has absolutely no self-esteem and no hope for the future.
They have failed literally at everything they have attempted in their lives, they
havf ﬂm up on themselves and society. Too often the services offered is too little
too late.
An area that I believe needs to be significantly strengthened is working with
school systems to provide increased services and sensitivity to youth who may be
considered delinquents. I believe the schools and education hold the key for succees
with a great many youtk. in determining whether or not they are going to become
burdens to taxpayers or become taxpayers themselves. All too often, schools are hoe-
tile nn:lmr:rcung of troubled youth. bled youth are viewed as interfering with
the no operation of the schools and of demanding too much time and attention.
In the Dubuque Community School Board lengthened the amount of time that a stu-
dent can be suspended. This is an inappropriate action for troubled youth in need.
“Delinquent” youth should not be segregated in separated programs and sePante
school buildings. The key for youth breaking out of the “delinquency pattern” is to
be mainstreamed so that they can improve and strengthen their self-esteem. This
cannot l:ﬂ)on if they are placed in separate buildings where they are then easi
labeled stigmatired. Delinquent youth need the opgrtunity to interact wil
“normal” youth. The JJDP Act and PL94-142 need to be coordinated in order to
maximize educational opportunities for delinquent youth. Often a delinquent youth
| has a learning disability or educational handicap which contributes to their delin-
quent behavior.
In uummarpr:veeneourm you to seek reauthorization of the Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency ntion Act. It has had a positive impact in the state of Iowa and
- the Dubugque community in particular. It is money well spent. It helps turns youth
who m:.ﬂo me burdens to taxpayers into taxpayers. The money srent on troubled
youth creates jobs and strengthens the economy. Personally, 1 would have no
problem with a tax increase if I knew the money was going into programs such as
this. The issue is not whether to spend the money. The issue is where the money
- will be spent. Society can make troubled youth a priority and commit the resources
necessary to adequately addrees the issue or society can build more prisons. Simply
ghdédlzcxety can pay now or pay more later. Thank you for the opportunity to be
re y.

Mr. Kipeg. Thank you, Garry. Mr. Swaim.
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STATEMENT OF JIM SWAIM, DIRECTOR, UNITED ACTION FOR
YOUTH, IOWA CITY, IA

Mr. Swamm. Thank you.
. I want to thank you all for the opportunity to speak this morn-

m%iy name is Jim Swaim. I have been involved in youth work for
eighteen years. The last fifteen years, I have been at United Action
for Youth in Iowa City, fourteen of those years as the Executive
Director

I was one of the original yonng peopmpointed to the State Ad-
visory Group here in Iowa and I se: on the State Advisory
Group for several years.

I was also a licensed foster parent for four years and helped raise
a foster teen-ager who is now twenty-seven ﬁea.m old.

also serve on the National Network of Runaway and Homeless
Youth Services Board of Directors and was last year’s symposium
chair and this year’s symposium chair, the Symposium on Run-
away and Homeless Youth.

And I want to take this opportunity to thank both of you for
i:ur active participation in symposium in Washington, D.C. I

ow we are not the biigest convention in Washi.agton. You will
probably get a lot of political credit for showing up at our meet-
ings, but we appreciate the extra effort and we are looking forward
to having breakfast withgu again this Februgl:ly.

United Action for Vouth was o ized in 1970. It is a communi-
ty-based youth service agency with a staff currently of eight full-
time people, myself included, four part-time people, fifteen adult
volunteers, about fifteen youth volunteers, and about fifteen people
who volunteer to serve on our Board of Directors.

Last year, we served over 500 young people and about a 130 per-
ents were involved in our counselling program. About 300 of the
young people that we were involved with were in our counselling
and intervention program, which includee services to runaway and
homeless youth, and about 200 of the young people we worked with
were involved in our comprehensive preventior. program, which in-
cludes an tla.rl:s studio and a video studio, that are available for
yo people.

I think it is important to recognize that if we want to prevent
delinquency, we have to offer young people creative opportunities
for positive youth development. So, our prevention program is an
example of one of those.

We operate our counselling program twenty-four hours a day,
and we have a staff person on call at all times to respond in person
toayoungpersonincrisisorboanaﬁer.cythathasencountereda
young person in crisis, most uen gea law enforcement agency
in Jowa City, the Coralville Police Department or the Johnson
County Sheriff or the Iowa City Police Department. If they encoun-
ter a runaway, they will contact our on-call counselor to come in
and deal with that young person so that that law officer can get
back out on the street as quickly as possible.

Last year, we served about a—of the young people we served in
our counselling program, about a 150 of them were runaway or
homeless or in a crisis within their families that was about to lead
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to a homeless episode. About eighty of those young people were
identified as victims of child abuse. We estimate that there were
many, many more that were not identified as sexually abused or
child abuse victims.

Our fundmﬁ as an agency is about forty percent local dollars
from local public units of government. The City of Iowa City and
the Johnson County Board of Supervisors. About twen rcent of
our funds come from private sources, including United Way. About
twenty percent of our funds come from state grants and about
twenty percent of our funds come from federal %:)nts, primatilK
kh;. Juvenile Justice Act and the Runaway and Homeless Yout

We also dget about $30,000 in in-kind donations and donated ma-
terials, and our budget is about $200,000 a year. I, of course, want
to recommend and commend {ou for your work on reintroducing
the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act and the Juvenile Justice
and Delinquency Prevention Act.

I think that those pieces of legislation have been almost essential
to our ability to provide the quality services that we do for young
people in our area. Using Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Pre-
vention funds, several years ago, we were able to expand our out-
reach program from a city program to a county and rural program.
So, we were able to expand our counselling to the rural parts of
Johnson County.

We were able to start our entire prevention program using Delin-
?uenﬁ Prevention Act funus. We were able to start our twenvt;'-
our hour crisis intervention program using JJDP funding. We
even had a mini-grant, a small $500 grant, that was from Juvenile
Justice funds, that allowed us to start our drama troupe, the
Dating Cellos, which has received now—it has been going on now
for about four years and this summer received a national award
from the Secretary of Health and Human Services.

Most recently, we are about to start a prod'lect, a jail alternative
project, in conjunction with Youth Homes, Bill McCarty is their Di-

r, and we are working on a joint project to provide an in-home
}i‘f:edgtion as an alternative to jail and that is solely using federal

We also this year, for the first time, are a direct grantee for Fed-
eral Basic Center Runaway Youth Act funds. This is a three-year
grant and, so, it is one of the few times that I do not have w0 look
to the local government to try and pick up the support.

In all of our use of the Juvenile Justice funds, our county, our
city and our United Way and our local contributors have picked up
the funding for those programs. So, I think our program represents
a prime example of how you can use seed money to start innova-
tive projects and if you are successful and you have the support of
your community, they will more often than not pick that up, al-
though I will comment that as cities and cour.ties face shortages
from the Federal Government, particularly revenue-sharing in our
case, where a lot of the funding the city was using to pay for
human services was coming from federal revenue-sharing, when
those funds dry up, it becomes even more difficult for communities,
even though they support this effort, to be able to do it just on
local taxpayer dollars.
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Our case also, United Action for Youth, has kind of an interest-
ing history in terms of onur involvement with the Runaway Youth
Act. We were originally funded—excuse me. We were original ap-
plicants for Runaway Youth funds, b\ t because of the competition,
a program in Cedar Rapids, Foundation II, had a much better
grant the first time around than we did.

Since that time, it has been very difficult for us to break in and
compete with the other basic centers here in Iowa because there is
limited funds. There is a state formula for what Iowa gets.

What that means is that if a new program, if you all are inter-
ested in funding a new program here in Iowa, a new basic center,
that you have to maka a decision as to which existing basic center
mu are going to defund. Our experience with that has been—I be-

ieve this afternoon, are you still visiting YESS, you are going to
visit one of the programs that we have had an interesting relation-

ship with.

Sﬁmrtly after we did not dget funded, a cou%lle of years later, we
finally did get funded as a delegate agency, which you might be fa-
miliar with, that is Foundation II in Rapids, we became part
of their basic center grant. In order to fund us, they defunded the
program in Des Moines, and we continued to be funded then for a
couple of years.

en, last year, in order to fund the p in Des Moines, we
were defunded. We lost all our funding. We found out about it in
August and it was retroactive to July 1st. This year, we competed
as & new basic cenier grant and we were y pleased to get
$42,000 in federal support. In fact, we would have stopped offering
oulx:t runaway program had we not been able to get the federal sup-

port.

The thing that was most discouraging and really frustrating and
just a tremendous letdown was that in order for us to get our fund-
ing, the E;;gram here in Des Moines had to get defunded. So, on
the one d, I am left feeling good that I can continue the pro-
gram in Jowa City and I am going to be able to serve the young
people that are in our area, but there is no comfort in knowing
that that happens at the expense of the many children who are
homeless here in Des Moines, and I think you have to address that
in the reauthorization, that if you are going to start new basic cen-
ters, which I think are abeolutely needed, you have to come up
with some way to not continue to defund many of the quality pro-
grams that exist around the country.

I want to depart from that for a minute and talk a little bit
about our regional network. I am also on the Board of Directors of
MINK, which is a regional network of runaway and homeless
youth service providers.

The MINK was organized in the late seventies to provide an op-
portunity for those people who are involved in youth work and
work with runaways to interact with each other and to share some
training with each other. We garimarily offer training and technical
assistance to each other. We have a Feneral idea exchsnge and co-
ordinate a number of projects, one of which was to do research on
what kinds of services are provided with the Runaway and Home-
less Youth Act money in our four-state region.
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The MINK, by the way, stands for Missouri, Iowa, Nebraska and
Kansas. I will save some time by just entering or offering that as
part of the record, but there are two things in there that I want to
point out. )

One is that the MINK agencies shelter about 387 young people
every month and that is encouraging. That is, there are almost 400
young people that we are able to provide shelter. The alarming sta-
tistic that came out of this study is that about 140 young people
are turned away every month from the shelters in our four-state

on.

t is an astounding figure. I talked with the Director of Foun-
dation II yesterday at our MINK meeting in Kansas City. In Octo-
ber, they turned away forty young people who were requesting
services voluntarily from their shelter.

Given all of the hype and the public attention to runaway and
homeless youth, how we can allow forty young people every month
to be turned away for lack of bed space is just shameful. It is par-
ticularly shameful in light of how communities respond when an
individual young person becomes missing.

I think it was about a year ago, a year and a half ago, a young
man left the Iowa State Fair and was missing for four days. Some
assumed abducted. His home community was able to raise tens of
thousands of dollars overnight to try and locate that young person
in the form of a reward. But, yet, that same community and com-
munities like that around this state are unable to raise that mone
to prevent young people from running away in the first place.

So, I would comment on that. I, of course, again, want to reiter-
ate my support for the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act and Ju-
venile Justice Act.

In closing, it was interesting to listen to Beje and some of the
other folks this morning. I am reminded of Cora Bussy Hillis, who
is a woman who was a child advocate here in Iowa at the turn of
the century. She worked in about 1910, from about 1910 to 1920.
She was active in what then was calied the Mother’s Congress,
which was a national movement to try and deal with child welfare
issues.

She tried to convince the legislature that we had to stop putting
kids in jail. In fact, she was able to get on the books back at about
1920 a law that would prohibit putting kids in jail.

So, it is frustrating to sit and think that we are about to ap-
proach the end 0! this century and that Cora Bussy Hillis' dream of
no children in jail is still yet to be realized. I hope by the time that
my daughter is a teen-ager, we will stop jailing kids in Iowa.

you.
[The prepared statement of Jim Swaim follows:]
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Thank vou Chajirman Kildee and Congressman Tauke for the
opportunity to appear before your committee today. My name is
Jim Swaim and I have been a youthworker for ei1ghteen years. For
the last fifteen years I have worked at United Action for Youth
in Iowa Citys lowa:, and for the last fourteen years I have been
the Executive Director there. ! was one of the original youth
appointees to the lowa SAG when it was first created and served
nine years as one of its members. My wife and | were also
licensed foster parents in lowa and raised a teen-aged foster
son. [ am currently on the Board of Directors of the National
Network of Runaway and Youth Services and am the Chairperson of

the upcoming Natinnal Symposium on Runaway and Homeless Youth.

1 appreciate the support you have shown in responding to the
needs of young people in this country. vYour encouragement each
year in meeting with youthworkers during the Symposium indicates
your commitment not only to the i1ssues affecting youth, but your
interest in the people who are trying to serve them. I look
forward to February 88 when we will visit you again during the

upcoming Symposium in Washington DC.

United Action for Youth was organized in 1970 as a community
based non-profit agency. Located in the heart of Iowa Caty, UAY
served over 500 youth and 130 parents last year. About 300 youth
were served i1n UAY’s counseling and intervention program and 200
were served 1n the prevention program. We have a staff of 8 full
time professionals, 4 part-time workers including youths 15 adult
volunteers, 15 youth volunteers, and a volunteer Soard of

Directors representing the broad interests of the community. I
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am attaching a brief program descraption as part of the record.

(attachment 1)

UAY provides counseling and crisis intervention to area youth and
families on a 24 hour per day basis and charges no fee for its
services. Of the youth served in the counseling program, about
150 were runawayss homeless; or in a family craisis about to lead
to an out of home episode. Nearly 80 youth were 1dentified
victims of abuse and maltreatment. I am also attaching the most

recent annual statistical summary for the record. (attachment 2)

Public funding allows UAY to be able to provide these services
without charging a fee. Our operating budget 1s over $200,000.
About 40% of that 1s from local units of governments 20% state
grantss 20% federal support, and 20% from praivate contraibutions
including the local United Way. We also receive in-kind support
of about $30,000 in the form of donated goods and services,

including the help of volunteers.

UAY represents a good example of how federal JIDP and RHYA funds
were intended to be used. Such funds have been essential in
developing our community programs and i1mproving local services.
Juvenile Justice funds allowed us to expand our lowa City program
to the rural pa-ts of Johnson County; they were used as seed
funds to develop our comprehensive prevention program; and they
allowed us to i1mplement our 24 hour per day craisis 1ntervention
capacity. In each of these cases, the local commumty has picked

up the financial support of the program after 1t has had

demonsirated a record of success. Even the mini-grants we
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received from lowa’s formula grants were used to start proje ts
that have become on-going pro¢-ams. OQOur drama troupe, known as
THE DATING CELLOS, was started with a mini-grant. The troupe 1s
now in its fourth year and this year received an outstanding
achievement award from the Department of Health and Human
Services for its success i1nvolving youth to help youth. UAY has
just begun an i1n~home detention program as an alternative to
locking children in adult ;ails. We are using JJ funds to ret

this off the ground and expect the program to continue with on-

going funds from :>e court.

Area youth have Q1su benefitted from RHYA funded services we
offer. You are aware of course that Iowa’s funds from RHYA have
remained at the same level for several years, about $223,000.
Level funding :s a reality for mos:. ~tates since the nat:onal
funding level has 3t increased. At the same tine, Congress has
encouraged the start-.p of new “Basic Centers" to serve the
growing nezlg of runaway and homeless youth. Our progran was
funded as a sub-contracting or "delegate" agency through an
original strengthening grant to Foundation Il Shelter, a basic
center 1n Cedar Rapids. To do this, a program in Des Moines was
de-funded. Last year our sub-contract with Foundation Il was de-
funded to start a new basic center i1n Des Moines, YESS. T 1s
year UAY rece"ved a basic center grant, but again at the expense
of de-funding YESS 1n Des Moines. Simply puts RHYA funding must
increase 1f this chaotic system of funding and de-funding 1§ to
end. There are more th « thirty states 1n which similar probl ams

have occurred. While I don’t advocate continued funding 1f a
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program iy not meeting standards set forth in the Runaway Youth
Act, 1t seems wasteful fiscal po'icy to start and stop programs
that are demonstrating success in their communities in order to

9§vn the appearance of being able to open new centers elsewnere-

I am attaching for the record, (attachment 3) a survey of the
services provided by agencies which are members of MINK, a
regional network of youth services funded under the Networking
grants from RHYA. (MINK stands for Missouri, Iowa, Nebraskas and
Kansas, the four states 1n region VII) Given the limited funds
i agencies and basic centers, the training and information
sharing that networking provides is an essential element i1n our
success with troubled youth and families. You will note the vast
services MINK agencies offer to youth at risk. The survey 1s
part of our effort to help with the Youth 2000 project now
underway. While the survey indicates we have effective services
in which we can take pride, it also points to a shameful realaity
faced by runaway and homeless youth i1n Iowa, the regions and the
r %ion. While providing shelter to 387 young people each month,
we are turning away 139 runaway and homeless youth because of
being at capacity. The shelter 1n Cedar Rapids turned away 40
youth in October alone because thev were already full. A nation
that boasts of 1ts compassion for the needy should not tolerate
turning 1ts back on homeless children, especially those who are

voluntarily eseking help.

The Networking grants allow us to gather this type of information

as well as other important data about the needs of youth and
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families. As I mentioned, networking also allows us several

training opportunities at a very very low cost. At a time when
b public service is often ridiculeds 1t is good to qet together
with one’s professional peers to celebrate success and exchange
ideas that have worked in other communities. Training fees for
= 30 staff to attend a national conference would probably cost
$10,000 while the cost of a MINK training event for the same

number of people has been less than $2,000.

In looking at i1ssues raised during re-authorization, I encourage
you to look at strengthening linkages called for in RHYA. An
important linkage to consider would be one with community mental
health agencies as well as area health care providers. The
emotional wounds many abused runaway and homeless youth suffer
require healing and care beyond the limited scope of a shelter
staff. I also encourage you to look at a special focus on
homeless youth similar to the focus previously i1n the act around
"chronic" runaways. I’m sure you aluo want to keep intact the
strong emphasis on youth participation. Since UAY has been
successful in developing effective prevention programs, I would
encourage you to look at putting some emphasis i1n that area as
well. I hope all four funding areas will be maintained *~ the
act: Basic Centersi Networkingj the Hotline} and discretionary

research.

In the JJOP Act I°m certain of your commitment to remove
children from jails. I think our programs have demonstrated the

success of continued formula grants to states. Without this

funding we will lose th2 many years of progress for which we have

i
| .
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worked so hard since 1974.

In summarys 1 commend you for taking the time to find out what
the practical impact of JIDP anu RHYA has been in lowa. I v
encourage re-authorzation and a continuation of the effort to
respond to runaway and homelass youth without locking them 1in
adult jails. I know you will be compelled to mention the federal
budget deficit as limiting what can be spent on our nation’s
youth. As my Congressman, your colleagues Dave Nagle pointed out
to me recently, we spend more money in a month keeping the space
exploring vehicle Galileo, safely theltered on the ground
awaiting launch, than we spend 1n a year providing safe shelter
to t+e hundreds of thousands of runaway yout. who are asking for

help.

I’m reminded of one of the inspired Iowa children’s advocates of
the early 20th century. Cora Bussey Hillis wac part ~f the
National Mothers’ Congress in 1899. She was committed to making
the world a safer, healthier place for children and was one of
the first lowars to ask the legislature to stop the practice of
jai1ling children with adults. She helped draft Iova’s first
juvenile code and took on the enormous task of asking the
legislature tn create a chi1ld development institute at the
University of lowa. After a decade of «ffort and enduring
personal suffering and tragedy i1n her own family, Cora found the
legislature wau close to appropriating the funds needed for her
dream. Tha 1914 sesc.on 5f ‘he lowa iegislature was closing and,

faced with ¢ @ ¢’ pice of 2 new sheep carn for the state fair or
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the child development institute,; decided the needs of the sheep
were more pressing. Ccra was only that much more commitied to
her cause for children. Uhen 80% of the boys examined i1n Des
Moines failed their World War I draft physical, Cora was finally
successful in shaming lowa to provide the funds needed for the
Child-Welfare Research Station. I hope you can convince your
colleagues that we can afford as much to shelter youth today as
we spend sheltering one space craft in a year. Thank you for

your consideration.

Attachments:

1) United Action for Youth agency profile and pragram
description.

2) United Action for Youth FY87 statistical summary.
3) MINK Network youth service summary.

4)

MINK newsletters, fall 87.

sSUMMET ,
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| et
! % UNITED ACTION FOR YOUTH / Synthesis Studio

' 410 lowaAve./P.O.Box 892/ lowa City, IA 52240 *
(319) 338-7518

ey

DNITED ACTION FPOR YOULN, INC. (UAY) is o privata, non-profit, community agency fundsd
primarily by local and stata govaramant, aa vell as by Unitad Way. UAY providss tha
folloving programs for young peopla, agas 12-18, in Johnson County. Sarvices ars
available at no charge to all Johnson County youth.

COMMSELING: UAY accapts refarrals for individual and family counsaling from parants,
enciaa and school counsalors. Conflict mediation is offarad to sraveit or to
reaeolve a criais; such as a runavay problam, family saperation or subatanca abusa.

CRISIS INTERVEWYION: UAY counaalors ara availabla on a 24 hour basis to raapond to
adolascants/familias in criais. Call 338-7518 at any time and an un-call counaslor
ia aveilabla to respond in person.

RN \Y SERVICES: UAY offars mediation and counsaling sarvices to resolve problams
afora a young person runs away. With family cooperation, time-outs can also ba
s”ranged as an altarnetiva to running. Counsalors are aleo aveilabla to sssist
Youth/families in tha avant of a runaway crisis.

SUPPORT GRUUPS: For young peopla or adults who ehara na. Support groups
for parants of adolascants, children of alcoholics, saxually abusad adolescantas, and
s group for racovsring chemically dapend adol s, will ba mada available to
inte.sstad youth/parants.

FEER COORSELING: Training groups for young peopla who are intarastad in improving thair
intarsceion s*ills, laarning about halping rasources in tha community and building
$ pear support group ara baing providas throughout tha yaar.

ERCRRATION:s UAY sponsors group raecraation activitias including vollay:all, bsskatbsll,
friabas golf, oriantaaring, natura bikes, camp outs, fslconry, and swimming. UAY will
slao vork with achools or groups in outlying ittas of Joh County to schadula
rscraational gceivities. Individual recraation programs can also ba srrangs .

PORT SERVICES FOR VICTINS OF ADUSE: Individual counaaling and advocacy for sdolascants
wvho heva basn aexually or physically ebusad; additional advocacy givan to edolascsn..
fnvolvsd in tha court procasa. Educational sassions will ba offared for psrants snd
victims throughout tha yaar on tha effacts of saxual ebusa and prav ntion stratsgiaa

. in conjunction with Lutheran Socis] Sarvicas.

COSUNICATION WAKSHOPS: Assists participants in diminiahing passive aud aggrsssivs

bshavior and ieproving fealings of salf-control. Assartiva responsss to vsrious
social situstions such ss dacas, psrtias and paar conflicts are practicad.

UAY is tox-exempt—contributions ore tox-deductible
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SYUTHRSIS ARTS WORKSEOP: Lessone end studio time ere eveileble to young people in our
new mueic recording etudio, television production, super 8 enimatiorn, I5MM bleck
end vhite photogrephy, cersmice, guiter, keyboarde, end slectronic music. In edditiom,
speciel workshope ere periodically scheduled. Syntheeis will vieit individuel achool
cleserooms for workshops in say of thess srees.

SITUATIONAL DEAMA: A performing drama troupe comprised of sres high echool studente
portreye pro%.em eituatious feced by children end teenagers. "The Deting Celloe™
ie in 1Ce fourth yser end has parformed in 20 eree ochools and numerous community
end professional groups. All performances include the eudience in ¢ guided die-
cussion. Performance topice currently include pPeer pressure, substence ebuse,
children of slcoholice, sexual ebuse, domestic violence, runving ewey, ehop lifting
end helping others. The troupe has openinge for high school studente interested in
drams end theetre.

SJEAKKRS DUREAU: UAY steff ere svailebls to spesk to clesses, persnt groups end community
orgenizations on e veriety of topice: Teen Runeweys, Child Sefety, Juvenile Justice,
Adolescent Sexuality or other topice of interest.

TUTORING: Volunteer high school end college students will provide help to young people
wventing to improve their ecedemic skills. Tutoring ectivities ere individually
arranged end ser:ione ere held et the UAY office. Every summer ¢ three week refresher
clese is offered to iaprove Math end English ekille of 7th, 8th end 9th greders.

PERSONAL SAFPETY WORKSHOPS: Treininge for teechers, childcere workers and parente ere
offered covering such topice ge child sexuel sbuse prevention, sandetory reporting,
self-esteem building end discipline techniques. Self-protection workshope ere offered
for sdolescent groups. Sefety skille end asssrtive responses ere empheeized.

PARENT SUPPURT SERVICES: Counselors sre aveileble to discuse parenting of edolescents
with individuele. Breinetomming options end information on youth issues ere offered
to eseist families in vorking on their own. Steff ere especielly skilled in the
erees of discipline, sexuelity, step-families end coamunicetion.

THIS IS UAY'S STAFF ROSTER. CALL TUEM FOR MORE INFORMATION.

Jia Sweinm = Executive Director
Ginny Neso = Counseling Director
Linde Nelson - Prevention Director
Ken Schmidt ~ Family Crisies Counselor
Cesey 0'Connor =~ Victim Support Counselor
Sam Thompson = Prevention Counselor
Mark Jensen = Youth Counsslor
Myrne Frentz-

Gerherd = Youth Counselcr
Pedro Bicchieri = In-home Counselor
Rechel Kay - Secretery, Bookkesper
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o YOUTH SERVED
Carryovers
Referrals In

Intakas

Crisis Intervention
Referrals OQut

o Clfent Characteristice

Male
Female

lowa City metro area
Small towns/rural

In school
Oropout
Out of school (grad)

Participating in Synthesis

RECORDED C!IENT CONTACTS

o Ared of Conflict

Law
Housing
Medical
Drugs
Family
School
Emoloyment
Self

Pee-s

Othar

%o conflict
Domestic Violence
Child Abuse

Jul-Sep
15T
QTR

4

UNLIEY ALIIUN FOR YQUTH
OUTREACH PROGRAM
Guarterly Program Report Form

Fiscal Yeargy

—Ogtodec_____janMyr
N0 YRTOf 3RD YRTO
QTR _OATE | QTR DATE

ANNUAL

(%)

75
3

EDS

120
8%
53

208

91

162
37

363

197
88

22

L 1]
20

59

37
60

336

119

8 2

3 2

43 26
190 0 110 420
163 267 100 W7
98 151 122 273
239 467 304 751
521 912 400 1312
278 440 207 647
91 178 113 291
278 64l n 1018
m 570 254 824
8 176 16 192
479 811 286 1097
158 45 200

511

110
43

161
112

158
2'
435
227
113
439
e
35
ns
50
166

162

20

76

81
459

431

482
1747

874
404
1457
113
247
1415

253
655
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¢ Service Rendered, Contac

Crisis Intervent{on
Ombudsperson
Counseling
Consultatien
Intake Heeds Assessment
I&R
Followup
Pravent{on
Other
'3 s Calls

° &aﬁ_’g‘a Yource
Socfal Service Agency
School
Law Enforcement
Ind{ividual
Other

e Location of Contact

Office

Synthes{s
Recreation Center
School

Home

Agency

Youth hangout
Telephone

Other

Court
¢ ACTIVITIES/NO. ATTEMDING

Drug Seminars

Peer Helper Sessions
KRecreation
Electronic Arcs

oring
Assert. Training
os

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

page 2
United Action for Youth
FY g7 Outreach Report
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UMITRD ACTION POR YOUTH
SYNTHRSIS PROGRAM ,.
Quarterly Program Report Fora
Piscal Year 1986

. B B BB AP @
YOUTH PARTICIPATING
Phase 1 52 52 55 - 47 129
Phase 11 23 22 19 - 17 2 !
Phase IIX L] ] 8 1l 18 L
Drop-ins 2 10 H 16 34
PARTICIPANT CEARACTSRISTICS
Mev Clients 25 27 52 35 87 40 17
Mle 49 54 56 57 135
Pemale 36 e 31 33 74
lova City Metro Arse 79 76 76 86 178
Small Towns, gursl 1) 16 11 14 )Y
In school 73 7 63 81 180
Drop Out 3 4 6 6 11
Out of School {graduate) 9 10 8 H 18
WORXSTOP/STUDIO USE
Days Open 45 s1 96 s1 147 63 210
Bours open 267 257 521 253 774 344 1118
Sign-ins 328 608 936 469 1405 437 1842
staff '.cs. oucwside wkshop 167 222 389 200 589 167 756
Botcs video checkout 30 114 144 84 228 84 312
Sound Studio checkout 109 108 214 79 292 153 445

Proto/pottery studio ch. 3/2% 16724 19/49 3¥/8  52/%7 12/4 64/61

FROJECTS COMPLETED/IN PROG.
Sourd /2 1110 32/12  12/8  44/20 24/6  €8/26
Video 1/s s/18  €/23  13/3  19/26  8/% 29/31
#nimatien 4/4 m /5 21 16 9/0 22/6
Photography 2/1 s/1 72 73 1415 0/0 1415
Ceranjcs WO e/4 A4 3 W AN 15/17
Paint o0  6/0 e 12 170 2/2
Drama ongoisg biwgakiy with the 'mig CeMos® -
9 x TI0M
# Mini wkehoPs/# par. 13/ 21/139 34/237 89  42/327  18/100 60/427
- 8 Major wkehops/¢ pazr. 0/0  ©0/0 A0  1/20 1720 /v 26
Yolmteer staff 2 . s S 13 a 17
1341 lessons 39 &5 _ja4 £ 1% s T 13
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1987 REPORT ON
SERVICES, STRENGTHS & NEEDS OF
MISSOURI, IOWA, KANSAS, NEBRASKA (MINK)
YOUTH SERVING AGENCIES
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This data is for the calendar year January 1, 1986 to
December 31, 1986. Thaa data reflects “esults of a survey from 21
MINK agencies. (List attached)
MINK is an acronym for Missouri, Iowa, Nebraska, Kansas. MINK
is a network of youth serving agencies in the four state area. The
organization responsible for data input is MINK. ’
Youth 2000 is a prcjram cosponsored by the Department of
Labor and the Department of Health and Human Services with the
participation of the Department of Education. The program’s ain is
to heighten national awareness about the nature and extent of the
employment prospects and problems of today’s young people, and -
promote solutions to these problems. )
Youth 2000 is designed to meet the following objectives:
* Reduce the incidence of teen pregnancy
* Reduce substance abuse amony young people
* Reduce the mortality rate from unintentional injury and
suicide
* Increase the reading and general literacy levels of youth
* Increase child development oppcrtunities with strong
parental involvement
The following numbe*s and percentages reflect the number of
programs provided by the J4INK agencies that meet the Youth 2000
objectives.
* REDUCE THE INCIDENCE OF TEEN PREGNANCY
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
Prevention presentations from community - 48%
Prevention presentations from staff - 52%
Counseling for pregnant teens ~ 57%
Shelter for pregnant teens - 57%
M.Educational programs for pregnant teens - 48%
Ry
Wi Provide education materisls - 67% b
.
. 52
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Additional services listed by the agencies:

Support groups by staff

Young mothers ’ group

Community services group

Young fathers’ support group

Grandparents® support group

Information on child development und fetal alcohol
syndrome

Resi*~ntial program

Project Hope-federal grant

Educational material provided through Birthright,
Inc.

Prevention through education and improved self
esteen

Referrals for teens to receive services from Health
Department for teen mothers

Referrals to Planned Parenthood

* REDUCE SUBSTANCE ABUSE AMONG YOUNG PEOPLE

90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
308
20%
10%

%mxpport groups for children of alcoholics - 38%

Provide educational materials regarding
substance abuse - 86%

\Recovcry programs - 19%
Relapse prevention programs - 19%

EE% Counseling for substance abuse related problems - 48%
rip i

33& Family counseling for children of alcoholics - 19%

L

+'+ Prevention presentations from community - 52%

Preveniion presentations from staff - 62%
S\ Crisis line - 52%

a3
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Additional services listed by the agencies:

Comaunity education inservice treatment training

Drama troupe-situational drama performances and
electronic arts

2 recovery houses for up to 35 teens

ADA Contract to serve youth

AA Alanon group

*Just Say No To Drugs" Club sponsored by Optimists
Club

Aftercare shelter for youth in primary treatment

Counseling on limited basis

Referrals to drug program, community resources,
etc.

* REDUCE THE MORTALITY RATE FROM UNINTENTIONAL INJURY AND SUICIDE

90%
80%
70%
60%

508

Lot
et

40%

W
L

30%
20%
10%

Suicide prevention programs -
Suicide intervention programs - 38%
3 Provide educational materials regarding suicide,etc.
238 Provide shelter to homeless - 86%

Self-esteem groups or presentations - 90%

.“ Self-esteem materials - 62%

‘etsi Bating disorders programs - 10%




- 51

Additional services listed by the agencies:
Summer youth employment program focuses on safety
Telephone crisis l.ne

Refe-~als
v * INCREASE THE READING AND GENERAL LITERACY LEVELS OF YOUTH
80%
N 70%
-% . Tutoring programs - 57%
60%
In-house achool - 57%
50% .
Parentirg programs - 14%
40% S
. GED programs - 38%
308 o.‘.:fo
1 oo Vocational training - 19%
20%
Referral services - 71%
10%
Additional services listed by the agencies:
Pre-employment skills training programs for eligible
youth on-the-j}ob and in-classroom training
Career Awareness Program for teen girls
Liaison with schools to assure attendance and
assi~« with special needs as well as
comp) tion :{ homework
* INCREASE CHILD DEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITIES WITH STRONG PARENTAL
INVOLVEMENT
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
Child care - 29%
Child abuse :nd neglect - 57%
* §¢ Child sexual abuse - 52%
.

ox
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| ERIC

e

]




52

Child welfare services - 38%

Family counseling - 52%

o
'79‘ Head start - 5% ‘
{0 .

o Spouse abuse and neglect - 10%
Therapeutic daycare - 19%
Therapeutic foster care - 10%

Additional services listed by the agencies:
Training for parents a-4 day care centers with sexual

shuse curriculum

Volunteer training assists aduits jn communication
skills with children

"Kidability" classes to prevent child abuse,
especially, sexual abuge

IN ADDITION TO THRE PROGRAMS THAT MEE™ THE YOU'TH 2000
OBJECTIVES, THESE ADDITIONAL PROGRAMS WERE MARKED BY THE AGENCIES
AS BEING IN USE.

90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
42%
30%
20%
10%

Aftercare for runaways - 62%

Community based living - 19%°

56
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Continuing care - 14%
Employment - 29%
Group homes - 52%
Housing - 24%
a2 Independent living - 38% j

Information and referral - 86%

nahY
ﬁﬁgln-houe care - 29%

t Long term care - 24%

Medical - 24%
Respite care - 14%

Volunteere - 678

Addicionsl services lisesd by the =genci
Semi-independent living
Shelter for victims of abuse and rape
Qutreach program for juvenile delinquents
Emergency care outreach services
Latch-key program after school and in summer
Out-patient counseling to avert shelter placement

THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION WAS ALSO GAINED FROM THE SURVEY:
CATCHMENT AREA FOR THE MINK AGENCIES (Agencies were allowed

to check more than one.) Catchment area is the area that the
agency serves.

100%
903 S8
80% AR
.I,\,\x
4 A
70% AN
414 :
RN
60% /\\/‘7’\ National - 24%
1\4\‘
508 A State - 67%
N2 VI
- LAy
408 A7¢ 3% County - 91%
30 4 e
~,\’ ’ *,* City -~ 62%
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The total number of staff employed 'y the MINK agencies with
the high and low answers in parentheses.

574 full time 246 part time 430 volunteer

(97) (0) (66) (2) (90) (0)

average § 27 average § 12 average § 20

The total number of shelter staff employed by each
organization with the high and low answers in parentheses.

158 full time 171 part time 122 volunteer

(30) (0) (92) (0) (25) (0)

average § 8 average § 8 average § 6

81% of the organizations provide shelter. 19% dou not.
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387 people are provided shelter in an average month. The high
and low answers were 69 and 5, respectively. The average number
for a program is 23.

139 people are turned away from shelters in an average month.
T 2 high and low answers were 42 and 0, respectively. The average
number for a program is 8.

81% of the organizations do outreach. 19% do not. Outreach is
promoting community awareness through presentations and speeches
to churches, civic organizations, professional organizations,
classrooms, etc.

-

A, ) 4. 6.0.6 ¢ &
Y

muo outreach '
mom reach :]

17
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The total number of people reached in an average month by the
organizations is 2,387. The high and low answers were 779 and 10,
respectively. The average nmber for a program is 140.

The average annual opervting budyet breaks down as follows
(Only 38% of the agencies wer. abpove average.):

Cannn ~ EState funding
£\ VA Donations
; \ EI]Pederal funding
/ 0N . HHS grant
County funding

[I]Local funding
mprog ram income

THE POLLOWING WERE IDENTIFIED AS STRENGTHS BY THE MINK AGENCIES:

I. STAFF
A. Case management tecii.ajue
B. Personnel and program management capabilities
C. Committed staff with low staff turnover
D. Interviewing and selection process for staff
B. Staff support system
F. Professionally trained staff - M.S.W., M.A., Ph.D. and
consulting psychiatrists
G. Holistic approach to treatment

II. COMMUNITY SUPPORT
A. Advisory boards
B. Strong community support
C. Active Board of Directors
D. Successful outreach efforts in community
E. Support of court, human service and schools
F. Networking with community agencies
G. Volunteers
H. Networking with city resources
I. Bigh visibility

III. SERVICES
A. Crisis
1. Identifying abuse victims
2. z4-hour crisis intervention
3. High success rate with runaways
4. Work well with victims of sexual abuse
5. Suicide prevention and intervention

ERIC 59
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B. Bducetion
1. Bducetionel programs
2. Grod elternative school
3. 88% of youth invulved in school program
4. Baployebility remediation and self-sufficiency skill
training and career development gervices for
high-risk youth
5. Bduzation continuation .
6. Bducetional resource center
C. Counseling, Therapy end Aftercare
1. Residential counseling
2. Family counseling program
3. Ongoing counseling
4. Individuelized attention for youth and their families
5. Outpatient therapy
6. Long-term cere including aftercare programs involving
reintegrating youth back in their home with family
counseling and follow-up
7. Family reunification through family systems
counseling
8. 30 days in residency evaluation program
D. Misc.
1. Prevention programs
2, Health assessment ( are systems
3. Service tor minority clients
4, Structured sheiter care for court ordered ciients
5. Strong youth participation program
6. Strong residential programs
7. Comprehensive services to youth and their families

IV. MISCELLANEOUS STRENGTHS

A. Sucress in helping serious juvenile delinquents in
community end out of training school

8, Low incidence of runaways from shelter

C. Success with children Irom failed placement elsewhere

D. High rate of low-income and minority participants

E. 80% of youth go to appropriate :lacements

F. Majority of placements return home

TOE FOLLOWING WERE IDEMNTIFIED AS CONCERNS AND NEEDS BY THE MINK
AGENCIES:

I. COMMUNITY SUPPORT
A. Development of agency pool willing and able (2 participate
in collaborative efforts
B. Volunteer coordination
C. Outre~ch program
D. Educate the general public on gocial service needs
statewide

II. SERVICES
A. Vocational and educational needs
B. Resources to meet demands
C. More beds to meet shelter needs
D. Counseling for sexual abuse victims
E. Expansion of emergency shelter
F. More living space
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G. Training programs

H. Bxpansion of services to meet client needs
I. Bxtensive drug treatment

J. Development of family support for residents

II1I. PUNDING
A. Competitive salaries
B. Capital improvement fu»ds
C. Inadequate funding for shelter program and agency

D. Long hours and accelerated burnout due to inadequate funds

for staffing

E. Low state commitment in dollars to human services

F. Funding

G. Broaden funding base for school

H. Funding is inadequate for staff compensation

I. Reduction of state funding forcing workers to pull youth
before they are ready to leave

J. Cost per day far exceeds what state reimburses at

K. County dollars drying up

IV. MISCELLANLOUS

A. Iriciative in counselirg from residents and families

B. Juvenile just.ce system not operating effectively

C. Referring age-cies still learning how to use shelter

D. Coordination of evaluation and assessment and placement
planning with juvenile court and Depar:ment of Human
Sexvices

E. Devclopment of alternatives to the placement of children
in adult jails

The organizations that participated in this survey and data
rcscasch are listed below:

Children’s Square U.S.A.

Chapter 1 Runaway Program

500 North 7th Street

Council Bluffs, Iowa 51502

Frank Kros, Director of Chapter 1 Runaway Program

Comprehensive Human Service

The Front Door

P.O. Box 1367

Columbia, Missouri 65205

(314) 874-8684

Charles H, Servey, III, Execirtive Director

Father Duns/~’s Home For Boys

853 Dun> Road

Florissant, MisJouri 63031

(314) 837-0.13

Gerald w. Hayes, Program Director

Poundution II, Inc.

Four ation II Youth Shelter
1251 3rd Avenue SE

Cedar Rapids, Iowa 52403

(319) 362-2176

Steve Meyer, Executive Director

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:
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Francia Lawer Youth Services

Suite 201, 2 south Adams

Mason City, Iowa 50401

(515) 423-7312

Bruce Hoffmaster, Executive Director

Girls’ Club of Sioux City
723 Myrtle Street
S8ioux City, Iowa 51103

.{712) 252-1088

Susan Houchin-La Luz, Executive Director

Iowa Comprehensive Manpower Services, Inc.
Various Youth Employment Projec:s

1216 High Street

Des Moines, Iowa 50010

(515) 245-7800

James D. Underwood, Executive Director

Marian Hall Emercency Shelter
325 North Newstead

St. Louis, Missouri 63103

(314) 531-0511

Patricia Bednara, Administrator
Panhandle Community Service
Panhand}e Youth Shelter

3350 North 10th, Box 668
Gering, Nelraska 69341

(308) 635-3089

Joan Cromer, Executive Lirector

Polk County Youth Services
Polk County Youth Shelter
1548 Hull Avenue

Des Moines, Iowa 50316
(£15) 286-3674

Jerry Kopke, Director

South Central Youth and Family Services Commission
P.O. Box 355

Indianola, Iowa 50125

(515) 961-8421

Phil Wooderson, Executive Director

Synerqgy House, Inc.

Synergy House

P.O. Box 12181

Parkville, Missouri 64152

(816) 741-8700

Jack McClu-e, %xecutive Director

United Action Por Youth

Box 892

Iowa City, Iowa 52244

Jim Swaim, Executive Director

o
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United Methodist Youthville, Inc.
OCasis I .

P.O. Box 210

Newton, Kansas 67114

(316) 283-1950

Bill Preston, Newton Cumpus Director

Valley Shelter Homes, Inc.

942 Marquette Street

Davenport, Iowa 52804

(319) 323-8094

John McBride. Executive Director

Wyandotte House, Inc.

Neutrul Ground

632 Tauromes

Kansas City, Kansas 66101

(913) 342-9332

Clarence Small, Program Director

Youth Emergency Scrvices and Shelter of Iowa
921 Pleasant

Des Moines, Iowa 50309

(515) 243-7825

Susan Gehring, Executive Director

Youth Emergency Service of Missouri
6816 Washington

St. Louis, Missouri 63130

(314) 862-1334

Linda James, Executive Director

Youth In Heed

Youth In Need Sheiter-YIN House

529 Jefferson Street

St., Charles, Missouri 63301

(314) 946-3771

Liza Andisw-Miller, Executive Director

Youth Service System

PFreeway Station

2202 South 1l1th

Lincoln, Nebraska 68502

(402) 475-6261

Mary Fran Flood, Executive Director

Youth Shelter Services, Inc.

Multi-level Projects

P.O, Box 1628

Ames, Iowa 50010

(515) 232-4331

Margaret Hess, Prevention/Education Director

LEn)
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MINK memb2rs discuss presentations at the pravention
conference. Photo by Linda Nelson

Prevention Training
Conference

MINK sponsored a training confersnce June 18-19th in
lowa Clty, lowa 45 participants, including 15 youth,
attended from the four state area

With the focus on youth paticipation and prevention
programming, particinants attended workshops on the
theory of prevention, Child Sexual Abuse Prevention,
Using the Media Arts as an Approach to Prevention and
Using Situational Drame  There was time also set aside
for MINK member input 1o the MINK Board andfar Youth-
fo-Youth Networking faciitated by Susie Norbeck,
NNRAYS Youth rep Board member from our region

Participants b~ a chance ta tour the Synthesis studio at
United Action for Yow.: (and make many bizarre noises
with the new synthesizers). Participants were also
traated 1o a performance by the award-winning *Dating
Ceflos™ drama troupe as part of the presentation on
situational drama

Linda Nelson

MINK Staff Exchanges

On June 25-26, Youth Emergency Service from Belivue,
NE sponsored a group staff sxchange in Omeha. with
the help of Jennifer O'Leary’a coordination, 23 MINK
agency members attended insesvice training by Dennis
Meter, Synergy House, on "Treating Sexual Abusse in a
Residential Setting * Mink agencies from Des Moines,
Lincoln, lowa City, Belivue, Sioux Clty and Parkvilewere
represented.

Another exchange took place earlier in th< Spring when
Hesther Soener, YESS staffperson from Des Moines
vieh d Poject SAFE PLACE a5 begun by the YMCA
She.ter for Runaways, Louisville, KY.,

Ext .anges to happen late this sui mer will be between
the Partandle Youth Services in Scottsbiutf, NE and
shelters in Wy~ming as well as between the Girls Ciub of
Sloux City and prevention services at United Action Fo,
Youth, lowa City.

if you are interssied in a staif exchange onportunity,
please contact the MINK office with your idea

Marla Nelson




Youth 2000

1 sttendhd the Youth 2000 Conlerence in Kansas City.
Youth 2000 has been designed and enacted 1o alisviete
the grewing prblems of youth. The program Is co-
sponsored by the Department of Labor and the Depart-
ment of Education. Youth 2000's aim is 10 heighten
awarenses about the nature and extent of the employ-
mmmm.mdw'mm
mmmu

the proportion of entering the labor force
who are not prepe.ad for employment and seli-suff-
clencywill inoresss Americacannot afiord

substantially.
10 lose a gensralion of youlh 10 poverty and despair.

mmnmamhmumm
mﬂunmmmu Some
W

individusl involvement include:
* Schools must siretch beyond the traditional teaching of

* Mieracy is a ariical issue and communities need 1
begin fo make a frontal attack on Mlera. 7 through pre-
special inkiatives. Anyone who

g
g

about vocations that students may pursue. Community
and familes can interact by offering spe-
clal servions and support.

T .81-604 0 - 88 -~ 3
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about this goal. | urge you 1 join your efforis 10 the
national Youth 2000 program and do your part in your
mmﬂylorhoooddknﬂhm‘lm‘l

Jack H. McChre

MIN: Annual Meeting
and Rural Gather-in

September 20-22 are the dales for the fourth MINK
asnnual meeling and for the thid annual rural caucus
Gather-in. Once again, the joint conference will be heid
at the lowa State 4-H camp near Madrid, lowa. The
setting Is a lovely, psaceiul one that is very conducive 1o
sharing and working. The weather in late Seplember
should be lovely as well, allowing for more outdoor
activities then in the past.

The mestings will begin with a MINK Board of Directors

At the general membership

Board members for the upcoming year will be elected.
Potential candidates are now being sought and anyone
interested shouid contact Jack McClure in tha MINK
office — (817 741-8700.

Monday and Tuseday will be trainin days with two
tracks offered. One track will primaniy be for MINK
agencies and the topic will be supervision skils. This
fopic Includes issues such as conflict management,
team-buliding, and creative for anyone

The second track will be for agency people involved with
the Rural Caucus and will focus on advocacy -

Youth participation is sncouraged inthe three day svent
and, ¥ enough youth register, special evenis will be
planned by and for youth members. The confsrence is
agreat one % include youth in because of the very low
cost. MINK wili pay for the lodging and meals for alithose
aftending from member agencies. Only transportation
must be furnished by the agencies Each agency may
sendseverairepresentatives Registration materials will
be mailed out in mid-summer

Susan Houchin-Laluz
i
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REP" ~ ON NNKHYS
BOARD MEETING
4/30/87 - 81387

L SUMMARY

mmmuummnum
advocacy, especially the work on reauthorization of
OWDP aad RYHA and the Younger Americans Act.

K. PPAL ( Public policy, Advocacy and Linkages
Commities )

Most of the PPAL business was follow up o the “big™

They slso develped a rationale for increased
funding for RHYA which has since been sent o you in
the . Susan Ho:shin—Laluz cheired
PPALhnnmdMM lows was dis-
cussed in fight of the uling on enforcement of jail
removal.

X MST ( Membership, Standarde, and Training
Conwittes )

MST was o have addressed & proposal to lum operation
of Youthnet over 1o a subcontract with Youhwhd
Megiora Oregon. Tne was acied un Uy e
exscutive committes instead and Youthnet will remain &
m responsibifty of Lupe Lopez in the NNRYS DC

The Wester states confiict (requiring dual membership

Anaftorney advised the board thet the agreemat was in
fact in conftict with NNRYS by-laws and Wesiem States
hesbeensent a new agresment Aleo Hawaii requested
designating & new Pacific isiands region. They have
been advised that this would also be in conflict with
current by-laws.

Network News wilt be continued o affiliate who will be
asked to pay & subscription, however no one wil be
dropped since this is a valuable marketing 100! for new
memberships of NNRYS. Youth aleo want & youth to
youth newsletter which will be tried on a imited basis. |
will also be sending all current federal grantees an
Invitation 1o join NNRYS. We have several in region ViI
who are not direct members.

LA PMB (Personal, Managemert, and Budget
Committes)

Anew staff poestion of Fund Developer was created and
wil be filed some time this year. The “Change for
Children” campaign was put on hold for & ysar, 80 MINK
shouid go ahead on its ownwith otherregions There are
no other major fund raising efforts ready for implemen-
tation at this time.

RIC
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V. SYMPOSIUM 88 powe

Dates were st for the 8-, week of February starting on
Sunday Januesy 31 7.the Omni Shorsham inDC. Make
your plans nov:. | am looking for ideas on corporate
sponsorship at | ast for youth paticipation. Please get
me ideas and a theme.

VL GENERAL

The Minority Task Force ls complete and the Minorkty
Caucus will continue during the year. They are looking

The
wnuuwmmnwmm‘mm
Jonathan Cutier’s role 88 honorary cheir for &
nuhml youth policy (YOUNG AMERICANS ACT).
Susan Houchin- Lakuz announced the nural think tank in
Madrid and we wil get some paricipents from other
regions.

1 would like MINK 10 be thinking of who might serve as
Reglonal Rep next year 0 that we cen Legin information
and skill buliding for that person. | am planning to not
sesk that posiion & fourth ime. Rk was fun ©o be part of
the MiNKblock with Susan Houchin-Lakuz and Susie
WThmMMbmnhm
Jim Swaim

Region VI Representative, NNRYS Board of Directors

YOUTH VOICE
on NNR&YS Board

1t looks as ¥ this ls going 10 be an excling year on the
NNRAYS Board of Dk sctorsl With many new members,
Including three new youth perticipanits, there seems ©
be & strong sense of vilality and poektive energy present.
As one of the three new youth board members, { found

time Wae've had very <0iid support from the Board snd
11 continue to report ¢  these projects develop

Susan D. Norbeck .




Youth In Need Young Moms Program

While teenage parenthood is laden with risks and costs
foraltconcemad, Ris a reallty thet must be accepted and
deait with in the most consiructive menner possiie. The
aitude that ieen pregriancy and parenthood can be an
opporiunity for character development is helpiul for
those confronted with the problem.

“In some cases the adolescent mother is able t0 shift
what could be a very interrupting force In her iile Into a
more positive direction.” Buchholz and Gol contend that
for many esnage mothers, “the gratification she exper-
uﬂmhm-mmmmm

porative for pianning treatment and parent education
programs that will maximize the positive behavior shown

&y many of thass teonagers,” they conckuds.

Youth in Need's Young Moms Project focuses on help-
ing young parents do tne best job of parenting ey cun.
By providing support groups and counseling for young
perents, YIN hopes thet the potential traumes of preg-
nancy snd parenihood can be minimized. Young par-
onts &0 e.couraged 1o examine their futures, their

relationshipe
staft member for the Young Moms program, also helps
hmwnm-m-nnm

helping shouid contact Jan Wilson or Liza Andrew-Miller
a1948-3771

During 1987 the St. Charles Community Councll and
YoumlnNndwlfowoonnnpmbbmoImnm
nancy and parenthood in St. Charles County. This group

wiki explore the problems, the resource” «d the gaps in
uwbumodo:bymm::mmw
one interesied in pasticipating ir s county-wide elfort
should con.act Judy Loeffler,948-7200 or Liza Andrew-
Mier at Youth in Need, 9483771,

Young Mom's is funded by the Children's Trust Fund.
Help prevent child shuse. FHl in Line 26C on your
Missouri State income Tax Form.

( Reprinted from the River City News
YIN, St.Charles,MO )

Project
SAFE PLACE X

Project SAFE PLACE officially openedin Des Moines, 1A
#umnd W VESS, oii suiws 1, 150, & @ being weil
received and supported community.
People are learning sbout the program via the media,
posters and signs thet are displayed through-out the clty,
andword of mouth. Sudent cards were distributed to ol
Des Moines High School youth in May, and will be re-
issud 10 all students ingrades 7-12 inthe fall. Aleo, in-
person presentations will be made at eac’ of the Junior
High and High Schools beginning in September.

Currently, there are a total of 25 SAFE PLACE shes
orlented and open 10 serve youth. There are 18 certitied,
trained volunteers through-out the clty; with another 14
scheduled 10 be trained on June 29. To date, we have
had 8 youths utize the SAFE PLACE program, 3 by
caling in after leaming about the service, and 5 by going
10 SAFE PLACE sites. Of those 5 youth, 3 came to the
shelter; one for 8 days and the other two for less than 8

Wa ere receiving very positive reparts sbout Project
SAFE PLACE from ske employees, volunteers, busi-
ness and Human Service , community
citizens, and most importantly, the youth \nemseives.
We expect that Project SAFE PLACE will continue 1o
grow and prosper as more and more people become
famiiiar with &.

Heather Soener
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PROGRAM PROFILE el
The Synthesis Arts Workshop,
A Positive Alternative for Youth

BACKGROUND

The Synthesis Program has been operating as a part of
Unied Action for Youth in lowa Cly since 1978. Devel-
oped as an innovative approach 1o prevent delinquency,
Synthesis was orginally funded in pant with crime pre-
vention funds from the Law Enforcement Assistance

" Usingthe artsinwork with children is nc: a new ides. Arts

therapy can be noted in eerly Youth prog. . s of juvenile
inatiutions of the ninteen thirtiss. Use of the ants in
is sleo not new. In 1968 the

ary 1978; Joumnal of Criminal Justi~e, March 1976)
concept of posltive pesr culture was the subject of
several books and articies at the time and the notion of
delinquency as a leamed behavior was aleo written
about These ideas lead some youth workers 10 explore
the leaming process of adolescents, expecially in non-
school settings, as & means to improve delinguency
prevention.

& 5w pagmenp
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Prevention hus taken on a more prominent role in youth
work today in part becauss of the emphasis of the
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act and
perhaps as & result of groups such as the Nationel
Committes 10 Prevent Child Abuse and the Prevention

makers. in an age do. . inated by technology, helping
youth master electronic music recording or teaching
them how to use a video came a or procuce & documen-
fary televigion show are obvious means of empower-
ment

DAY TODA' PERATIONS

Synthesis is open Tuseday thregh Saturday, after
school anv evening. There is one wiltime coordinator,
two part-ime youth siatf and about filteen rugu: ar volun-
teors including consulting artists. Some of the youth staft
are paid through; JTPA or other lacal jobe programs and
last yoar seve ral regular voluntesrs recsived college or
hinh scheat credit for their work.

continued onpage 8
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Lust yoar the Synthesis Arts Workshop served 208
Johneon County youth, 127 were new 10 the program
that year with 130 in school, 11 dropped out (several
more relumed 15 school during tha year) and 17 were
recent high school graduates.

and 74 females in the program. Sixty-two of the partici-
plﬂlmabohvo».thAY’lCoumolingund
unmmbnmlmwmwnnmm 147 youthonly
participated in prevention programs  Participants come
1 the program in a number of ways. Whila some are
refared by other agencies or schuols, others hear about
the program trom the outreach efforts of UAY, from
P @nts or from advertising Most however find out by
word of mouth from peers and al servizes are voluntary

Q
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FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT

Synthesis offers a broad range of arts

&mwm-mdﬂmlmmmm
rehearsal space and no equipment. WRE some areas,
such ss , W loun out 35mm cameras, use
maymbnumrdmmomlorpm' 9. Wa also
have a Super-2 camera 1o loan kids inta &ted in ank-
mated and other forms of fim-making. F . some tradi-
ﬂondmluivlbomhmmdbu:dovdomm
oqulpmmm-lloomovpoﬂmwhod. Wahaveour
ownpoﬂabbvﬂwoqubrwmundbrvbooomquhmn
Io'olodlknmhaw-mloodlmuodumhoely

recording studio for individuals
and local bands 1o use (a1 8 channel mixer, a 4 channel
udlomd.lddmwlnoordu.zdnw
mm“ndbnoldodnbmﬁhndombum.

Lonnie Vivians, Synthesis Arts

Workshop, videotapes
MINK conference presentations. Photoby Linda Nelson

mics, stands, audio tape, eic). Wa siso have instru-
mmtomlnmﬂcpmduubnwlum(lbwlc
guitars and amps, drume, pianos, and acoustic Quiars
which can be checked out to those taking leesons). Our
newest addition is our slectronic music production center
whichincludes an oider Ap synthesizar >« 'eli a8 3 new
synthesizers (inckiing a sampler), a sequencer, drum
machine, mixar, and 4 channel cassette recorder

Contrary to how axtensive and “high tech” this al might
seund, this is not in a glamorous facility UAY Is located
ina house in a residential part of town and the “studio” s
crammed in a smal upstairs room. The workshop
maintaine an informal, drop-in spirit.

o
D
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YOUTH
PARTICIPATION & LEADERSHIP

mmmuumuy:ummwmmm

share of the power in a program’s decision-mekixy An
arts workshop such as Synthesis provides an excellent
wmﬂy for helping youth deveiop thees

Besides the positive ¢:5,erlences to be had by agency
cllents and community youth in as ants . Syn-
mmmumwmwnmm
who have the time, energy, and commiitment 10 leam
new skills and provide leadership in goveming the pro-
gram  Participants are eager to be educated to i
leadership roles as well as 10 be role mudeis for other
clients In crisls.

UAY maintaing severs! youth participation sfioris within
s programs  One such effont is the

Synthesis Youth Advisory Board. This group mests
monthly 10 help Synthesis ctalf plan programming, make
decigionsanc ' ~*iate projects. These meetings are open
10 all pertici -y and about 10% ¢! Synthes's cllents
participate. Minutes and meeting aotices are sent 1o
Inform and remind youth: of meetinge The mestings are
informal and besed on consensus decision-maling with
youth rotating leadership roles. in the pest they have
heiped with developing the aricntation education phi-
losophy, deciding scheduies, ar 1 aseessing siudio

The crientation rap developad by the youth advisory
hoard and steft is the inktial step towards educating and
empowsring youth participants as 19 their rights and
responsbilities in the progran. AR youth coming into the
program are requested to recieve this information The
orientation is educational in that & informs youtl. of the
setvices and opportunities both in the Synthesis pro-
gram and UAY's Counsaeling and intervention program
Wa also use this Inkial opportunity 10 begin the process
ol empowering thess youth by exchanging contracts
regarding thelr rights and responsibilties in the program

The idea behind this process of orentauon education
and signed agreements is to set an initial posiive atmos-
phere in which participants understand what we do,
where they fi in and how impartant they are as volun-
teers contributing back to the program for other youth,
We explain our funding and participants understand that
we charge no feas for services, equipment use, lessons

-3
<

The Deting Cellos Drama Troupe perform for MINK.
Photo by Linda Newson

or matv. ais . We desire their time and input, not their
money, to keep the program going. The are cherished
a$ a resource

Synthesis also includes an award winning drama troupe
composed of area youth who volunteer their time and
talents to pérform scenes about various issues of con-
cem to young people. The DATING CELLOS, as thay
are known. have performed in over twenty schools and
for dozens of youth groups and conferences about
fopics ranging from child abuse and running away to sex
role stereotyping and peer pressure. Each scene is
followed by a discussion with the audience about what
they viewed and how they might respond in a similar
siuation,

The group rehearses weekly and ls open to new particl-
pants atvarioustimes inthe year. DATINGCELLOS has
developed over thirty differeni scenes about problems
faced by youth. The process of the troupe is an excellent
example of the type of leadership development that can
occur. Troupe members pick a subject (eg. dating
violence); bring in guest speakers and written resources
on the topic {rape line staff, local crime statistics); dis-
¢.. ssthe Information and their own personal experiences
and idmas an the subject, then work together as a group
1o develop a scene which will stimutate discussion by the
intended audievce

continuedonpage 8
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The Dating Cellos Drama Troupe perform for MINK. Photo by Linda Nelson

SYNTHESIS
continued from page 7

A MUSICIAN'S VIEW
OF CHILDREN

Each second we live is a new and unique moment of the
universe, 8 moment tha. never was before and neverw!

know what you are? You are 8 marvsl. You are unique.
In all of the world there is no other child exactly ike you.
Inthe miions of years that have passed, there has never
been a child xke you. And look at your bedy- what g
wonder & is! Your lege, your arme, your cunning finpers,
the way you move! You may become a Shakespearo, a
Michelangeio. a Besthoven. You have the capactity for

ERIC
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anything. Yees, you are amarvel. Andwhen you growup,
can you then harm another who is, #ke you, & marvel?
You muetcherigshone snother. You mustwork - we must
ak work - 10 make *hig workd worthy of Rs children.

Linda Nelson and Jim Swaim

Drama Troupe Receives Award

In June, & was my Ot aul pieasurs 10 go wih tie Dating
Ceflos on thek first major out of state performance
opportunity Although ik was difficuk to arrange all the
logistics to leave the greststataof lowa, i was well worth
the effort.

The dramatroups, represented by five young people and
our fan.less leader, Jim Swaim, headed out from lowa
Clty at 5:00 am on Wednesday, June 10 10 arrive in
Kansas Clty eary enough to participata in the awards
preseniation segment of Jean Eiders address (Jean
Eider is the Assistant Secretary of Heakh and Human
Services) Along with the Kansas City Cobras Marching
Band, the Dating Cellos drama troupe was being pre-
senied with an award 10 recogniza our efforts 10 heip
other young people.

Wa arrived on time and after quick showars and a
change of clothes, we anxiously hurried down the large
assembly room Whenourtime came, we made our way
up the podivm and proudly acrepted our award ltwas
a very exciting experience ta be publicly recognized for
our work

Susan D Norbeck
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POEMS FROM YOUTH

SYNERGY HOUSE, PARKVILLE, MO. ft"

Forward into eemity,
tha journey ol my soul.
Completion of the task at hand,
being true 0 my goal.
Writing down the prophecy,
knowing that what | seek i3 true
Ths is the journey past ife,
into uncentainty

To all the staff

At Synergy house

¥ou made me laugh

The: scatter like a mouse

You taught me manners
and different styles

So here's our banner
keep X out of my files

You made my stay here
A lesson (o iearn

You'rs all so sincere

So now I'f adjourn.

ERIC iz
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As | look in the mirror,

1 000 the reflection of a child
Waiting to grow up,

But not quite ready to let go..
Urreure of whether to play
with the doll

or push R aside

one moment longing

No, not quie ready yel.
1 pict: up the dolf
and closs the door.

“Graphics by Collean Ceover, youth boand member,
United Action for Youth, lowa City, IA.”
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An by Colleen Coover
INCREASES FOR FOSTER CARE ~ *ne 11.1987
PAYMENTS VETOED The Honorable Terry E Branstsd, Govemor

On June 10 Govemnor Branstad incluced increases in
state foster care payments among the Rems that he
vetoed Soagnottoappesrpartisan, iwillquotea recent
Des Moines Register article which | feel fairly describes
what has happened hers. Thwere is certainly enough
biame 1o bepassed around o ef parties onthe in-fighting
and disagresments between the political principals in-
voived in this drama, which has resulted in our being
caughtinthe croes fire, and being left with zero Increase
forthe coming year, earing in mind that over the last two
yoars we have sustained cuts “About $2 7 mitlion was
erased from the budget that wuukd have paid for in-
creases in reimbursements to fostar parents end group
homes..... The, $2.7 millon was part of ahout $8 milllion
cu from spending that would have aided day-care serv-
ices, family planning, nursing home residents, care for
mentaly retarded and dieabled lowans, and a multitude
of othersocialservices... The cuts

* resulted from disagraements betwen iawmakers
an. wgoverrsronhow  ‘evisethe state'sincome tax
system and for @ $2 4 bitlion state budget.... Be-
cause of those and other ditferences, lawmakers and
Branelad falled to concur on how much money was
available in the state budget. Although Democrats who
control the Legislatrre say they left town with a $9 miliion
belance inthe til, Branstad maintained he hadto cut $35
milion or the state would have been 'eft with e deficit
Sranstad is now saying the budget will have a $2 million
surpius  he approves a second *ill passed during the
Legisiature’s special session that raises $25 million in
taxes from businesses °

John McBride

State Capitol
Des Moines, IA 50319

Dear Govemor Brandstad

In line ftern vetos to make up aprojected shonfall in raxt
year's statd budget. you have cut orograms for depend-
entchildren, chikdren nshelter homes andgroup homes,
and children in the not-for-proft institutions across lowa
that have taken the place of orphanages.

While funding for many programs and personns! w1s left
intact or ncreased, you have chosen to reduce desper-
ately neededfunds forthe care of horeless and depend-
ent children

In 1985 and again /n 1986, funds fo providers of state
foster care were cut - by 3 39% and by 2 7% repectively
Now, for the third year in 8 row, we have beengiven the
third, and deepest cut - 6 5%

1 protest in the strongest possible terms resolving fiscal
problems at the expense of dapendent and ,omelass
children, £nd | ca¥l upon you 1) reverse this clear and
harmiul pattemof declining support for chikiren who are
the responsibility of the State of lowa

Sincerely,

John D McBride
Prasident
lowa Shelter and Dstention Association

/
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at the Girls Club

Reducing the high school cop-out rale and helping
young children protect themseives from sexual abuse
are the focus of programs made possbie by grants
received recently by The Girs’ Club of Sioux Cly.

Girls’ Club stat” and voluntee:s have begun & series of
Kidabiity workshope 10 teach approximately 150 Sioux
Cly children how o recognize and prevent child abuse
Theworkshops, funded in part by a priority grant fromthe
Unked Way of Slouxiand, ane being offered 10 children at
the Girls’ Club and at other locations throughout the city

“Child sbuse, particularly sexual sbuse, is one of the
most troubling problems facing our community,” says
Girle' Club program direcior, Jan Klimiadas “Reports of
saxual sbuse are 0 numerous that the Department of
Human Services has declared ltse¥ in 1 crisis.”

Kiabity is & skift-buliding prevention program designed
10 increas 2 children's confidence and abliity 10 protect
themselves. T™e workchops heip children identify po-
tentially unsafe altustions and ways to svoid them. Kids
aleo leam 0 Letwesn good and problem
touches, and leam how and whom to as> #.r help

In cooperation with Western lowa Technical College,
The Girls’ Club =f Sioux City is 1ieo developing a Career
Awareness Program designed for Aicadvantaged youth
ages 18-21 The program, funded by federal education
dofiare, provides

A sutvey of local Jrop-outs revealed that they would not
haveleft achool ¥ their feelings of self-worth and interper-
sonal reiationships had been positive

“Our goal for this program,’ says Tammy Sobieski-Joy,
program courdinator, e to Improve the seli-esteem of
our gile 30 that they will be better prepared as yong
women 10 provide for themssives and thelr families,
alone if necessary.”

The primary purpose of any Girle Club, anvithe Girls Club
of Sioux Clty is no exception, is 10 pravent those activities
which cause negative labsling and low se-estesmn Al
of the programe at the Club build on & girf's strengths and
teach her new skills 50 that she can feel better about
hersall,

Specilically targetted for prevention activities atthe Club
are adoiescent pregnancy, drug and alcohol abuse,and
child saxual abuse. Information about being female is
built into several classes that are offered for giris in
cifferent £ge groups. The information is age appropriate
and good decision-making skilis are taught

"4

RIC

Tivoughout all of the summer's prevention activiies at
the Girts Club, youth zre involved in & major way. The
Club has five summer youth employment siots andthree
were {Ped by Girts Club members. Youth empioyees fill
s variety of jobs, from gymnasium supervieor 1o arts and
crafigteacher. in addiion to the JTPA empicyees, many
of the Club's teen memhers volunteer their services at
the Club Asaelect group of teen members who are inthe
Career Awareness Program are avallable to volunteer
for community projects as well. Al in all, the Jirds Club
depends heavlly on youth workers to deliver saivices 10
its younger members. Neediess t0 say, they provide &
great dource of role-modeling for the younger girls.

Susan Houchin-Laluz

From our MINK President .....
Dear MiNCise,

This year is flyin by! Most of tf.e group activities of this
fiscal year are completed. There are a few staf! ox-
changes that ar. being done, and some sifs visks wil be
taking place. T.»e National Training wil take piace in
Minneapolis and many MINK folks wil panicipate! | hope
to see you there!

Our Annual Meeting will be in Madrid, lows, September
20-22. Mot only is this our third annual meeting, but & is
&is0 sur third annual rural Caucus mesting  Notonly wil
this be a benef to you in making and kesping MINK
friends, but thers will also be folks from around the nation
interested in Rural lssuss.

The election of Board members and officers will take

Houckin-Laiz has agreed fo chair the Nom iating
Commiise  Please be open o the Nominating
Committee's ssking you to be a willing participate.

The Board President and Regional Representative are
sl9ctad atiarpe. A State Representative is chosen by the

from each state Thers are 2 *-large seats
elected fom membership. The Past . .ident also
serves on the Board,

! want fo encourage those of you who have not had
occasion fo be as active in our MINK activities to be
assertive and get invoived

Sincersly,

Jack H McClure
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NEWSLETTER INPUT SOUGHT

If you have any suggestions / announcements / artcies
/ideas/ photos/graphics/ letters /comments/elc about
the MINK Newsletter, please sendthem to Linda Nelsun,
Edhor, c/o Unked Action ror Youth, 311 N. Linn St., lowa’
Chty, IA 52240.

DEAR ABBY

Dear Abby

'm 15 years oid | have a serious problem with my Dad

He has been sexually abusir.g me for the past 10 years.
i tried to stop him, but | couldn't 'm pregnant and he is
the father [can’ttel my mother Even i | could it would
be of no use. She's on a constant high [t’s ali my fault

What shouid | do ?

Desperate
Dear Desperate,

Firstof all, t's not your fault  You shoulkd 12 someore —
afrend, the police, or youlrus* Si has
to be told  Your father 15 seriously il and needs heip
Once you make the first step, things will become easier
to deal with because you woii't be alons.

Good Luck! | care.
byDC

Reprinted from the No Name News. Marlan Hall Sheher,
St Lowss, MO
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Mr. KiLozz. Thank you very much, Jim.
Bill McCarty.

STATEMENT OF BILL McCARTY, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, YOUTH
HOMES, INC., IOWA CITY, IA

Mr. McCarTy. Thank you.

I am suifering from laryngitis. So, forgive me. I will try to keep
my comments brief and save my voice for the question and answer
period as much as ible.

I am Executive Di r of Youth Homes, Incorporated, in Iowa
City. We are a private non-profit child welfare agency, much like
the other agencies represented here. I have been working in Iowa’s
child welfare and juvenile justice system for the past eighteen

years.

Among my other past responsibilities, they have included county
director otl‘.d{:;enile detention and emergency shelter facilities,
county coordinator of delinquency prevention services, and state ju-
venile parole officer.

My present agency, Youth Homes, operates an emergencv shelter
program, a residcatial treatment program, an iudependent living
grogram, and as Jim mentioned, together with United Action for

outh, we are establishing an in-home detention program.

I would like to comment primarily this morning on the issue of
the jail provisions. It seems to me from my experience and from
the comments that I have heard others over the years, that
that is the area that generates the primary contrc.2rsy and con-
cern around the Act.

Without question, the limitations on the use of adult jails do
impose hardships and inconveniences on local law enforcement and
juvenile justice officials. On themfositive side, the combination of
the limitations on the use of jail and the funding that we have
been talking about here for innovative programs has led to the de-
}relopment of nuraerous programs and services for these children in

owa.

I am a co-founder and iast president of the Iowa Shelter and De-
tention Association, which is an organization of nineteen agencies
that provide alternatives to jail for children in Jowa, and that orga-
nization, I do not k=lieve there is an agen?' in that organization
that was not either founded v. nad e: ed their services pro-
grams to children using funds from the Juvenile Justice and Delin-
quency Prevention Act.

So, it has had a very positive effsct and hes led to the develop-
ment of many good programs here in Iowa. Good alternatives. The
problem, it seems to me, is that these alternatives, such as shelter
care, {~-home detention, secure juvenile detention, these services
are not available universally in all parts of the state, and it seems
to me then that the dilemma that you face in reauthorization of
the Act is do you soften the stan of jails, adult jails, or do you
try to ensure that the alternatives are available throughout Iowa
gd gl;troughout the state, the other states that are participating in

e Act.

And I guess, you know, my feeling, and I think the feeling of the
other people on thir panel certainly is that in view of the negative
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impact of jailing children, clearly you need to try to assure that
these alternatives are available throughout the state.

The issue of the violent offender was brought up earlier and I
would like to respond to that briefly. I think in Iowa, that is—the
violent offender represents a relatively small portion of the chil-
dren that we deal with, but as the discussion earlicr indicated, it is
a lematical portion.

t seems tc me that the answer to the violent offender in a state
such as ours is twofold. First of all, the availability of appropriate
regional juvenile detention facilities and, secondly, the implemen-
tation apprggiate detention standards, detention criteria, I
should say, so that we are screening out the children that do not

need secured attention and are holding the children in se-
attention that require that security.

When I operated the Linn County Juvenile Detention Center,
only about twelve to fifteen percent of the children held there on
an annual basis were held for violent of offe The majori-
:y were being held for property-type ofienses or relatively minor of-

‘enses, .

So, the key, given the relatively small number of violent offevwses
committed by children in our state, I think the key is, first of all,
the availability of secured attention and, secondly, the implementa-
tion of appropriate detention cnteria to assure that detention beds
are available for those children that need them.

Finally, I zaees I want to add my voice to those who want to sup-
port the reauthorization of the Act and as I indicated earlier, my
primary concern is that any amendments be focused towards assur-
mq that both secure and nonsecure alterr~tives to jail are avail-
able thr:ughout the states that participate.

Thank you.

[The prepared statement of William P. McCarty follow.:]

TestTiMoNY OF WiLLiaM P. McCaxty

Firr* of all, I want to thank the memrbers of the Committee for giving me the op-

ity to speak to you ing reauthorization of the Juvenile Justice and De-
inquency Prevention Act (H.R. 1801). I have spent the past eighteen years working
in Jowa’s juvenile justice and child welfare systems. As such, I believe that I am
sugg:elquliﬁedwcommentontheimpactoftheJJ.D.P.Actonservieesinour

1 am currently Executive Director of Youth Homes, Inc., a private, non-profit
child welfare agency, based ir. Iowa City, Iowa. Youth Homes operates an emergen-
cy shalter care home, a residential treatment center, an independent living pro-

, and an in-home detention program. My previous experience has been as the

i of a county juvenile detention center and emergency shelter care facility, as
the county coordinator of delinquency prevention services, and as a state juvenile
gl e Tl et ipn E iyl 30 Guvly T

ows, .D.P. a very im upon ures
for ing with both delinquent and runaway youth, J:‘ the services avail-
able to help such children. As with any major piece of Jegislation, the effects have
l)eenl both positive and negative. In my judgment, the impact has been predominant-
y

tive.
’Fl::l ative aspects of the Act revolve primarily around difficulties in complyi
with the limitations on use of adult jails for ho i chﬂdren.lnmmyougvg
heard and will continue to hear many complaints of this nature. Without question,
these provisions of the Act impose hardships and inconveniences on law enforce-
ment and juvenile authorities, particularly in geographic areas where alternative
services are inadequate or unavailable.

Mﬁwm the use of jail for the detention of children has been virtuc..i
i in Jowa, and a plethora of naw prograris and services have been devel-
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president of the Iowa Shelter and Detention Association, an ization of
mmmmnummmumﬁmwmﬁnm
including secure juvenile detention, emergency shelter care, in-home detention,
emergency family foster homes, etc. Virtually without exception, these i

Mr. Kioee. Thank you very much.

One question. My teen-agers from time to time help cut at
a place called Christ House in Alexandria, Virginia, right across
the river from Washington, D.C., feedjnghll_:.:tmeless people, and
from time to time, I accompany them to ist House and I h....
noted the last year and a half a larger number of what agpear to
3 high school aged people showing up for that meal around 6:30 in

e evening.

I guess I say that and ask that because there seems to be an in-
creasing number of chronic runaways -vho are themselves in the
category of what we now call the “homeless”.

Do you find that much in your work with people like this who
are not just occasionally a runaway but maybe are borderline
homeless or chronic runaways? Do you find much of that in Iowa?

Mr. Swamu. I would say that there is probably less of that in
Iowa than you will find around the country right now. I think in
Iowa City, thrugh, there are growing numbers of young people who
show up at the emergency housing project, which is designed really
as a transient shelter, an adult homeless shelter, and theie are

more and more young people sh up there.
Itlﬁnk,giventhatthecurr::mxahasafocusthatspeciﬁes

chronic runners as a particular thing to look at, it would be impor-
tant at this point to take a look at whether or not an additional
focus should be given to homeless youth that are showing up ofien-
times at adult shelters.

In Iowa City, the adult shelter will not teke somebody unde:-
eighteen. So, again, they will end up calling us to try and get those
young people in a setting for them. However, if they are with their
parents, that is really inappropriate for us to be involved in.

Mr. k. You y see it more in the larger cities, run-
away. very often tend to go to the larger cities. Oae of the first—
the bill I ever had passed in the Co was a bill on the use
of children in ‘Pomvgﬁi'agg. and I traveled to New York City and to
Los Arngeles. You a large number of children tend to go to
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the laryer cities, very often they are very easily exploited there,
mwmt’m pemntagcgh;)et"i:he hildren wh to your facili

children who come to your facilities are
rzturned home, usually not to reappear then?

Mr. KxLry. In our residential program?

Mr. Kipzz. Yes, right.

Mr. Keipy. In our residential pr;g:un, which is again separate
from our day treatment prcﬁ;a.m, ut seventy percent would be
returning to their parents. The remainder would be going into of-
tentimes some type of foster parent care, possibly some additional

up care because our program tends to be a rather intensive resi-
tial treatment- program.

Mr. Kipex. And the people who come to your place, Earl, are
referred b

y?
(b%rtn KzLLy. The Department of H'iman Services and the Juvenile

Mr. HammoNp. Our percentage for our residential program
would be roughly equivalent to Earl’s facility. It may not be quite
as high because our residential programs are geared towards older
adolescents, and many of those kids may £) on to a long-term
group home, low-structure group home, or in dent living.

Mr. SwaiM. Our experience is the same. y, almost all of the
voluntary kids, thr *. is those kids who show ugl voluntarily, return
hene, except those kids who you described earlier, who are leaving
a gituation, and in that case, those kids begin to get
services from the state that help protect them from abuse.

Mr. McCarry. Yes. In emergency shelter and detentior the per-
centage of children who go home directly from those programs is
somewhat less than the treatment programs because those children
arebyandlargeenterinﬁuilntothesystemandmanyofthemwill
be into some other kind of program before they go home.

. xE. Just one further question. Do you have any statistics
on how many of those . \_eogle you serve, those young people, come
amxixes

g Freviasads

Mr. oND. It would be disproportionately high. We do not
have specific statistics on what the ratio would be, but just my gen-
eral experience, 1 think you would see a disproportionately high
number of kids coming out of single parent homes. Many times it is
the case where the single parent has to try and hold down a job
and work and simply cannot hold the family ther.

Mr. Swamu. In our case, at UAY, if I count all of our counselling

aat is done, the 300 which includes some young people who are

not runaways, we just finished a statistic, and I believe it was in
excess of sixty nt are from single parent households, which
kind of surprised us. We did not really think it was that high.

Mr. McCarTy. Yaah. That has been my experience as well. The
majority are from single family.

Mr. Y. I would agree with that.

Mr. KiLozx. Tom.

Mr. Tauxz. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Jim gave us a pretty good run-down of where he gets his money
to run the programs,

Could the rest of you give us a brief indication of where the
funds come from to run your programs? Earl?
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Mr. Kewry. Yes. The funds that operate Orchard Place, not the
day treatment program, ssentially come through a purchase of
service contract with the Jowa Department of Human Services,
and, in turn, I think we get about—I think the current per diem
rate is around $64.36 a day. Our costs are about $74-$75 a day for
per——on a per diem basis for a youth in residential treatment.

So, that gives us a shortfall which spread across seventy-eight
youth and residents very quickly adds up. So, we are very con-
cerned as many other providers ere in this state regarding what
will occur with child welfare in the future. For the day treatment
program, then, we have—we receive funding from the Jowa Depart-
ment of Human Services as well as Polk County Health Services,
plus our O.J.J.D.P. grants.

So, we have three funds which generate the revenue for the
PACE Program.

Mr. Tauke. How are you making up the shortfall now?

Mr. Kerpry. Right at this point, we are having to use our reserves
for the residential treatment program to balance our budget and,
iucreasingly, that will be a problem for providers in the future.

Mr. HaMMoND. Our funding is very similar. Qur primary source
of income for our shelter prograum and our residential program is
the &t;rchase of service contract with the Department. The rates
for reimbursement are extraordinarily low in order to meet
adequately the needs of the kids.

As ] mentioned earlier, we are forced to start youth care staff at
under $11,000 a year, aud that is a very demanding work. If they
were going into the teaching profession, they would be looking at
$18.000 a year in Jowa. It is very difficult to rerruit quality staff
and then hang on to them.

_We do receive other monies, but, by and large, it is not nearly as
significant as the reimbursement received from the state. We try to
take the attitude that we are in a tga.rtnership with the state and
federal dgovernmeni:s in caring for these childrex, and we are will-
ing to do our share, but the funding has become mc:reasiﬂfly pre-
carious and our shelter program, even though it has only been
open six months, is already running a deficit and we are already
having to look at where can we get additional funds.

Mr. XiLbeg. Regarding Stinger missiles, the Government would
probably provide more money for personnel costs.

Mr. ﬁAMM')ND. If we became a military academy, maybe we
would be better off.

Mr. McCarty. Our sources of funding are similar. Our primary
source of funding is purchase of service contracts with the Depart-
ment of Human Services. We also are using Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention Act funds to start-up our in-home deten-
tion and also to improve the quality of our services in our shelter
care program.

We also receive a small amount of private funds locally from
United Way and other sources, and we also get an amount, about
ten L.ﬁrcent of our budget, from the county directly.

ike the other agencies, my agency s increasingly financially
distressed. In fac!, when I took the age over about fifteen
months ago, it was virtually bankrupt, and we have just been
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through a very difficult financial time and we anticipate that we
will continue to face those kinds of problems.

Mr. SwamM. You know, though, one of the things that struck me
a couple of weeks ago, I was in Washington with Congressman
Nagle, and he was telling me how much money we spend shelter-
ing the Galileo Project on the ground. That is the project that was
su to be launched.

e quoted to me that we are spending a couple of million dollars
every few da l;o:ﬁlmg that safely protected here on earth, com-
pared to the $23 million that we spend annually on about a million
runaway and homeless youth.

So, you might vt’l"i'l and use that on one of your—
Mr. KiLpze. I will.

Mr. Tauxe. The staffing issue is one that has arisen in some of
our discussions about dealing with the problems of ,uveniles and
you broughi it up a couple of times now, that you pay $10,900 for
starting staff, I take it.

Is staffing a problem for all of you or any of you? Are you able to
get qualified tEeople? Do we need to do something in the area of
training for those who are involved in these kinds of programs?
Could you speak to that?

Mr. Kewry. It is a major problem. Again, the paradox is that
those are the people who are in the trenches much like a nurse in
the hospital. In our settings, we have B.A. level trained staff who
are working with the youth around the clock. These ple are
vexav seriouslg' under-funded as well consistent with what Garry
said, although there are variations between programs in terms of
what can be allocated for these important stag people.

But it seeins to me that that is the very staff that will determine
the success of treatment and the individualization of treatm =t
while the child is in the group care. We think that it is cyclical. If
the economy is down, if the job market in the private sector tends
to be constricted, then there is a greater availability of other per-
sonnel, and, of course, for all of our agencies, that is an important
area because we want to recruit the very best people and these
people are very critical for our settings.

But we, too, see an issue in regard to recruitment and retention
of personnel.

9r. Tauxke. How long does your average staff person stay with
you?
Mr. KeLLy. Probably on the firing line, maybe two plus years.

Mr. TAUKE. Any of the others of you have comments on staffing?

Mr. Swamu. A lot. In Iowa City, a starting meter enforcement
person, somebody who enforces the parking meters, makes $3,000
more starting than our youth care workers after two years.

.Mr‘5 TAUKE. What do the youth care workers after two years re-
ceive’

Mr. Swam. $14,000 or $15,000 a Ii'ear My comment on trai.nin‘gl‘
is that, within the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act, you fun

not only basic centers and then also the hotline and some money to
discretionary grants, but you also fund networks and here in our
regional network, that network provides free training for those line
staff that Earl talked about.
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There is a lot of training opportunities available for line staff,
but they cost $200, $300 or $400 a shot. So, the regional networks
do a tremendous job in providing training to line workers.

Mr. Tauxe. The availability of training is not the problem?

. Mr. Swamu. No. The availability of funding to pay for that train-
mmr subsidized grants.

. TAUKE. Okay. That is important for us to understand. Now,
let us say you have a job opening tomorrow.

Mr. Swau. I do. .

Mr. Tauke. How meny applicants are y- 4 likely to get or do you
have to go out and recruit?

Mr. Swamm. We go out and recruit. We will get—our last—we
had four openings in September, because of the federal sup-
port we were starting to get. We had about fifty applicants and in
my view about twenty of them met the minimum that we were
looking for, which was discouraging. We really thought that we
were paying a reasonable salary.

An interesting comment. Most of them said that they were at-
tracted to our job because we paid more than the stan and I
was feeling g'uiity about what we were starting them at.

Mr. Hammon. In Dubuque, it is very difficult for us to recruit
qualified mople. The issue is not 80 much training, it is retention
once you have got them trained. We have trained quite a few staff
and then we lose them to public sector because the public sector
pa&srﬁﬂ:y percent higher than what we pay. So, we train them——

. TAUKE. By public sector, by that you mean?

Mr. HAMMOND. Department of Human Services. Iowa Depart-
ment of Human Services. So, we will hire someone who is fresh out
of school with a Bachelor's Degree. They will work for us for a

, get a lot of training, then they double their salary with the

mrtment of Human Services.
. McCarry. I would also like to comment on this area because
I think probably my agency situation is the mo:; pathetic.

}r. Swamu. We would certainly like to hear from you, Bill.

Mr. McCarty. My agency’s salaries are always at the very
bottom of the low scale that we all pay. We pay our child care
workers $4.20 an hour to start. We do not have too much trouble
finding people initially, largely, I think, because of our location in
Iowa City, where we have a student population and many recent
graduates that are looking for the first job or are still in school, in
many cases, and need to sunplement their income.

However, retention is a huge problem of my child care staff, m
direct child care staff. My senior child care person has been wit
us for less than a year. We turn over almost our entire child care
staff every year, and training then obviously becomes a major ex-
pense and a major problem on an on-going basis.

So, it is a very big problem.

Mr. Tauke. Your salaries are determined bg’ our reimbursement
rate from the state, generally, for services. So, when you are run-
ning a shortfall, that means lower salaries. I mean, that is a big
component, I presume, of your costs?

. KxLry. Probably eighty percent.
Mr. Tauke. Eighty I&:we‘nt.of costs—okay.
That is all I have, Mr. Caairman.
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Mr. Kiupex. Thank you, Tom.

I want to thank the panel. You are literally on the firing line of
these things and we want to stay .1 contact with you because what
ever we do .. providing some dolNars, you make the programs
work. So, I look forward to :.ieeing you in Washington again at
breakfast——

Mr. Swam. One thing to get back to Tom about. You had asked
about youth participation on the state advisory groups. Susie Nor-
beck, who intcoduced you last year, who you thought did such a
fine job, is one of the appointees on Iowa and she sends her repards
to you.

Mr. Tauk.. If you are an example of what happens becaus of
her, that is wonderful.

I, too, want to commend you for the work that you are doing and
some of the very fine programs that you have and that we wili be
visiting this afternoon.

Mr. Kipex. We -vill take a ten minute kreak and come back in
ten minutes.

[kec-ss.] :

Mr. oz, The subcommittee will reconvene.

Our ncxt panel will consist of Pat Hendrickson, Chief Juvenile
Officer, Court Officer, Seventh Judicial District Court, Davenport,
Iowa; and Sonator Julia Gentleman, the State Senate of Iowa, a
body in which I served in ir Michigan at one time; Sergeant Dale
Patch, President of the Iowa State Policeman’s Association, West
Des Moines, Jowa; and Alan Allbee, Juverile Court * 2feree, the
First Judicial District Court, West Union, Jowa.

I would like to call attention to the fact, too, we have Lt. Gover-
nor of the State of Iowa, Joann Zimme-vaan, present. A vory deer
friend ¢ 7 a counterpart of you “chigan, Lt. Gcvernor
Martha . Tin, who yields a very . .1 gavel and keeps those
thirty-eight Senators well in line in the Michigar. Senate.

Okay. Our first witness then will be—how do you want to start?
Dale, you want to start first?

Mr. ParcH. That is fine by me.

Mr. Kok, Okay.

S1 - TEMENT OF SERGEANT DALE PATCH, PRES: ,NT, IOWA
7ATE POLICEMAN’S ASSOCIATION, WEST DES MOINES, 1A

Sergeant ParcH. Well, with the Chair’s permission, I would like
to just read i~ my opening statemeunt and then answer any ques-
tions.

Mr. KiLpxg. Sure, fine. Very good, Dale.

Sergeant ParcH. I have been requested by Yyour committee to
gresent the Iowa Swate Policeman’s Association’s concern with the
ederal Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevertion Act.

I am a sergeant for the Des Moines Police Department. I am as-
signed to the Uniform Division, and as such, I frequently encounter
situations on the street which involve juveniles.

On July 1st, 1987, the Iowa Legislature enacted Senate Bill 522,
which substantiallanged the arrest and detention procedures for ju-
veniles This legislation was a reaction to a federal court judge'’s
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order which mandated that the State of Iowa comply with the pro-
visions of the federal Act.

The cumulative resalt of both the federal and stat« legslations
have been to create a grave disparity between the rights of delin-
quent juveniles and the right of the public to be safe and secure.

I have presented the Association’s views before several ctate ad-
visory councile and the state legislative committee, and I have at-
tached the position padg:r that I presented to those committees ard
councils, which includes a two-page memo, which has our concl_ -
sions and recommendations, and then another attachment, which .
includes our reasoning why.

For the—in the view of the Iowa State Policeman’s Association,
the following proposals would assist law enforcement officers i~
handling delinquent juveniles as well as protecting the publics
right to be safe and secure.

Number 1. Relex the stringent rest.iciions on detention of delin-
quent juveniles in adult dete ‘tion facilities when the detention will
not exceed twenty-four hours.

Numoer 2. The restriction on the standard metropolitan statisti-
cel area fails to take into consideration the lack of adequate juve-
nile detention facilities. Therefore, we recommend that the restric-
tion be removed until adequate facilities are in place.

Number 3. This is probably the most important one to us. That
the penalty for non<compliance with the Act should be limifed
solely to withholding future funds. Actions for contempt are inap-
propriate in our view.

The current status of the Juvenile .Tustice and Delinquency Pre-
vention Act's cumulative effect is inequitable and the Iowa State
Policeman’s Association respectfully requests consideration of our
proposals.

Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Sergeant Dale Patch follows:]
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Date: 4 December 1987

To: Subcommittee or. Human Resources

From: £ rgeant Dale Putch, President
s Iowa State Policemen's Association
25 E. First Street
Des Moines, Iowa 50309

Re: Proposed amendments to Title 42, Juvenile Justice and
¢ Delinquency Prevention of the U.S. Code.

I have been requested by your subcommittee to present the
Iowa State Policemen's Association's concerns with the Federal
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act. I am a Sergeant
with thé Des Moines, Iova Police Department, assigned to the
Uniform Division. As such, I frequently encounter situations on
the street which involve juveniles.

On 1 July 1987, the Iowa State lLegislature enacted S.F. 522
which substantially changed the arrest and dstention procedures
fcr juveniles. This legislation was a .eaction to a federal
court judge's o:der which mandated that the State of Iowa comply
with the provisions of the federal act. 'The curulative results
of both the federal and state legislations have been to create a
grave disparity between the rights of delinquent juveniles and
the right of the public *o be safe and secure. I have presented
the association's views pefore several state advisory councils
and I have attached our position paper to the state which
includes a two page memo stating our conclusions and
recommendations along with another attachment explaining how we
arrived at our r:commendations. .

It is the view of the Iowa State Policemen's Association
that the foilowing proposals would assist law enforcement
officers in handling delinquent juveniles as well as protect:ng
the public's right to be safe and secure.

1. Relax the stringent restrictions on the detention of
delinquent juveniles in adult detention facilities when
the detention will not exceed twenty-four hours.

2. The restriction on Standard Metropolitan Statistical
Areas fails to take into consideration the lack of
tuvquate juvenile detention facilities. Therefore, we
recommend that the restriction be removed until adequatc
facilities are in place.

3. That the penalty for noncompliance with the act should be
limited sol_.ly to withholding future funds. Actions for
contempt cre inappropriate.

»
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The current status of the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency
Prevention Act's cumulative effect is inequitable and the Iowa
State Policemen's Association respectfully requests your

consideration of the above proposals.
% )

S ant Dale Patch

attachments .

#o
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TO0: Criminal and Juvenile Justice Advisory Council.

FRON: Dale P, Patch
First Vice President
Iowa State Policemen's Assn.

RE: Conclusions and Recommendations of the Iowa State Policemen's
Association regarding Senate File 522 of the 1986-87
Iowa Legislature, Juvenile Detention.

We, the members of the Iowa State Policemen's Association, feel
that it is apparent and obvious that the currsnt wording of the Iowa
Code as changed by the enactment of Senate File 522 has created a
grave disparity between the rights of juveniles, ag a class, and ‘he
right. of the Public to be safe and secure.

The re. mmenc 1tions of the Iowa State Policemen's Association
rrgarding Senate File 522 are as follc si

1. That sub-section 8 of Section 805.1 of the Ccde be either
repealed entircly, or, rewritten to allow the detention of
Juveniles for a number of exceptional circumstances. Law
Enforcement has no desire to routinely or arbitrarily in-
carcerate juveniles for the misdemeanor offenses ¢ ohiy
section applies to, but we nust ultimately have that option
to adequately enforce the laws.

2. That Section 903.1 or the Code be amended “o allow Judges
and Magistrates to order the arrest and cetention of those
Juveniles who fail to pay court ordered fines, fail to appear
on t° charges, or fail to perform court ordered community
ser « Further, we feel that Judges and Magistrates gho.ld
have the option of ordering the arrest and detention of
chronic and habitual violators #ho continue to violate the
laws without regard fur {ines or performance of community
service.

3. That Section 232.22 of the Code be entirely rewritten to
remove Or relax the restrictions imposed on the detention
of juveniles in an adult detention facility so that the rights
of the juvenile offenders are correctly balanced with the
rights of the public in a realistic and workable fashion.

L. That Sectior 232,22 sub-section 4 of the Code be amended
to allow Judges or Magistrates to order the detention of
Juveniles in an adult detention facility for up to twenty-
four hours in a facility serving an area determined to be
a standard metropolitan statis.ical area as determined by the
United States Census Bureau. And, further, remove the re-
striction that the facility must be certified by the department
of corrections as being capable of both sighc and sound
separation pursuant to sections 232.22 and 356.3.

ERIC
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Conclusions and Recommendations

5. That Section 232.44 sub-sections 1 and 3 of the Code be
amended to allow a "reasonable” amount of time for the hearing
to take place after a juvenile has been admitted to an adult
detention facility. And, further, to allow a “reasonable"
amount of time to notify the child's attorney, parent or
suardian, or custodian of the hearing date, time, place
and purpose.

We strongly urge t“e Criminal and Juvenile Justice Advisory
Council and other inteir.sted parties to join with the Iowa State
Policemen’'s Association in recommending these very needed changes
in the Juvenile Code to the Iowa Legislature,

It is your duty, and ours, to serve the public interests of
the porrle of Iowa by rectifying inequities in the Juvenile Code so
that the rights of juveniles are correctly balarced with the rights
of the public in a realistic and workatle manner.

I would like to express my appreciation to the memberr of the
Criminal and Juvenile Justice Advisory Council in allowing me the
opporunity to present the position of the Iowa State Policemen's
Association regarding the Juvenile Detention Cede.

Sincerely,

Sgt. Dale P, Patch

Attac ent.

us
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FROM:

RE:

I.

II
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24 September 1987

Criminal and Juvenile Justice Advisory Council

Dale P. Patch
First Vice President
Iowa State Policemen's Asen.

Juvenile Detention Code
Position Paper

To members of the Criminal and Juvenile Justice Advisory Council
and other interested parties. The following outline is the Official
Position of the Iowa State Policemen's Association and its members
regarding Senate File 522 of the 1986-87 Iowa Leglislature,

Introduction.

A,

B,

C.

We in law enforcezent have been fristrated and exasperated
with the burden of attempting to comply «ith provisions of
Senate File 522 since its enactment.

Law enforcement personnel have been severely hampered in their
efforts to deal with juvenile offenders and, at the same time,
Jreserve the Public's right to be safe and secure as they zo
about their lawful activities.

Ou. overall goal is to modify, revamp, and repeal sections

of Senate File 522 so that the rights of Jjuveniles arc balanced
with the rights of the public in a realistic and wurkable
fashion.

Senate File 522, Section 6.

A,

This section mandates, under Section 905.1 of the Code, new
sub-section 8, that a Peace Officer must issue a citation in
1ieu of arrest for a person under the age of eighteen years of
. ge accused of violating a simple misdemeanor uader the pro-
visions of chapters 106, 106A, 109, 109A, 110, 110A, 1108, 111,
421 or 321G, and shall not detain or confine the person in a
facility regulated under chapters 356 or 356A.

1., The Iowa State Policsmen's Association position is that
this new subsection should be either repealed entirely, or
rewritten to allow the detention of juvenilea for a number
of exceptional circumstances, Law Enforcement has no de-
sire to routinely or arbitrarily incarcerate juveniles for
the atove listed offenses, but we must have that option,
ultimately, to adequately enforce the laws,
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Juvenila Detention

2. 7Tn its present .ording, Section 805.l, sub-section 8, does
not allow law Enforcement Officials to adequately deal with
a nunber of exceptional circumstances.

a. The uncooperative juvenile who refusee to supply the
Peace Officer with any information or the information
necessary to complete the misder-anor citation, i.e.
name, address, date of birth, pr »f of age and identity, etc..

.) We are currently experiencing the problem of some
young adults claiming to be Juveniles and not
producing proof of age or ide, *ty.

2) We are also experiencing the problen of Jjuveniles
glving false names, addrusses, etc. and then do not
show up for court.

3) The Peace Officer has no right under this section
to detain the juvenile nor demand that the juvenile
produce any proof of identity nor provide any
information what-so-ever to the Peace Officer.

b. The Juvenile who refuses to sign the "promise to appear"
line on the misdemeanor citation.

1) This leaves the ciiation in an incomplete legal
state.

2) Thc Peace Officer has nc right to demand the signature
and must release the juvenile on the spot.

c. The Juvenile who, after recieving the misdemeanor
citation, continues to commit the violation after being
ordercd not to do so by the Peace Officer.

1, Again, the Peace Officer is powerless to detain or
confine the juvenile under this section.

d. The Juvenile who is a poor risk for showing up in Court.

1) Has active warrants in the system, which the Peace
Cfficer is powerleas to arrest on.

2) Statuments o> actions of the juvenile in front of
the Peace Officer indicating that the juvenile does
not intend to show up for Court.
a) Tearing up the citation.
b) Attempting to elude the Officer, High-Speed Chases, etc.

3) Out-of-State jueniles living in States not parcicipating
in the reciprocity agreeaent with the State of Iowa.
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Juvenile Detention

e. The juvenile who has warrants for falling to pay
court ordere” fines or failing to perform community
nervice ordered by the court or fails to appear before
the court.

1) The Peace Officer has no authority to arrest these
Juvenilee under this section.

Large groupe of Jjuveniles violating park curfew or
other laws where the actions of the group indicates
a threst to public safety.

1) Vhen a group assumes a "m~b identity” and anonymous
perpetrators of violent or destructive acts cannot be
individually identified or singled oui it ie sometines
prudent to enforce the misdemeanor violations to head
off major protlems associated with "mob behavior”.

III. Senate File 522, Section 7.

Amende secticn 903.1 of the Code relating to maximum sentences
for misdemeanants. It impowes restrictions on Judgee and
Magistrates for sentancing persous under eighteen years of age
convicted of a eimple misdemeanor under Chaptere 106, 106A, 109
109A, 110, 110A, 110B, 111, 321 or 321G, or violation of a
County or Municipal zur.ew or traffic ordinance. The opiione of
the Judges and Magistratee is to fine the juvenile up to $100.00
or to order the Juvanile to perform community service. Jalling
the juvenile ie not an option.

1, It is the position of the Iowa State Policemen's Association
that this section should be amended to allow Judgee and
Magistrates to order the arrest and detention of those
Juvenilee who fail to pay court ordered finee, or who fail
to perform court Srdered community eervice, or wh~ fail to
appes. ~n the cnargee. We also belleve that Judges and
Magistrates should have the option of ordering ‘he arrest
and detention of chronic and habi*uai violators who continue
to violate these laws without regard for fines or performance
of community service.

a. The eentencing reetrictions in Section 903.1 of the Code
are fine for the juvenile who chooees ‘o comply with
the court ordered eentences, .ut meaninglese to those
who choose to ignore the sentencing orders.

b, We feel that it is in the best interest of public

safety and the juvenile’'e "life education” to amend
Section 903.1 of the Code ae we have recommended.

9%
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Juveaile Dctention

IV. Senate File 522, Section 3. c.

A. This section severely restricts the detention of juveniles -
in a room in a facility intended or used for the detention
of adults. This may be permitted only if all of the following
conditions are met:

1. The juvenile has committed a delinquent act, which, .
if committed by an 2dult, would be a felony.

2. The child is at least sixteen years of age.

3. The child is determined to %» an immediate serious
danger to another person or the property of another.

b, A juveni.e detention facility is unavaiisble or the
Court determines that the child’s conduct or condition
endangers the safety of othezs in the facility.

5. The facility has an adequate staff to supervise and
monitor the chiid’'s activities at all times.

6. The child is confined in a room entirely separate from
detained adults, is confined in a manner which prohibits
communication with detained adults, and is permitted to
use common areas of the facility only when no contact
with detained sdults is possible.

B. It is the position of the Iowa State Policemen's Association
that these restrictions are entirely too narrow to protect the
irterests and welfare of the public and the juvenile's family
for a number of reasons.

1. The felony standard imposed in this section excludes 2.
number of crimes and situations which, common sense would
dictate, the juvenile should bz detained and restrained.

a. Intoxicated juveriles who are not in a responsible
condition and a parent or relative cannot be located.

1) This is particularily applicable to juveniles
stopped for operating a motor vehicle while intoxicated.

b. Violent or intoxicated juveniles who are in an incorrigible
state nd cannot be handled by parents or guardians.

¢. Uncooperative juveniles committing crimes less than

the felony standard but refuse to provide any information,
provide false information, refuse to provide proof of
age, identity, etc..
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d. The juvenile who commits a string of misdemeanors,
serious misdemeanors, or aggravated misdemeanors.
For example, a series of serious misdemea-or assaults
which clearly demonstrates the the juveni.e is a
danger to society. Or, a series of vandalism offenses
in which the total property damage would fall into the
felony category if committed as one offense.

e. Juveniles who fail to appear in Juvenile Court for
previous offense in the misdemeanor category.

f. There are many other reasons and examples I could
1ist here but, in the interest of brevity, I will
omit.

2. The age restriction of sixteen imposed in this section
excludes a number of juveniles who are capable of and who
do pose a serious danger to society and their families
and pr..8 the Peace Officer in a helpless position if a
Juvenile Detention Facility is unavailable.

a. The juvenile under sixteen who commits a felony such
as murder, rape, arson, etc. cannot be incarcerated or
detained in an adult detention facility with no
exceptions under the current language of this sec* on.

b. All of the arguments made sgainst the felony standard
are also applicable to this section.

c. Common sense tells us that we should not release
a Juvenilie who has just committed murder or another
similiar offense simply because there is no Juvenile
Detention Facility available, but under the current
language of this section, we are to do just that or
face the consequences for violating the law ourselves.

1) This is compounded if the juvenile refuses to provide
any information to the Peace Officer.

3. The requirement ti.at the child be an immediate serious
danger to arother person or the property of another also
has several problems in our eyes.

a. This section requires that, in addition to all of the
other requirements, that the Peace Officer be able to
articulate that the juven le is now an immediate serious
danger to another person or the property of another by
observing the child's conduct, habits or condition on
the spot and does not allow the Peace Officer to arrest
for felony or misdemeanor warrants.

b. This requi.sment, again, overlooks the uncooperative
juvenile who refuses to proside information or proof
of age anc identity, etc..
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c. This requirement improperly places the burden of proving
that a juvenile may commit another act constituting a
sarious danger to another person or the property of
another on the Peace Officer.

The requirement that a Juvenile Detention Facility be
unavailable is eaaily met since there are an inaa ,uate
number of juvenile detention facilities currently in
existance and no monies were appropriated to build any.

a. it would be ideal for law enforcement to have an
adequate supply of Juvenile detention facilities to
handle detention of juveniles on any charge and thereby
solve the problem of detaining a juvenile in an adult
detention facility entirely.

1) This not being the case, it is imperative that
a realistic and workable code revision be enacted
to allow juvenile detention in adult detention
facili‘ies until an adetuate number of Jjuvenile
det2ntion facilities are in place.

The requirement that the adult detention facility have an
adequate staff to supervise and monitor the child's
activities at all times is a budgetary and logistical
impossibility for most law enforcement agencies, especially
the smaller agencies,

a, Currently, in order to comply with this requirement,
law enforcement agencies have been forced to pull a
Peace Officer off of the street and, assuming there is
a private room available, watch the Juvenilc “>r the
entire detention period in the facility.

1) It is easy to see that this is not in the best
interests of public safety, especiall; in the smaller
towns and jurisdictions where there may be only
one or two Peace Officers on duty.

The requirement that the adult detention facility have
a room tu detain the juvenile that makes it impo-.sible
fur sight or sound co~tact with detained adults is also
a budgetary and logistical nightmare,

a, With budget cuts and restrictions in place across the
State of Jowa it is very unlikely that an adult detertion
facility can comply with this requirement on an ongoing
basis,

1) HMost ‘aw enforcement agencies have all of the
space in their facilities frugally occupied and
remodeling or putting on additions tc peet this
requirement is simply a monetary imposaibility for
most jurisdictions,
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C. The end result of this section is that Public Safety is taking a
Y back seat to the rights of delinquent Jjuveniles.

1, Peace Officers are severly incapacitated when juvenile
suspects are involvel due to the severely restrictive,
unrealistic and unworkable wording of the code in this Section.

V. Senate File 522, Section 4.

A. This section imposes a time limitation for Jjuveniles being held
in an adult detantion facility who do meet all of the requirements
listed in Section 3. c. to six hours without a court order
and up to twenty-four hours with a court order if all of the
following occur or exist:

1. The facility serves a geographic area outside a standard
metropolitan statistical area as determined by the United
States Census Bureau.

2, The Court determines that an acceptable aliernative placement
does 13t exist pursuant to criteria developed by the
departnent of human services.

3. The facility has been cert.fied by the devartment of
corrections as being capable of sight and sound separation
pursuant to sections 232.22 and 356.3.

4, The child is awaitin, an initial hearing before the court
pursuant to section 232.44.

B, It is the position of the Iowa S'-.s . )} cemen's Assoclation
that this section imposes too many cor .ions for extended
stays in adult dete tion facilities an. that it adversely
impacts public safeiry and the ability on aw enforcement
agencies to perform their duties in protecting the pubtlic.

1. T am assuning that the reason geographic areas constituting
a standard metropolitan statistical area are excluded from
extensions of the 6 hour 1imit is that these areas are assumed
to possess adequate juvenile detention facilities.

a, It has been our experience in the Des Moines Metropolitan
area that the juvenile detention facility, Meyer Hall,
has been filled to capacity on numerous occasions and
it is the only Juvenile detention facility for the
entire 18 county Fifth Judicial District.

b. This sec’ion does not take into consideration, the
problem of inadequate Juvenile detention facilities
being in existance.

E 2. We have the same problem with the adult detentior facility‘s
capability of being able to provide a room tu the Jjuvenile
offender which is capable of sight and sound separation
as we have argued in our position of Section 3. c. .

3
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VI. Senate File 522, Section 5.

A. This section accelerates the time period allowec between
when a juvenile is admitted to a detsntion facility and
when the hearing must taks place from 48 hours to 24 hours
in sub-section 1. of Section 232.44 of the Code. Additionally,
it accelerates the time from 24 hours to 12 hours for notification
service to the child's attorney, parent or guardian or custodian
under sub-section 3. of Section 232.44 of the Code.

B. It is the position of the Iowa State Policemen's Association
that the time periods imposed in this section are inadequate
to allow staff workers to process the heavy lnad of juvenile
offenders beirg sent through the system.

1 If the time periods are nc. met, the code mandates release
of the juvenile from the detention or shelter care facility.

a. This seems to us that the rights of the public to be
safe and secure have, again, taken a back seat to the
rights of delinquent juveniles.

b. We believe a "reasonable” amount of processing tinme
should be allowed rather than releasing the juvenile
offender.

VII. Conclusions and Recommendations.

A. For your convenience, our conclusions and recommendations are
listed separately.

ERIC 96
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Mr. Kipxx. Thank you, Mr. Patch.
Mr. Allbee.

STATEMENT OF ALAN ALLBEE, JUVENILE COURT REFEREE,
FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT, WEST UNION, 1A

Mr. AvLzx. Thank you, Mr. Kildee, Congressman Tauke.

I want to thank you a lot for the opportunity to address your
subcommittee. I will try to keep may comments brief.

My perspective comes from being a juvenile court referee, juve-
nile court judge, if you will, for the past seven years. Also spent
some time as an assistant county attorney in cga.rge of juvenile
My oxpe rural d from talking with Mr.

experience is in a county, an m ing wi .
Tau.{e’s staff, that is what you wanted to hear about. You want to
hear about the nuts and bolts, what actually happens out there,
and some of it may be as unpretty and is not what you want to
hear, and I have heard a lot of the people who spoke first talk
about ijeals and very enlightened matters, and I think that is
great.

I think we judges, too, are strongly committed to the fact that we
want to sce children removed from jail. We want to see alterna-
tives found, but also we deal with the kids on a day-to-day basis
and we see some problems with trying to get this implemented im-
raediately. We have got problems not only with our county boards
of supervisors, our loca} constituents, also the legislature, and I
think everybody has to open their ears and say, hey, this is a prob-

lem, we have got to get funding.
Our district, the gﬁrst agl&n%econd both, greatly appreciate the
money that they got through your subcommittee and this Act in

trying to work toward a re?onal detention facility. Unfortunately,
we have come to a road block now. We need to get additional
funds. We have got the project started, but we need to complete it.
We have go* to get a building and get that completed.

I will explain to you from a practical perspective why we need it
and why we need it badly. Iowa’s nuts and bolts, and I am going to
talk from a really practical perspective, because rural counties do
not deal with a large number of juvenile cases, we do not have a lot
of frequency, also we do not have a lot of resources available.

I think we may ret}}rure some different treatment, and I do not
mean to be begging off. We want to try to comply with it, but we
may require some different treatment than what you are giving
the metropolitan areas.

The passage of Iowa’s Senate File 522 and the jail removal por-
tion of that Act really did not have a great deal of effect for us.
Since 1985, we have had a pilot project going where we did not jail
juveniles. We just couid not do it. We tried to use in-home deten-
tion, shelter care, juvenile detention facilities. We knew this was
coming, and we wanted to try to beat that, to try and find these
alternatives.

Unfortunateiy, we are running into some problems with that,
and I want to try and explain those to you. We do, as judges,
always try to use the least restrictive alternative available. If the
child and the child’s parents, after commission of an alleged illegal

a7
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act, if we can send the child home, we certainly do. If there is some
risk that the child may commit further delinquent acts or hurt
themselves or others, we ﬂ use what is called in-home detention,
and I think you have h that talked about, where we require
the child to be home when they are not in school, to be with their
parents, to have probation and police officers, if av-ilable, kee
close supervision on that child so they do not get into further dld -
culty, and that is usually an adjudicatory hearing and a disposi-
tional hearing where we can decide what is going to finally happen
with regard to that child.

If the parents, and this often haleens, just are not able to con-
trol that child and agrobation and police officers with their limited
resources are not able to keep good enough track of the child, we
may have to use shelter care facilities. That is our next—certai
our next step. We want to use the least eecure facility possible.

If that does not work and we just have no other alternativ.. we
will use juvenile detention. Now, s»me of the problems that we lo-
cally are having with that, the nearest detention facility is ninety
miles away. Transportation is, of course, a problem.

As referee, often times I make—it is funny. I am sitting between
the police officer and the probation officer her .. 1+ have to referee
between these tvo people because with their iimited staffing, we
cannct transpori, I am sorry, can you not get the sheriff to, the
sheriff says, well, if you make us transport aad it is ten o’clock at
night, we are not going to have an officer available for the county,
there is going to be no effective law enforcement here. What if we
have a car accident, what if we have a robbery? That is a problem.
That is a real problem that we have.

I do not like to be put in that position, but often times I am. So,
we have tried very to work that out. Probation transports
when they car. If they cannot, the sheriff's department will help
out.

But with a ninety-mile trip, you are talking three to four hours
perhaps round-trip for that officer or that probation officer. So,
that is a fairly long period of time.

The other problem we have is when we do use that detention fa-
cility, they are often times at capacity. If they have—if we have a
child placed there, from our county, and their county residents
need to fill the facility or would, our child is bumped out on
twentyfour hour’s notice. So, we have to go down and pick the
child up, come back. So, that ¢2es create some problems for us.

I cannot say that I necessarily disagree with that. If a county
puts the money forward in order to develop a facility, I think they
should have some priority with regard to that, but that has created
some problems for us.

The cost of the placement, detention, if we use the other county’s
fa~lity, as I think I had last heard was a $135 a day, which is quite
high, and, of course, vur county supervisors are ing at that.
They want to try to find a less costly alternative.

from a practical standpoint in keeping with due process and
in the mandates of the law, we are required to hold a detention
hearing now within twenty-four hours of the child’s placement in
detention. We are also required to give at least twelve hours’ notice
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{o the parents. All right. This can lead to some real practical prob-

ems.

The old law required forty-eight hours’ hearing and a twenty-
four hour notice to the parents. That was, while it pushed us, we
could certainly accommodate that. The twenty-fours and the twelve
just put us in some pickles once in a while.

As I pointed out in my statement, we have a child who is placed
in detention at six a.m. in the morning. Absent the parents being
willing to waive notice or the appropriate twelve hours’ notice, we
have to hold a hearing before six a.m. the next day and after six
p.m. that evenini The courthouse will be closed. We have no
access to the Clerk’s office, no access to secretarial or other help,
and that does create some practical problems for us. It is not neces-
sarily insurmountable, but it does create some problems in that re-

spect.

I do think, however, we need to have as rapid a hearing as we
can for those children who are detained. We have got to comply
with due process. Ho y, when I make a decision to put the
child in detention, I have got pretty clear evidence, a clear
probable cause, that a delinquent act was committed and there is
no other alternative available to me.

All of this has led us to come to the point, well, maybe detention
just is not our alternative in the short run and maybe we have got
to find another one. We have considered, for one thing, to get a de-
tention center closer to our area that could be used by a number of
our counties. I think Gil Cerveny talked about this a little bit in
the First and Second Districts.

We had ﬁtten money through your subcommittee, funds in this
Act, that allowed us to begin that project. For two years now, we
have worked on a egroject to have a wing at the Bremer County
Care Facility opened up to us that we could use for detention. As
time went on, we have thirty-three counties that started in both
districts to look at this project. When it came down to who was ac-
tually going to commit to it, only thirteen of those thirty-three
counties committed, and then, when we got the bids back on the
renovation costs, which were almost double what the projection
was, everyone stood back and said, I do not know if we can do this.

So, we need some funding alternatives. We certainly appreciate
the seed money that you have given us, but we have got to take the

and run with ‘t now.

If that does not work and I guess in the short-term, we are going
to have to do something so we can get a child to hearing. Jail often
times is not goii:‘g to available to us and that is not a good
system anyway. If we can have some short-term holding facility in
our county, we may look at that.

Some practical problems with regard to that would be having a
facility available that meets stan and having someone who
could come in on call to do that. That is something we need to
work on, but that is a problem.

In another area, I guess I just wanted to touch on the runaway
problem, and again I may not seem terribly enlightened, but in the
rural areas. we do not see that large a number of runaway chil-
dren. Once in a while, we will get some from Minnesota, Wisconsin
coming through with stolen care, their parents’ car, that kind of
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thing. And we need some short-term hold for them until we can
either get their parents to pick them up or get the authorities from
the other state or the other jurisdiction to come and get them.

I do not know if it is economically feasible or neceumz that we
have a separate facility for the runaways if we can use the shelter
care facili ,andlwould,lguess,withthelimitednumbersof
those as I certainly would like to see maybe our money would
be better spent in doing that.

I understand everyone is trying to make a distinction between
status offenders and delinquents, and I appreciate that, but from a
gracﬁca.lstandpoint,ldo not know if the shelter care n i

rands a child as delinquent. To some extent, perhaps the deten-
tion facility does, but ifgou have a child who is on the run, are we
nﬁﬁligent if we do not do ing we can to try and keep that
child securely there until the authorities or their parents can come
get them? That is a problem I have.

Are we not doing what we have to do to make sure that the child
is returned home or to the appropriate authorities? I just hate to
see the child on the street. As I mentioned before, they often are.
They are just constant chronic runners.

I would strongly recommend funding the Act again. In my short
time that I have been a practicing attorney, dealing both in the
criminalandinthe{mrenﬂeareas,lthinkweneedtostraighten
our priorities somewhat. I think if we can put more money and
more emphasis in the juvenile court system rather than in the
criminal court system, where it has been, I think we may save a lot
of money and a lot of problems in the long run. If we can turn
around and rehabilitate these juveniles while they are still under
eighteen, we will not see near problem that we do in the crimi-
nal court. We may not need a new prison.

Now, I am ing idealistically again, but I certainly hope that
that is the case. The judiciary for a long time has put Jjuvenile
court kind of, you know, toward the back burner and that is unfor-
tunate, but I tzmk we need to turn that around.

When we get together at our juvenile court meetings, all the
judges, we are all together and fired up and excited about it, but
when you talk to the judges as a whole, I do not think you get
quite that same enthusiasm.

I have complained and I trust that you understand why, but I
think, too, ju&es have to be part of the solution, and I think that
we perhaps in the past have not taken a enough lead in
trying to community-based alternatives for these kids. I think
the Bjudicial leadership is lacking and we need to do that.

there is anyth:f I will take home with me and to my col-
leagues in the juvenile court would be that I think we need to do
more in finding alternatives to jail, to detention, and to try to keep
the kids home if we can.

[The prepared statement of Alan D. Allbee follows:]

EsTEY, ANTRS & ALLBEE,
West Union, 1A, December 2, 1987.
Hon. DaLz E. Koz,

U.S. House of Representatives, Cannon House Office Building, Washington, DC.

Dxar RerressnTATIVE Knxx: Contained herein is my prtehparad statement con-
cerning my comments and recommendations regarding reauthorization of Titles II
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(Juvenile Justice) and III (Runaway and Homeless Youtk) of the Juvenile Justice
and Delinquency Prevention Act. My comments will reflect my seven (7) years of
nmmuaﬁhmehmﬂeeouﬂ%mforammlmﬂhmlmwunty.
goals of Title II of the Act to remove juveailes from jail and to foster commu-
nity-based alternatives to institutionalization are admirable. Unfortunately these al-
ternatives are not always available to amall rural counties. I would strong{y request
that Congress consider the distinctions between metropolitan and rural counties and
reasonable allowances for different treatment where required.
to the dictates of the Juvenile Justice and Deliquency Prevention Act
imq.l O'Brien's decision in the case of Hendrickson v. Griggs, et. al, the Iowa

=

egislature adopted Senate File 522 which tly restricts the use of adult jail for
the detention of juveniles. The Iowa law, eig:.tin Juﬁ, 1987, limits the use of jail
for judicatory detention of minors to those children age 16 and over, who are

accused of a felony, who constitute an immediate and serious danger to another or
another’s property and in those instances where l:!,iuvemle detention center is un-
i of others in a juvenile facili-
ty. {Towa Code Section 232.22(2)(c).] Additionaily, jail ntion is available only for
&mhnhmﬁ-@rbm&:mr;lﬂﬁ(nmﬁ?%ﬁﬁmxﬁ
detention hearing, i ight and sound separation from t detainees,
and there may not be any Teu restriciive alternative placement available.

A detention hearing is now required by Iowa Section 232.44(1) within
twenty-four (24) hours, excludmg&o:kenda and holidays, of the child’s admission to
a detention facility. Iowa Code n 282.44(3) ma::res at least twelve (12) hours
mnn;ﬁeetothechﬂd and the child's parents of the detention hearing. P xquiri

laced in detention at 6:00 a.m on Mon must be given a hearing by 6:00 a.m. on
, but nol'f'gnergujl 6:00 p.m. on o ,t:allowtimoforthztt?lv&hour
required notoce, Thus, the juvenile court ends up holding session after the unty
CounHounhcluedmdwithoutamwﬂwClorllg:nsﬂiceormﬁdm
ance. While the need for reasonabl mpt hearing after a child's placement in de-
tention and proper notice to the child’s parents are necessary to comport with due
process rmmonu. the present law has impractical results. Prior Iowa law which
uired tion hearings with 48 hours of the child's placement in dentention
and 24-hour prior notice to the child's parents was much more reasonable and still
afforded proper due process considerations.

The purpose of Iowa Senate File 522 was to severel limit the use of jail for the
detention of juveniles. Interestingly, however, the Referees in the rural First Judi-
cial District of Iowa had, with .ae encouragement of Juvenile Court Services, since
1985 made it a ?mctice not to jail juveniles. This pilot project was designed with

owa law soon would prohibit the jailing of juveniles in most in-

stances. ul,ourruralcountieldidnotseeazmatti:fac' m the 1987 law on

the number of juveniles jailed. Given we were commi ot to use jails for deten-

tion, we were required to examine several other options: (1) juvenile detention facili-

g:s, (2) shelter care; and (3) in-home detention with intensive supervision oy proba.
n.

While I recognize that alternatives to the physically restrictive detention centers
are favored, there do not exist those situations where detention is required. In rural
areas because of our low population density we do not see a large number of serious
deliquent acts involvi.na1 danger to others (murder, rape, robbery, or arson). More

b , theft, criminal mischief, and operating a motor vehicle while
toxicated cha.ral ht. Many times alcohol or drug abuse is a contributing

er possib) lewereleauachﬂdtohilorherwgaunuaﬁareommm' ion of a
i imited danger ‘0 others or other’s
W and the child’s parents have some control over the child, we place the
child on in-home detention wherein the child is required to be in his parents home
or in Jheir company at all times not in achool or employed with intensive supervi-
sion and monitoring given by probation and local law enforcement. Unfortunately
limited resources avaﬂble to probation supervision and the lack of appropriate pa-
rental control do not always allow the use of in-home detention. Where the juvenile
cannot be released to his nts due to the lack of their ability to control the
child’s behavior, the next least restrictive alternative is shelter care. This is the
non-secure institutional ing wherein trained staff monitor the child on a twenty-
four (24) hour basis. These facilities are not locked and thus not capable of
the chronic runa . Neither are they able to handle serious behavior lem chil-
dren. We have no sheler facility and are required to transport children six'y
(60) miles to another country’s shelter care facility. Often times this facility is un-
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ava:luble for our use because it is at capacity. These shelter care facilities do render
to us a valuable service where detention is not required.

With some regularity, perhaps once eve: one to two months, we in rural areas
are confronted with a child for whom nei in-home detention or shelter care is
an option. These cases often involve what I would term children who are “out-of-
control”. They have not aecessarily committed terribly serious delinquent acts, but
are chronic repeaters without remorse ¢~ the initiative to behave appropriately. I
have often seen young men who will burglarize a home, be released to their parents,
and even before the adjudicatory hearing (two weeks later) to have committed two
or three additional offenses. The child’s parents are virtually helpless to control the
child’s behavior, The protection of the community and of the child from himself/
herself dictates in such cases that detention be used. Unfortunately, detention facili-
ties are virtually non-existant for our use. The nearest iacility is ninety (80) miles
away in Linn County, Iowa. This facility is available to us only if not in use by Linn
County residents and requires of our detainees within twenty-four (24)
hours of the facility reaching capacity with Linn County residents. Because of the
distance to the facility and the fact the facility is nearly always full to capacity with
i i of this facility is seldom a practical solution. Addi-

of these distant facilities late at night has the practical effect of leaving ous county
extremely short-handed as respects law enforcement. When we are required to hold
a detention hearing within twenty-four (24) hours of the child’s placement :n deten-
tion and the only detendon facility available is four (4) hours away, the Deputy
bnrelfgeuthechildwthafacﬁi and returns to his office, and is again required to
travel to pick the child up for detention hear‘ng. Detention hearings are re-
gp”ifndmrymenﬁ)dmuﬁerthemitialhuﬁnuandwmpoundthetmmpom
nse

expense.

The difficulties we have had in ing detention facilities resulted in our at-
tempts over the two (2) years to develop a detention facility within forty-five
(45) milee through a cocpezative effort of the thirty-three (33) counties of the First
and Seccud Judicial districts of Iowa. The proposal finalized upon was to establish a
ten (10) bed detention center in a wing of the Bremer County Care Facility in Wa-
verly, Iowa. For a myriad of reasons from accessive distance to the facility to budg-
etary constraints, a total of thirteen (13) counties in the two districts commit-
ted to the project. due to the lack of participation, the relative cost shares of the
g::-lticipating counties doubled. It was estimated that renovation costs to make the

ilding suitable as a detention facility would be $150,000.00. When the bids were
opened, however, the lowest bid was $250,000.00. This caused the fow stalwart par-
hcipoﬁnﬁoounheswbalkonproeeeding.Thmthetwoyeamofstudyandworkon
the establishment of the detention center has been to a large extent fruitless. Before
plans for the facility can & funding alternatives must be studied. There is no
question that monies for the lishment of detention facilities designed to serve a
number of rural counties coming from the federal or state government would be
well-spent. The sharing of the facility by a number of nearby counties is advisable
to keep the facility at or near capacity.

Our local county has recently rencvated its jail to allow it to keep adult inmates
after having been closed for several years because it did not meet state jail stand-
ards. Additionally, the County remodeled a very attractive room which could be
used for the dctention of juveniles or women. This room is entirely separate by sight
and sound from adults, It is equipped with television cameras so that the child can
be viewed and supervised at all times by the staff. The room is attractively decorat-
ed and would provide a cheery environment. Unfortunately, under the present state
of the law, this room would seldom be available for the detention of juveniles and
then only for a very limited time.

To a large extent any other type of community-based alternative may not be real-
istic for small rural communities. Because the need for detention occurs only once
E'monthinucoun such as mir >, having a local facility and staff available only

detention makes little sense. Tue local Sheriff has the staff and facility already
which would uately serve the need.
R e B by detention hearings, our ounty may be
requiremen nty-four ur detention ings, our county may
forced to ide some short-term holding facility. We have considered the usc of a
room at tt 2 County Home but have no person to adequately staff the room. It is

102

K J




‘*’a

99

doubtful that without a substantial cost, the facility would meet State standards for
detention. Federal assistance to develop new and innovative programs for the short-
term detention of juveniles would be greatly appreciated if the detention require-
ments of the federal law are retained.

Two issues have arisen concerning when rural counties may use adult jail for
short-term detention. The first involves in what instances is a detention center “un-
available” under the lowa law intended to impleraent the federal requirement “that
no existing acceptable alternative placement [is] available” [42 U.S.C. Section
5633(14)i")]. It is not clear to our authorities whether a long distance to the facility
orthefactg;ioﬁtyilgiventochildmnwhomnuidentsofthefacility’seountyund
we seldom have space available there, make the center “unavailable”. If is
to give us no more definite standard, it is at a minimum necessary for the State of
Iowa to more adequately define this standard of “unavailability”’,

The second issue is whether juveniles over whom the juvenile court has waived
jurisdiction for prosecution of the child as an aduit may be detained in an adult jail
prior to senteacing. Most commentators believe based upon the Congressional
record that juveniles waived to adult court may be placed in adult jails but must be
aeparatedbflightandloundfmmadults.Neitherthelowahwnorthefederalact
b;!pecxfyt.he snh'tyofuseofjaﬂinmchnm.mmdimﬁononthisiuuewauld

I am seeing a t number of juveniles “graduating” from the juveénile delin-
quency court to adult criminal court. In many instances juvenile court and its
services are not adequately treating and rehabilitating the youthfui offenders. For
many years the judiciary’s priority has been with adult criminal court and adult
correctional servicer. The juvenile court has always been required to take a back
seat in the judiciat system. This must be changed. If we can adequately turn delin-
quent youth into constructive, law-abiding citizens, we will have little or at '-ast
less need for the adult criminal system. A change in priorities is needed. I az con-
stantlfy frustrated by the lack of services and placement alternatives we haw.: avail-
able for juveniles. juvenile court desparately needs resources to give intensive
in-home family counselling to rehabilitat> families as a whole and thus the child.
Where those efforts fail due to the parents’ inability ‘- - adequateiy control the
child's behavior, we need strong, caring foster parents . ’ available group home
lacements. A serious commitment is also roquired towa.i our State ini
hool to rehabilitate the physical plant and adeq:ately staff the facility. The provi-
sion of sufficieat bed space to allow the staff a chance to rehabilitate the child is

Title II—Runaway and Homeless Youth has as one of its purposes “developing
local facilities to deal primarily with the immediate needs of runaway youth, and
their famulies, in a manner which is outside the law enforcement structure and ju-
venile justice system”. This portion of the nct restates the philosophy that we
should make a sharp distinction between a status offender (runaway child) and the
child who is alleged to have committed a delinquent act. .

Several times each year we see children who run away from neighboring states,
Minnesota and Wisconsin, who have taken either their parents’ car or hs_ve stolen a
car from a stranger. In both cases the children are risks to run further and techni-
cally both have committed delinquent acts. Still, seldom if ever, will a child s par-
ents have the child prosecuted for the theft. Thus, under the present distinction be-
tween “status offenses” and delinquency, or.y the child who stole the car from the
stranger could be held in secure detention. This distinction in such a case makes
little practical sense.

There is no question in my mind that placing runaways in adult jails for any
period of time is not aﬂptopmte There is often, however, the need for a secure fa-
cility to house the child until the child’s parents or authorities can take custody of
the child or to assure the child’s presence for future court proceedings. Provided a
detention facility is adequately staffed, I believe such a placement may be approrri-
ate in certain circums.ancss. I do not believe a child would be branded “a delin-
ﬁnt" merely by being placed in a detontion ceiter until a parent could take the
child igyﬁo m Nor dot I believe the runaway’s health or well-being to be endan-
gered a placement.

To date I have seen no planning for, nor establishment of, a strictly “runaway”
holding center in our vicinity. Nor do I believe one is necessary in our rural area
provided the juvenile court has adequate shelter care and detention fac.lities avail-
able. It seems inadvisable from an eeonomiclpoint of view to establisk a whole new
set of shelters for runaway children. Thus, I would recommend oglucmz the scaice
financial resources more toward the establishment and staffing of juvenile shelters

e
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and detention facilities to be used by all children, whether only status offenders or

not.
With due consideration for my foregoing comments, I respectfully recommend re-
aAt‘l;.horimtion of Titles II and IIT of the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention

Sincerely, D
Juvenile Court Referee,
First Juicial District of fowa.

Mr. Kipee. Thank you very much. Pat Hendrickson.

STATEMENT OF PATRICIA M. HENDRICKSON, CHIEF JUVENILE
COURT OFFICER, SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT, DAVEN-
PORT, IA

Ms. HenDRICKSON. Thank you.

I am the Chief Juvenile Court Officer for the Seventh Judicial
District of Iowa. In Iowa, there are eight judicial districts. Referee
Allbee comes from a large rural district; mine is probably geo-
graphically the smallest. It encompasses only five counties, three of
which border on the Mississippi River. So, by Iowa’s standards, we
are probably an urban judicial district.

So, we do encounter different problems. Several of our judicial
districis are exceptionally large. It takes hours to go from one end
to the other. I do not have that problem. I can travel from one end
of mine to the other in a little over an hour. So, the problems are
different.

My written remarks focus on what this Act has done for lgiljudi-
cial district i the seven years that I have been in the judicial dis-
trict, and I think those remarks are fairly explanatory. We have
received a great deal of the money and have made a great deal of
progress in the area of jail alternatives. Part of that was we were
dragged kicking and screaming into that in Scott County because
there was a class action suit against Scott County regarding the
jailing of juveniles in that particular jail, because it was really
tacky and unfit and there was a suit and a federal decree that
Scott County would stop doing that. ]

Luckily for Scott County at that time, there was money available
through the JJDP Act to operate and staff a new detention center.
So, for three years, Scott County received extensive funds which
were used to start-up and run what to this day remains a quality
detention program.

I think it still holds the distinction of being the smallest deten-
tion center in the United States. It has a capacity of six. That has
presented some problems for us since jail removal.

I can specifically speak to what Referee Allbee was talking
about, we have a policy in Scott County at our detention center of
first priority for county residents, second priority for judicial dis-
trict residents, third priority, him.

So, the other day, we a Dubuque youngster who was brought
to us the day before and wgrg:ve our standard, you can have the
bed as long as it is here. t bed was available fcr less than
twenty-four hours and we were calling them and saying come get
him. Well, you know, talk about peorle driving beck and forth
around this state, and to my mind, all the detention centers had
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exactly that policy and there are only four in this whole state. So,
it is a problem. !

The other benefits we have received specifically from these funds
have to do with new programming and you have heard some talk
how in this state, a lot of the money has been used to develop or
;M@up whl:a: wf%ﬁiewthas new or innov:iiiilvi programs me state,

then, hope: » those programs eep going use an-
other-funder will )::k them up.

We have done that in our district with what we call the intensive
supervision programs, and these are programs that deal with a
very small number of youngsters but on a very intensive basis.
Youngsters without whom this program, if it were not for this fro-
gram, they are likely to be placed at either the training school or
some sort of residential gogmmmmg at a very extreme cost not
onilgcto +hem emotionally but, of course, to the taxpayers.

h of those receive their start-up moneys through
JJDPA funds. What happens then is you have a couple years’ furd-
ing, you are able to lish a track record, some data as to how
the proqra.ms work, and as Jim Swaim said, then your local
funders look at that, you can present some facts to them and the
do not think you are just ing pie in the sky, maybe it wi
maybe it will not. You do have some data to show we preventid
this ma:g' fgnlaoements, etc., and we have been able to get on-going
continu ding for those.

What I like even better about these two programs, these are
services that would normally be considered probation services.
Something that we as government employees, probation is usually
a government function, would be expected to provide.

our case, we have contracted with the private agency provid-
ers, some of whom you saw here earlier. They are provi'xng that
service. So, what we have developed is more of a public/private
kind of partnership, where we sub-contract for those services. It is
kind of we are in this together sort of a deal. It is not just a
government function of us saying we are the only ones that can su-
pervise delinquents. We have others now committed to, yeah, we
can supervise delinquents, too, and maybe even do it better than
you can, certainly probably more cost-effective than government.

It seems like government costs more to do almost anything than
the private sector. Maybe because they only pay $11,000 a year for
_t%neir youth care workers. That probably has something to do with
i

At any rate, I think one of the real benefits of that has been
more of a sens2 of community involved with delin&uent youngsters
and youngsters who are viewed as problematic, and I think those of
us—as practitioners, I was thinking about Justin, who is a little
boy I had some direct contact this week, and I do not have much
direct contact with delinquents in my administrative capacity.

Justin is ryour fourteen-year-old basic profile delinquent from
Davenport. I mean, he is not unusual as delinquents go. He has
been spending the week in our office because he was suspended
from school. When you are on probation, you are suspended from
school, we do not want you sitting home watching TV, so you have
to come down to our office and sit during school hours and that
acts, hopefully, as a deterrent because it is real boring down there.
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Well, Justin sat there for most of Monday and decided he really
had enough and our secretary called him on some behavior, he was
doing something with a chair, and he—all I heard was a string of
obecenities a mile long and slamming of the door. So, I left my
officz and just brought Justin back to my office and I told him he
had to wait for his probation orricer, and he sat there, I pretended
to ignore him, you know, I am going to go on about my business
and just let Justin sit, swearing. It just about drove me crazy, but
he was just so angry and his probation officer came in and he un-
leashed another string of obscenities about how awful this was and
he was not going to stay here a minute longer, but he did, and
angry—the kind of delinquent everybody thinks about.

The next day, Justin is back because he is still no: back in
school. We gave him the assignment of decorating the office Christ-
msas tree to kind—it took Justin the whole day to decorate the
office Christmas tree, which is kind of tacky to begin with because
it is second-hand from somewhere. He put it together all wrong. It
does not have a top. The top is sticking out, but he spent the whole

day.

¥oint, I am getting to the point, honestly. When he was done, he
was 8o proud and we all came in tkere and he must have gotten
10,000 compliments about how wonderful this Christmas tree
looked, and you could just see him pump up and become Eagle
Scout material. Honestly, just by that. I mean, he felt so good from
tne anger the day before to here he was getting some positive rein-
forcement, felt good about himself. That is what we want for
Justin. We want Justin to feel like that all the time because if
Justin feels like that, he is probably not going to take your TV the
next time he is in your house.

You know, now we do not need the federal Act to develop Jus-
tin’s individual care plan, how do we keep Justin from taking your
TV. We can do that at the local level, but what the Act does for
Justin, I think, is establish a baseline, a bottom line of services,
aaying below this, you should not go. Justin does not belong in jail
at age fourteen, and I truly believe he does not.

Justin belongs in the community, if at all possible, where he can
receive treatment and services in his own community, where he
has his identity and he has his family. I think, you now, bringing it
down to an individual child’s level, that is what the Act does for
children throughout this country.

I spent a lot of years in San Diego as a probation officer. I can
tell vou that in my mind, Justin could exist in San Diego just as
weli as he exists in rural Iowa. You know, there are national prob-
lems requiring national attention to them, and I think the Act does
that very well, and I would urge reauthorization.

Thank you.

(The prepared statement of Patricia M. Hendrickson follows:)
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SzvenTH JubiciAL DsricT,
JuveNiLE CoOURT SERVICES,
Davenport, IA, December 4, 1987,

Fon. Darz Kn.oer,
Chairman, Members of the Subcommittee on Human Resources, Committee on Edu-
cotion and Labor, U.S. House of Representatives, Washington, DC.
CoNGRESsMAN KnpEz AND MEmsERs or THE CoMMITTEE: The comments that
follow are made to support a strong recommendation for reauthorization of the Ju-
venile Justice and Delin Prevention Act.
As a juvenile justice practitioaer for over twentx g:an, I have watched juvenile
justice evolve from a system where children coul carcerated sim| lﬁnfor t.h;
quen

misfortune of born to inadequate ts to a system which treats
humanely butbl:::& them accountable for their actions. We're moving in the right

The Juvenile Justice and lﬁ}nqueuc{'hl;rwention Act provides a national focus
for efforts which hl:nui';a be.ndmade Jocally. Act mhich :l::h :tates v_vhotparuot'cipaﬁe
go a pl prioritizing process w or not occur
without Act. Scarce resources dictate that this process occur. We cun’t afford
fragmentation, duplication of efforts, and throwing money at efforts which don’t ad-
dress pmblem or attempt to provide solutions.

I think I can best present my argument for reauthorization by reporti%:; you
what this Act has done for my Judicial District in the past seven years. are
the local benefits received from a national program,

1. Development of a juvenile detention center, in-home detention program and 24
hour detention acnemgzby Juvenile Court Off:cers.

In 1980, 1981, and 1882 my juris liction received JJDP maney which provided for
the start up and operating costs ¢f each of the above programs. In spite of much
initial ] resistance, the programs proved successful and remain fully operational
to date. Local officials as a group are committed to the philosophy that jail is not an
appropriate option for delinquent childrer.

tly we are receiving JJDP morey to expand detention alternatives (in-
hoine detention) to our more rural counties.

2. The develogmsnt of two intensive supervision programs designated tc keep chil-
dren (ho would otherwise be placed’ in their own Yxames in their owr communities.
Several years JJDP funds were provided to initiate each of these permamn
Both remair. fully operational to date and are now funded locaily. I wil! rate
on each of tho programs because they have characteristics unique to each of them.

(a) Fant;:il: Rmume:.alr::.u In:ﬂngir:e S“ﬁmhwi‘.ym bgf:l %;vaﬁe. t‘amnlhye sem;ﬁe

ncy, p m ¢ n in the ear elinquency where mul-
f.lgelec{unily pm:m are present. These children are candidates for out of home
placement, not because of their delinquent behavior, but because of family dysfunc-
tion. The program focuses on improved family function wiuch will eliminate the de-
lin%l:ent behavior. The children are usually younger adolescents, and there is likely
to be a history of abuse or neglect with prior services by human service agencies.

(b) Valiey Shelter Unified Delinquency Intervention Service—Rur by a private
community agencz, this pmﬁ!rlam children who are to be committed to the
State Training School for delinquent behavior. These children usually have multiple
delinquencies and have not responded to tlar probation intervention. Daily in-
tm;aive s:&ebrlviaio:f is provided as vev:ll as awocun on mh;]t:ltion, community service,
and ‘cce) e ormance in an educational or vocational program. This program
has ‘uch credibﬂiety with the local « venile Court Judgr, that he insists on a screen-
ing sy the program before he will send a child to the State Training School.

Additiona) benefits from both these programs include a public-private pa-tnership
1n working with delinquents. Historically, probation services are seen as a govern-
ment function. With the advent of these private agencies, their Boards of
Directors and others become invested in working with these children in our commu-
nity. At long last we maJl be getting away from the lon,g-held belief that if we “gel
theee kids out of town’ they will somethow “get better” by being away from family

and friends.

In summary, I believe the JJDP Act provides a national focus to juvenile prob-
lems which necessitates a response, hopefully positive, from juvenile justice practi-
tioners, The furds made available as of the Act can generate creative and new
responses to the. ,)roblems onal basis. Qur experience has been that if these
“Creative and ne./’ responses are carefully designed and data shows that they do in
fact addrees the problems (in our case, jail removal and community cars),
local funders will pick up the cost and the programs will continue. The Seventh Ju-
dicial District if Iowa thanks the Congrees for giving us the opportunity to contin-

107




104

ually improve our services to delinquent children. We, like other jurisdictions,
haven’t found all the solutions yet. Reauthorization of the Act will keep us moving

Respectfully submitted,
Patricia M. HeNDRICKSON,
Chief Juvenile Court Officer,
Seventh Judicial District of Iowa.

Mr. KiLpes. Thank you very much, Pat. Senator.

STATEMENT OF JULIA GENTLEMAN, STATE SENATOR

Ms. GENTLEMAN. Chairman Kildee and Congressman Tauke, I
greatly appreciate being inserted into the program, thereby mini-
mizing my legislative anguish of keeping my mouth shut all morn-
ing, and I am very grateful, indeed, that you, Congressman Kildee,
are chairman of this committre because I like what I have gleaned
of your philosophy in dealing with children and their importance.
They so often take second considerations.

I know Congressman Tauke. He generally wore a white hat most
of the time I served with him in the fowa House.

Since I am a last-minute fill-in, you will have to forgive me for
the testimony being somewhat disjointed, but my first impression
was that you needed some sense of background in to where Iowa
has been with this thing. I am getting the feeling that you think
that Iowa’s concern with juvenile justice began last year, with last
year’s legislation, and that is not the case. In fact, I am not sure
why we had to do an{th.i.ng.

Iowa, as Ron Stebl sa‘d, has been in the forefront of this issiue.
Interim studies began in the summer of 1975, when I was a brand-
new legislator. At that time, a good part, if not the r ajority, of the
girls in our training center were there because of promiscuous be-
havior. The kids in Toledo, which is the juvenile home now for chil-
dren in need of assistance, as well as the delirquent girls, the chil-
dren in Toledo are housed—were kids who found school unreward-
ing and played hooky and they were often—and there were others,
too, but they were often kept in a locked ward along with greatly-
disturbed and delinquent kids.

Children were locked up without any court order or even crurt
knowledge and left for v.cvks in legal limbo. One of the favorite
jobs of the local probation officer, as I will recall, was, at parental
request, coming out to one’s home and routing sixteen-year old
louts out of bed, so they would go to school. That was no longer
possible when we passed the juvenile code revision in 1978, and we
delayed implementation so it ‘could be di .

Controversy obtains and remains to thi day. When we rewrote
vhe ccde, we were speaking really in response to an effective coali-
tion of people who were concerned with children as well as re-
sponding to a Supreme Court decision of Gault. Rather more that
than to Congress.

But the existence of this Act is absolutely essential for us keep-
ing in place what we have, and I see it more in terms of that then
the wonderful money that comes down with it. Of course, the
money, you see, gives clout. So, the legislature can say if you do
this, we will not get that. It has been helpful.
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Our revision of the code established clear-cut procedures for deal-
ing differently with children in need of assistance who had been
formerly the abused —sglected kids. Differently for which the chil-
dren in need of assiscance which I will call from deling ieut kids. It
| extended, due to all children in the system, requiring coun-
. sel for thooe churged or for whom petitions were filed.

. 1t established least drastic alternative response. It excluded
status offenders. It required bifurcated hearin: systems which all
s these things had not happencd before this, and there were a lot of
L) hearing i ts. There were waivers required for transfer, es-
. tablished javenile court as court of jurisdiction and required
waivers when kids were changed over to adult court, and then
at%?establ?:hetg‘t ther interesting and i th
: a rather in and innovative program or
system called Families In Need Of Assistance, which recognized the
fact that lem troubled children are not operating in a vacuum,
but are o times the victims of family disorders.
Now, what happens with a falling out of conformity vo—with the
JJDP, we have to open up this whole can of worms again and that,
I can assure you, was done with fear and trepidation because still
the people are chur.ing in certain localities, especislly in my own.
For some reason, the Des Moines community and, in particular, the
Des Moines Police Department has been severely inconvenienced
and has had from the beginning great problems with this Act.
I!mow;vell thatd:l;?yf vepmblemtslbecsu:&ll havebeehl:nt:ers
pository of a of irate parental an ers complaints an
thephonega_.lfwd something like this, and it started back in 1979.
I know of this kid in my neighborhood is breaking into so and so or
doing such and such and I called the police and they said, we can
do nothing, our hands are tied, because of the juvenile revision.
They say call Gentleman because she wrote it. So, they call me
and I tell thom that if a child has committed a delinquent act, that
is what the .aw is supposed to get at and, in fact, the hands are not
tied, the police have every right to gi::k up and should, avery duty
to pick up, they do not believe me. So, it been a very frustrat-
inf exercise through the years.
do not believe thatweneededtomakethosechangeslastgear
because I think that this fine-tuning has gotten ., into more iffi-
culty and I certainly with law enforcement that changing the
age—we had an age that you could jail kids and, mind you, when
you put someone in jail under the old code, there were require-
ments, but our age was fourteen. Then, you tell us it had to be six-
teen. ] do want you to tell me why that, if that is, in fact, the case,
that we cannot—we cannot jail in a separate setting with supervi-
2] sion, these are al' quirements that our law spells out, had to be
monitored, they haa to be—there had to be a complete vaparate
keeping of tliem, and the chiid had to be at least fourteen.
ow, it ic sixteen, and I think that probably does cause some
S trouble because if part of the goal of the law is to protect society,
surely we want to go after the ro''s or violent offenders and,
Tom, you asked that question, and I think it ought to be age four-
teen because there are fourteen-year-old murderers out there, and
in many—as you have heard, in many of the rural areas, you have
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::io place to put them. I think we have gone too far in that direc-
on.

Just very quickly. You asked the question, what would happen if
u discontinued funding the Juvenilc Justice and Delinquency
ntion Act, and I think we would begin to jail kidsa%a.inbe-
cause if we do not have that clout that says if we start to lock up
runaways, anﬂc}e they watntad to do that, they watggd—etg&ery tirme
webn.n%up thing, it is a chronic runaway category that is con-
ceived of, because there are kids out there that are in trouble and
thereis a ition that we want to help everybodr
Unfortunaﬁ;, u mall&ecannot help everybody, but what is the
chronic runaway? Well, definition was a child who has run
away three times and I cannot remember the period of time with-
out permission for twelve hours or more. Well, that is idiotic. You
cannot begin to put people in a system that in the main, despite all
theee and services we have, makes things worse rather than

better.

So, I would hope thnt you would continue to offer the Iowa L?fw‘

Lature ut’hat very considerable clout as well as the dollars that flow
own to us.

Mr. Knpee. Thank you very much, Senator, for your testimony.

Let me direct this to you first, Dale, and the others may join in.
Part of the purpose of the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Pre-
vention Act is to really force those who deal with g‘gveniles, the
police and other agencies, the courts, in a sense, to be innovative,
to find alternative ways f dealing with them.

I think we have found instances where states did become innova-
tive maybe only because of the Juvenile Justice Act. They were
forced to be innovative.

Do you find that the restrictions in the Juvenile Justice A .t on
detaining youths, who have committed a crime, as oppor .d to
status o pose any real danger to the public, or is it more a
matter of inconvenience and difficulty for the agency?

Sergeant ParcH. Well, the Federal act, I do not think is as de-
tailed as the Iowa Code.

Mr. Kuwoee. OK.

Sergeant PatcH. The Iowa Code, I would say, yes, in certain situ-
ations, it would cause a danger to the public. The main thing that
we are trying to say with the 24-hour recommendation is, you
know, let us just have that time v handle it and get them out of
the jail system. We dc not v ant to keep them there, and if, after 24
hours, we have not resolved it, we have not placed them back home
or in o foster home or wherever they can go, shelter care, then the
24-hour period gives us that leeway, you know, and the sight and
sound separation is really what the problem is in the Des Moines
area anyway.

We have separcte—you know, there is a solid wall between the
adult bull pen and the juvenile bull pen, but, you know, it depends
on how fine-tuned you get with that sight and sound, you know.
For instance, we have to walk the adult past that door to get
them to the adult bull pen and then, of course, they can hear them
if they are ing loudly or screaming like some ol them do.

I do not think the intent of the Federal act was to get that finely
tuned with the juveniles, you know. I think as a short-term stay
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that allows us the time to harle it for an¥I delinquent act, you
{:inow, it is to the benefit of the public and the kids and the fami-

&8.

Mr. Kipex. You ssy your problem as you see it is with the more
restrictive aspects of the more recent state statute?

Sergeant Parch. Yes, sir. I agree that it is not the Federal stat-
ute and that is why my recommendations are so minimal an that,
but, overall, I think it is an attempt tn comply with the figures per-
cen ise of keeping the juveniles out of the jail settirg. That is
wl& ey made the restrictions so great.

, in y, it does tie back into this act.

Mr. Kioee. 1 talked, oh, within the last year or two with a gen-
tleman from the State of Utah, and Utah is not exactly a bastion of
liberalism. You know, it is a pretty solid conservative State, and
they really have made the Juvenile Justice Act work.

have been forced to be innovative. They have been forced to
find alternatives. Now, albeit, I grant that it takes money and the
amount of money that we give you is not very much—we have less-
ened the amount of money—we used to be up to $100 million; in
the last 7 years, the Administration has asked for zero dollers and
we have been able to maintain about $70 million. With Tom’s help,
Ke have been able to maintain that after the initial cut to $70 mil-

on.

So, it does take, you know, the expenditures of money. I think it
is a combination of federal dollars, state dollars and maybe local
dollars, however the state is constituted, but they have in Utah
been forced to be innovative and have even in the rural areas, and
}IJ%% Ais very rural, found ways to carry out the mandates of

And what I can gather, the attitude out here in Iowa is that you
really want to be innovative, but you see some particular problems
without a certain variety of facilities existing.

Sergeant Parch. Certainly. You know, I would have no objection
to the act or anything else if we already he1 these facilities ready
to go, then we would not have a problem: about keeping them in
adult facilities, because we would havglplenty of the juvenile facili-
ties available. That is our problem. We do not have them there.
Tﬂi:aetcart is before the horse now and we are trying to struggle with

I do not think the public understands when they call the police
and, like Julia says, we sometimes will have to tell them we cannot
do anything with them, and upecia]{{av;ith Senate File 522, that is
true in more situations than befzre, we could not do anything,
at least what they expected us to do as law enforcement officers.

We are the first line, you kncw, we are supposed to come and
settle the problem for them, and they see us releasirg the juveniles
and not being able to do anything temporarily in ¢ ar adult facility
because, you know, one of the standards in Jowa is that there has
to be a felony before we can put them in there and the juvenile
facility we have has got 18 beds or 19 beds, I guess it is, for the 18-
county Fifth Judicial District.

So, you can see that they are going to screer: out that pretty seri-
ously so that the beds are there for the serious offenders and right-

1+
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fully so. But, in the mear time, we have got all those other levels
of offenders that we are having problems dealing with.

I'de not want to get into an argument about money because, you
know, that is not my place, but certainly you are right, there is not

Mrthﬁacilitigsr%,ﬁi f Co of da

. pee. Origi sin o ngress, of course, is mandating
things an~' not funding and that happens at state legislative levels,
too, having served in that body &r 12 years, I think that we
really—uny legislative body, whether it be at the Federal or state
level, could de better following a mandate with the check that is
rezn uired to carry it out. But we will try to do more on that.

yone else have comments on that? Pat?

Ms. HevpricksoN. Well, to follow up on that comment, our state
advisory group, I think, has gone in on it. It is not the kind of
money that comes in and it is not gomg to immediately give us all
the services that we need in all different parts of the state, but we
have been very careful to those areas of the state and even
to the point of identifying which counties use jails the most and
targeting those counties for the receipt of the money that you send
us, and I think to some extent, we had to be.

If we waited for all the services to be develolped before this law
was g:!ed, they would never have gotten developed. It was sort of
like Scott County, you know. Somebody had to say, you have got to
do it and you have got to do it yesterday, and sometimes that is the
way things get resolved.

do ot advocate to that all the time, but I think in this in-
stance, I have a county in my district who is heavily using fbail
prior to July 1 end we thought the world was just going to fall
apart if we could not use that jail following July. It has not. That
county has probably only held three youngsters since July 1 and
crime is not running rampant in that county.

We have got to evaluate that a little further and I do not want to
make bold statements that there will not be any increase at all,
you know. We are too short in the time frame, but I think we need
to look at the situation and it may not be long-run as bad as we are

inking it is or some of us are thinking it is.

Mr. Kiper. All analogy is limp, bat I recall at times telling my
one son, your room has to be cleaned up. He said, “Dad, it is reall
80 disorganized now, 1tis§:a' to take me all day”. And then I wi
say, “Well, you can't watc tonight until you clean your room.”
It is amazing how innovative he gets in finding ways to clean that
room up. So, very often, a little pressure does help those matters.

Let me ask you this. Has the rural exception been used, will it be
used now that you have applied for it. Will that help some in Iowa?
The rural exception?

Sergeant PATCH. On—to give them more time?

Mr. Kipee. Yes. That is right.

Sergeant Parcu. Well, my concern is the opposite. For the metro-
mtan areas, apparently this act, from my assumption, I do not

ike to read into it— ]

Mr. Koz, This would be outside the metropolitan areas.

Sergeant PatcH. Yes, and there is restriction in Iowa for those
standard metropolitan statistical areas. We cannot get an exten-
sion beyond 6 hours for dealing with this juvenile in the adult de-
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tention facility. We %et them placed in the juvenile facility or re-

lease them after the
24 hours.

And, {:m know, I think that the distinction was made that the
metropolitan statistical area would have adequate facilities, ade-
quate access to the courts and that type of thing or it could be re-
solved more easily than in the rural setting.

But we are finding that that is not true because of our inad-
ﬂ“&“m}‘."‘a Kildee, if I might just t

. . Congressman ee, might just comment on
that. I do think that it magesstused to some extent. However, be-
cause of the nature of the that can be placed there, that the
child has to have committed a felony, we may not use it that much.

What I see more often, and this even goes to your first question
about the danger to the community, we see the kil who is the
chronic repeat offender maybe not necessarily always a felony but
gerhaps we have him picked up on a burglary charge, for instance,

ut we decide, well, with in-home detention, we can handle the sit-
uation.

Before the adjudicatory hearing, which be one to two weeks
down the road, he has committed two or more delinquent
acts. Could be an assault, could be a theft, maybe not necessarily
big things, but he is a danger. He is somewhat of a danger and he
is out of control. The parents have absolutely no control and proba-
tion and police officers with their limited resources are not able to
ggt a tap on that child, and that is the child that we are going to

ve a problem with. He is not going to be placed in jail, probably
could not be and should not be.

But we are going to need the detention facility. We are going to
need one available to us in that instance, and I guess that is my

cr{dr. KiLpxx. Tom.

Mr. Taure. Let me try to get a little handle on some maybe
retty mundane, but, practical things. One of my objectives in this
earing is to get a better feel for what actually is happening out

there on a day-to-da{abasis.

S:fopose that you have somebody who is involved in some kind of
an illegal activity and is picked up, arrested, by the police here in
Des Moines or elsewhere 1n the state of Iowa, and the kid does not
talk, does not have angeID, how do ﬁou determine how to handle
them? They al;’;:iar to be a juvenile. How do you determine wheth-
er or not somebody is a juvenile, I guess, is the question?

Sergeant PatcH. Well, that is one of the things that the Iowa
Code for us, that I have testified before. We have had maybe
a little bit of Polanza tion there on interpretation, but from my
standpoint, at least subjectively and from the city of Des Moines’
standpoint } K‘,mwe are not going to arrest the misdemeanor,
you know, who covered navigational laws, traffic laws, that

hours if we . \nnot apply for the extension to

type of thing, if he does not give us any information, if he refuses
to sign, 80 on and so0 forth. We are releasing him. We are not jail-
ing him for that because of the wording of the Iowa Code. Not the
Federal statute, but—because, indi y, they are trying to keep
juveniles out of jail to comply with this Act. So, that is why they
passed those more restrictive standards.
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For the more serious offenses, you know, we are going to hold
them and we are going to find out who they are, but we do have a
problem with some young adults claiming to be juveniles.

Mr. TAUKE. | was fnmg to ask you that. If it works the other way
around. How do you know?

Sergeant Parch. Well, we do not, and, 80, you know, of course,
from a liability standpoint, the city is sayiﬁ well, if they say they
are juveniles, do not chance it, you know, take their word for it, let
them 5)0 The worst that happens is they g on down the road and
then they can tKoint the finger back at the state legislature and
say, well, it is their law, you know, so that is why we let them go,
and, you know, I am just saying that I am not here to, you know,
argue the point with the legislature, but let us try and get some-
thing constructive done.

Mr. TAUKE. Just trying to figure out what happens. Okay.

Now, suppose thag:u have——

Ms. GENTLEMAN. I just respond to that at this point? There
seems to be—I am glad that the police department is as cautious as
it appears to be, but there seems, I think, in the law, reasonable

because it says if they have reason to believe that a child
has committed a delinquency act, and I am sure that the liability
issue would not obtain if they were making a good faith effort to
observe the law.
_tsifilamnotsurethatallthiscautioniswarrantedbythebill
itself.

Mr. TAUkE. Let me talk a little bit now about the problem of the
individual who is chronic. Suppose ggu have a juvenile who is
spray painting the park bench. Maybe breaking a curfew in the
Euk hal;v:ﬁ a party. The police come, break up the party, but the

ids go into the park.

What do the police do at that juncture?

Sergeant PaTcH. Again, under Iowa law, the park curfew has
mandated that we issue a citation.

Mr. Taukk. Okay.
aﬂSergeaﬁx: ParcH. You know, we would not take them down to the
jail for that.

Mr. TAuke. Suppose they keep going back? what's your alterna-
tive—

Sergeant ParcH. That is the problem we have. We are powerless
to do with them what we need to do with them.

Mr. TAUKE. Alan, what would you suggest? Or su that they
are spray painting stop signs or something in West Union, and you
take them in, they %?l back out and they spray paint more stop
signs in West Union. How do you handle that kind of thing?

. ALLBEE. Again, we try the intensive in-home supervision. I
would imagine that is about all we could do.

Ms. HenpricxsoN. Well, I think at that point, you know, if we
are talking about a group of repeat offensives within a short time
before they even Fet to court, we probably would look at bringi
them into court for some sort of heaﬁn’fkbecause certainly they
have endangered the JJroperty of others. Tkere is a criteria for de-
tention and we would screen that. We have a juvenile detention
center.

Mr. TAUEKE. Yes.

1i4
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Ms. HENDRICKSON. So, of course, they could qualify for that.

Mr. Tauxe. The problem seems to then focus on the availabilit
of juvenile detention. In Weet Union, your problem would be witg
the rl:gleat or chronic offender. No facility available. That is the

Mr. Aieez. That is right.

Mr. TAuke. I mean, if the facility were available, you could take
the person who has consistently spray painted the stop signs, let us
say, and if the in-home detention did not work, you could put them
in the facility.

Mr. That is right.
ﬁel:@?r. Tauxe. Why is the state so slow in getting detention facili-

Ms. GENTLEMAN. Money.

Ms. HENDRICKSON. There is disagreement about the number of
additional beds needed, too. You know, there is some disagreement
about how many additional detention beds we need.

I do not think there is any disagreement that we need something
and somethilxhi:l underway in the First and Second Judicial Dis-
tricts where is from use there is nothing serving Water-
loo, Dubuque, those fairly large areas.

Mr. Tauke. This probably seems like an extremely naive ques-
tion, but I am naive, I guess, so I will ask it. It just seems to me
that it would be quite feasible to have a room in each courthouse
in the state that could serve as a facility that would be adjacent to
the sheriff’s office or something.

Are the standards so difficult to meet that we are talking huge
sums of money or what is the deal here?

Mr. ALLBgE. I do not know if they have been totally explored. We
have a very, very nice room, attractively decorated, right in the
sheriff’s office, but because it is in the sheriff's office, they are sep-
arate buildings but they are attached, if you can understand that,
and because they are attached, it is a jail and we cannot use it. But
it is an attractive room. It would serve the purpose.

Mr. Taure. Under the state law, is this, or under federal or
where is that problem arising?

Mr. Stookey. We had that——

Mr. TAuke. Identify mlf for the record, please.

M:. StookEY. I am in Stookey, Des Moines Police Depart-
ment.

We had that problem in our city. We had gone to the state jail
inspector. He come down and observed our facility. Per se, the first
two floors was not a jail. We had to come clear to the third floor,
which is the abandoned maintenance ward, which we no longer
have females there, and that being up one floor, we could deter-
mine that was a detention center for juveniles.

Once, per se, you say, jail an adult, that is a jail. That is the way
the state jail inspector under the law——

Mr. TAUKE. Sl(llp I am in rural Iowa, okay, at the sheriff's
office here. Could I have a room over here for the juvenile deten-
tion and a roon\ over there for the adult detention?

Mr. STooxEY. Again, that would be pursuant to the state jail in-
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Mr. ArLuez. I do not think we have—we have asked the state jail
inspector. They have come. They have looked at it. We had a prob-
lem even jailing adults for one time but they finally got it up to
standard there, plus the standards were reduced somewnat.

But the problem we had was that it is adequate for sight and
sound separation, but we still must meet the state requirements be-
cause the building is, in fact, a jail, according to their standards.

Sergeant PatcH. If it is intended or used for the detention of
adults, then it is classified as an adult detention facility.

Mr. Tauke. OK. It just does not seem to me as if it should be
that difficult to come up with some detention facilities. I would not
think that we are talking about heavy bars and ull kinds of special
facilities that are going to cost huge sums of money. I am having a
little difficulty grasping why this is such a challenge to the state
and to local people.

You are spending $136 a day in transportation problems. I
should think the supervisors would find it more feasible to find a
rooYm ‘1?n the county facility some place.

es

Ms. HenpricksoN. I think part of it is that we are still doing a
little county-State stuff because we have this little thing in the
Iowa law that says the State shall pay up to 50 percent of the de-
tention costs, and county boards of sugrvisors point to that every
year and say, by gosh, get the State to kick in their 50 percent.

The State is kicking it. It is up to 50 percent. ear, the
State kicks in one- of 1 percent. So, it is kind of this little
battle over who is going to pay for these costs, that the counties
keep saying that the State should pick up more of the tal; and the
State says the counties have the responsibility just like adult pris-
oners tg,r: and, 8o, we have never kind of gotten that ironed out as
part of i

Mr. ALLBkE. I-guess we have also looked at it from the stand-
point perhaps it would be better because we do not need it terribly
often, 6 to 12 times a year perhaps in my county, that it would be
money better spent for the counties to pool, to have a facility. It
may be difficult to get someone who would be on call for staff in a
small county who they may use 6 to 12 times a year.

It may be wiser to have the group band together, but, again,
there is the problem that we are not getting the funding.

Ms. GENTLEMAN. But it is also a quustion of who belongs in a de-
tention facility, too.

Mr. TAuke. Yes.

Ms. GENTLEMAN. And when you change the net, then you are
gggn;g to expand the re&u.uixgements. There is something like 57 or 87

, detention beds, ughout these four facilities. Of course,
Polk County has one of those as has been referred to, and, yet, the
figures show that over half, I think something in excess of 3,000
kids, were put in the Des Moines jail here, even though we had this
facility, which I do not think is full all the time, and will be less
full, of course, as you begin to draw the line.

Your examli)lle of a spray %aineer guggests that that is, indeed,
irksome and illegal behavior, but do you really want to unleash the
full force of the law here and as Pat has pointed out, you can get
them on property offense, you can lock them up, but perhaps we
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are misplacing the emphasis on our really limited resources, not
just in Jowa, but everywhere, and we should be focusing them
more.

It seems to me the dangerous offender is 7ne that needs deten-
tion and should be provided, anc the children at a ver(y young agr
should have the kinds of services that are in troubled families, but
when you get to be somebody who is just defying the law at age
sixteen and coming out and missing curfews and things, I am not
sure what you can do shout that in detention.

Mr. Taukz. I am not sure either. That is why I asked the ques-
tion. Let me just ask a final question and I know we are running
late now, but the age issue.

We have been trying to shake our heads up here to try to figure
out why you think that we have st the required age at sixteen.
Ms. GENTLEMAN. No. I was told that. I tried to change that
during—for 2 years while we were debating this and they said—
and, of course, I never ran it down, but they say, oh, that is the
federul requirement. If you change it to fourteen, you will jeopard-
ize your funds. It has to be sixteen.

. HENDRICKSON. We know.

Sergeant PATcH. There again, I think theﬁ tried to reduce the
numbers of juveniles that were eligible for the detentions so they
could keep their figures down under that percentage.

Ms. HENDRICKSON. So we would not be out of compliance. That
was one of the goals. If you put it at sixteen, not that it is a re-
quirement of the act, but that Iowa law was going to get more re-
strictive because we were 80 far out of compliance with the act.

Sergeant PATCH. You know, that eliminates about half of the se-
rious offenders who you take that 2-year span out from eligibility
for detention.

Mr. Tauke. So, then, what do you do with the 15-year old who
commits a serious assault or rape or something like that?

Sergeant ParcH. The 15-year old is eligible for the juvenile deten-
tion facility.

Mr. Tauke. OK, OK.

Sergeant ParcH. I am sorry if that was not clear. But if we do
not have that bed available there, then we cannot take them to the
adult detention facility, regardless of whether it is full, empty,
whatever. We cannot take them there.

Mr. KiLDEE. Practical&f', though, if you had someone guilty of
something like that, could you not shift som~one out who was a
less offender?

Sergeant PATcH. 'ore than likely that would be done by the ju-
venile court. The police could not do it.

Ms. HenpricksON. We do that all the time as a practical matter,
and I think we would.

Mr. Tauke. Well, this has been informative for me, Mr. Chair-
man. I hope it has been for you.

Mr. KiLpER. It has been very informative. I appreciate your testi-
mony. I always welcome that.

Mr. Stooxzy. You have more hours.
Mr. Kupee. But, you know, apparently there are some state
rules on what a jail is and what a jail is not. I know there is a fed-
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eval—I think we put in some statements or criteria of what a jail is
or is not. 8o, I guees it is—

Mr. Tauxz. We might want to look at that. .

Mr. Kunzx. We might want to look at that, too. I think the
th'ustofthebiltloandthevicilggcethrust x;ehmaixl:lthel:amle, that
we really want to carry out urposes, the philosophy, I think
the realistic goals of the Juvenile gustwe Act.

I think the purpose is very good, and we want to, obviously, not
only in this area of Federal law, but in other areas, Federal high-
m funds for example put pressure upon the States to achieve cer-
When I was in the State legislature, I used to resent that more,
but now that I am in Washington, I begin to see the wisdom of .
that.ButIhopeIeanbalaneethosetwobecausewedoreeognize
that ultlmangll,)l'h ge tr:atmenttt::' 'uverlxiles Iis really primarily ai
state ibility, and no ma ow long I am in Washington,
willnot?ose ight of that.

We want to be helpful to the State legislature while at the same
time realistically, with that money, put a little pressure on to
achieve certain goals which we feel do make sense. By going out
and having hearings like this, we can see just how successful they
may be and what tgroblems should be addressed, and I think part of
the—I think all the problems that are visited upon various states
by the Juvenile Justice Act really could be resolved with dollars,
no matter where the dollars come from.

I think this has been a wonderful hearing. I picked up some sen-
sitivities and awareness and it has been very helpful to me, and I
know Tom and I will be working on the reauthorization of this to
try to factor in as much of the considerations that we can here,
into the reauthorization.

I am going to end with a little quick story. We talked about
Justin. I know I try to legislate in a sense that how would I want
laws made for my own family, my own situation in various ways,
but you mentioned Justin.

Justin realized that he had something he could do and that
really helped enhance his own image. That is ver{', very important.
I think the providers who are here hive great roles. If you can
someone while that person is with you and help that person feel a
little better about him or herself, that is extremely important.

When my first child was born, I kept telling ml¥ wife we have got
to make sure he has a good feeling about himself, a very good feel-
ing about himself. I probably overdid it a bit, telling my wife that,
because I called from Lansing, the State capital, one day and I said,
“How is David doing?” She said, “‘He has a very good feeling about
himself today.” But it is still important.

One other final story. My younger son—I have a daughter,
Laura, who is 16, going on 20, and I have a son, Paul, my youngest.
When he was about years old, I was tucking him in bed one
evening hearing his prayers, and as he finished his formal prayers,
he said, “I love God, I love Mommy, I love David, I love Laura, and
I love me.” That is very important, really very important.

I think that as we dea.ro with children, whether, directly as a
judge or referee, as a policeman or as a provider, as probation offi-
cer, or as a legislator, that we try to keep in mind that if we can do
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anything to help that person respect themselves more, they are
more likely to respect other peuple.

When I first got elected to the State legislature, they put me in
charge of the tat:aﬁnson system and I used to visit the State

prison, the largest ed prison in the world, in Jackson, MI, and I
realized very soon that most of the people were there because they
did not like thewnselves. They really did not think they were very
likable and very lovable.
And if you do not like yourself, you are not very likely to like
someone else. If you do not respect yourself, you are not going to
the other person’s property or even their life.
t if you feel that you are worthwhile, that you have some dig-
nity, some worth just by the very fact you are human, then you are
more likely to respect other people’s property, their lives and their

hts.
ngSo, I think all of us involved in work with juveniles are involved
with something extremely important and if we can keep in mind
that we can help those young people develop a proper healthy re-
spect for self, then we are going to make them not only better per-
sons in themselves, but they are going to be much better for the
community in which they live and certainly less likely to hurt that
community, but, h(:pemli;', to help that commaunity.

So, I think all of us are involved in a very important endeavor
and that is good.

I preach towards the end, you see.

in, I really want to all of you for your testimony. It

has been very, very helpful, and I want to again thank Tom Tauke,
it is a pleasure working with him. We sit down and we do share
{:at view of human dignity which is very important as we legis-

te.

We will keep the record open for 2 additional weeks for testimo-
ny you may wish to submit or anything to add to your testimony. If
you wish to submit some testimony, too, we will make that part of
the record. .

Mr. Tauxe. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for coming to Iowa.

Mr. Knpex. Thank you very much.

We will stand adjourned.

[Whereupon, at 12:22 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]

Additivnal material submitted for the record follows:)

Novemszr 13, 1987.
Hon. Tom TAuKE,
U.S. House of Representatives,
2244 Rayburn Building, Washington, DC.

Drar ConcressMAN TAuxx: I was recently notified that the Subcommittee on
Human Resources will be conducting hearings with regards to the Juvenile Justice
and Delinquency Prevention Act. I wanted to offer to you some thoughts on the Act,
mostly as reflections on my testimony before the Human Resources Subcommittee
over two years ago, on April 4, 1985. Iowa has made significant progress since that
time. I i important that the .ifgnp Act continue and begin 8 new agenda for refin-

im; upon reforms e . y, I wan -
mgdreu thmpm deinstitutionalization of status mn' jail removal and a juve-
nile justice agenda for the 1990's.

DEINSTITUTIONALIZATION OF STATUS OFFENDERS

As you know, one of the original mandates of the Juvenile Justice and Delinquen-
¢y Prevention Act as passed in 1974, was to “deinstitutionalize” status- and non-of-
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fenders. In essence, this mandate was a reflection of the philosophy that those chil-
dren who did not commit any criminal act should not be held in a secure facility or
institutional setting. The push for this reform was based on the values found in
keeping the juvenile in the community and certainly within the home.

in Iowa, significant reforms based on this ional mandate were im-
lemented via a new juvenile code by the Iowa legislature in 1979. The evo-
lution and subsequent discussion of that new code was characterized by intense
emotion andcontrovenly.Manyoftheemohons' associated with this effort still exist
within the state’s two legi

tive houses Because of the “engthy debate prec-
ess involved in drafting this new code, many remained adamant and resistant
to ing these reforms. In my opinion, this is unfortunate.

Since lgqs,thelowajuvonﬂe Justice system has evolved into a complex and intri-
cntemtemofchildm.lhdnviﬁphlluophyha.lbeenthntthe“leutrestrictive
alternative” for children in need of assistance, delinquents and families in need of
assistance is the best policy to e for the parties involved. Consequently, Iowa
has developed a vast network of child services ranging from numerous shelter care
facilities, rearohomesandoommunitybuedxr;pams.uostoftheim us for
expanding this network has come from ths JJDP itself. Funds aw: to lowa
under this e:;ﬁmm have brought about th> development of an elaborate spectrum
of much n i

child services.

Over the past several years, however, various individuals concerned with the wel-
fare of our children have begun to examine the results of our state juvenile code
and question its impact on the delivery of appropriate services to youth. What to do
with chronic runaways and children who run from shelter care or foster care, has
presented us with a dilemma. On one hand, state law prohibits restraining these
children to assure they participate in the care or treatment provided. On the other
hand, ma.n{enﬁe that these children have committed no crime and therefore
should not ject to restraint. Research also shows that over 30% of these kids
who run away from home are abused children. Obvioualy, these children should not
be held in a secure setting. This provides policymakers and service providers with a

challenaing dilemma.

Use of “staff secure” facilities and how they may be utilized is an outgrowth of
this debate and one option being explored as a result of federal initiatives. Other
state and federal analysis of this issues have shed addicional light on this continu-
ing discussion. This is an area that needs further exploration. We must strive to
find options that assure that W group of children benefit from the vast
array of services already establi in this state without threatening the liberties
of the child as well as the tial for successful treatment. This issue was intense-
ly debated tu:lm the 1986 and 1987 sessions of the Iowa legislature. The discussion
must continue.

During my tenure with the Iowa Criminal and Juvenile Justice Planning Agency,
it became a; nt to me that many key decision makers and local intarestAg»qps
involved in ing with these youth did not understand the current state policy
with regards to status- and non-offenders. Consequently, informed and intelligent
discussion of the issue was limited. The success of any reform effort requires that all
parties involved be a part of the discussion and try to develop a mutual respect and
understanding for positions held by others. In add:tion, the public needs to be in-
formed on child welfare issues and play a larger role inthedevelopmentof‘ﬁo' in
this area. We should focus resources on training and education for ALL individuals
who make up the juvenile justice syster, including law enforcement, county attor-
neys, defense attorneys, juggea. child service providers and otheis. Iowa’s law en-
forcement officials have usually been left out of this process as have county attor-
neys and others. These offices in particular must have a sound knowledge of state
juvenile justice d%olicy. It is the mnmbihty of state leaders to articulate this
policy to these offices and provide ical assistance wherever possible.

The JJDP Act has resulted in the states confron the issue of how to deal with
status offenders. The changes brought about by the deinstitutionalization mandate
have been valuable ¢ eapecmllly when compared to the environment sur-
rounding this population prior to the 1974 reforms. Certainly we should not “turn
back the clock™ with regards to this effort. But at the same time, this should not
preclude an evaluation of these reforms and ways in which to improve upon them.

JAIL REMOVAL
As testified before you in 1985, the jail removal mandate of the JJDP Act at that
time was pmvingam diﬂqcult to implement in lIowa. I listed several barriers to success:
1. attitudinal iers within local law enforcement and juvenile court offices.
2. resource barriers to developing alternatives to jail,
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8. local procedural and logistical barriers to diverting juveniles from placement in

Inmay these difl. .ulties were inter-relates.

In 1 1987 two significant events t Iowa into compliance with the
JJDP Act’s jail removal mandate. A lawsuit filed by a class of juveniles in the State
brought i of serious attention to the entire juvenile detantion

ized over the past 10 to 15
new law for law enforcement rs, county

programs which may be used at the local level,
state juvenile justice policy,
entire jail rem effort which will serve as
t and refinement.

. ible for implementing these
for providing leadenhi this i e u‘r;tiqn e :

on issue. The must give priori

achis i outlined in *he JJDP Act. That leadershi
i i idelines i aceordaneewiththegolicyadorus
some reasonable level of re-
the states in training, education, development of alterna-

needs. In accordance with this federal end of the contract

j ility with regards to this issue.

i provide some of their resources for this reform effort

ion of commitment. Those agencies administering the JJDP pro-

should also be prepared to offer assistance to their state q'uven_ile Justice sys-

i2-

in implementing the jail removal mandate. This requires p! , evaluation
cf programs, assistance in overcoming local protocol or procedural ers and
training. Success will be achieved only by a truly cooperative spirit by tue federal,
state and local agencies involved.

AN AGENDA FOR THE 19808

we can continue to seek change without threatening the successes of the past.

My work in juvenile justice anc 0w, substance abuse, has afforded me an oppor-
tunity to identify numerous agenda items which we here in Iowa and possibly those
in uther states, should focus upon:

1. Develop specialized ing to deal with juvenile populations with special

ng:cml needs of runaways in this state. In

0 nted witl. a a’im:.iﬁcant group of youth

P . The serious violent delin-

quent who may also have a chronic chemical “Wu a ij chal-

lenge for our current m of services. Another s, population is homelees

chl:ﬁ'l.}en. Theee kids clearly have unique needs as children who have been forced

from their homee for whatever reasons. This is growing issue here in Iowa and one
that must continue to be studied.

2. Provide a renewed commitment to developing a reliable information system
which will serve as the basis for studying, evaluating and monitoring the treatment
of juveniles in the child care system. We here in Iowa lack a credible information
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system for child care. It is therefore extremely difficult to analyze those issues of

concern. Consequently, policy is developed in an “information vacuum” and those

policies that are implemented ars never evaluated to determ.ne succeases, or more

importantly, failures. The U.S. Depariment of Justice should provide states assist-

ance in developing state information systems and the Office of Juvenile Justice and
Prevention must be provided the resources to do so.

3. Develop methods to improve the administration of child services and he juve-

i . It is curren popular to call for administrative effi-
ciencies and to iden ways in which tional human service provider systems
might become more t. Such te'k may be considered prudent by some and for
others it is a danger signal. The juvenile justice system is a complex ucracy. It
involves numerous federal, state and local funding streams with overla goals.
In addition, there is that Id issue of the relationship between the juvenile court
and the child service i often located in the executive branch of government.
Problems encoun in helping children may originate in administrative/structar-
at jasues.

4. Provide support for continued research in the area of juvenile delinquency,
status offenders, child abuse, and child welfare in general. As we enter a new
decade I think it is essential to proceed with informed caution. We know 80 much
about kids and their needs and we need to share the research we do have on various
chﬂdiauawithdecinionmakanandciﬁm.ltisimportant,howmr,thnwe
build upon this strong foundation +f knowledge as we develop policy and new pro-
m% what is known about juvenile crime and child welfare should be a
mrityfor JDP and numerous othor offices working to expand our knowledge

. It seemns we know 80 much but not many people know about it.

The juvenile justice da for the 1930’s should focus on this theme of building
on our past successes. We should seek to refine those aspects of the juvenile justice
system 80 that it becomes an improved sysiam striving towards helping youth who
";nhmloiimdull’xl:e ! with thought. Like issue of national

uing, ike to leave you one ike any nati
concern, leadership is a crucial element. At the state level, the Juvenile Justice Ad-
visory&mncilshavonodzubtphyedanimportantrolemputtingforthiuuurelab-
ing to juvenile justice and child care. They must be commended and encouraged to
continue in their efforts. National leadership iz also important. The National Coali-
tion of State Advisory Grouﬁu must also continue to be involved in the development
of mmuwnﬂ;glusﬁce icy. Finally, individuals such as yourself who bring Con-
greessi leadership to tﬁs issue, .re to be praised. Without your genuine concern
and the shared concern of Congressman Dale Kildee, our efforts in this area would
be limited. I would urge Ju and the Subcommittee to maintain your energetic levei
cf commitment to the Zavenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act and the

child care agenda you create.
I remain . . .
Siacerely,
TimotHY BzzELL,
Governor's Alliance on Substance Abuse.

O

81-604 (128)
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